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NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 37*" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the members of VADILAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED will be held on
Saturday, the 18 day of September, 2021 at 11.00 a.m. through Video Conferencing (“VC") / Other Audio-Visual Means (“OAVM"), to
transact the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:
1)  Toreceive, consider and adopt:

(@) The audited financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2021 and the reports of the Board of
Directors and Auditors thereon; and

(b) The audited consolidated financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2021 and the report of
the Auditors thereon.

2) Toappoint a Director in place of Mr. Devanshu L. Gandhi (DIN: 00010146) who retires by rotation at this Annual General Meeting in
terms of Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

3) To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Kalpit R. Gandhi (DIN: 02843308) who retires by rotation at this Annual General Meeting in
terms of Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

4)  To appoint Statutory Auditors and fix their remuneration and in this regard to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without
modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139, 142 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act,
2013 and Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modifications or re-enactment thereof for the time
being in force), M/s. Arpit Patel & Associates, Chartered Accountants, Ahmedabad (Registration No. 144032W), who was the retiring
Auditors of the Company at the 36" AGM held on 30" September, 2020, be and are hereby appointed as Statutory Auditors of the
Company for the remaining term of Four years (as they continue to be the Statutory Auditors for the financial year 2020-21 in the
absence of any appointment or re-appointment of the Auditors) to hold office from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting
till the conclusion of the 415 Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in the year 2025 (i.e. for the financial years 2021-22
to 2024-25)

RESOLVED FURTHER that approval be and is hereby accorded for payment of statutory audit fees of ¥ 22.50 lakhs (Rupees Twenty
two lakhs fifty thousand only) plus reimbursement of out of pocket expenses and applicable taxes to M/s. Arpit Patel & Associates
Chartered Accountants, for the financial year 2021- 22 and the Board of Directors of the Company be and they are hereby authorised
to increase and pay such statutory audit fees as recommended by the Audit Committee and as they may deem fit for the remaining
tenure of their appointment.”

Registered Office : For VADILAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Vadilal House, Shrimali Society,

Nr. Navrangpura Rly. Crossing, RAJESH R. GANDHI
Navrangpura, Ahmedabad - 380 009. Managing Director
CIN:L91110GJ1982PLC0O05169 (DIN : 00009879)

Email : shareslogs@vadilalgroup.com
Website : www.vadilalgroup.com
Phone : 079 4808 1200

Dated : 13 August, 2021

NOTES:

1)  Considering the present Covid-19 pandemic, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”") has vide its General circulars No. 02/2021
issued on 13 January, 2021 read with SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11 dated 15t January, 2021 permitted
convening the Annual General Meeting ("AGM” / “Meeting”) through Video Conferencing (“VC") or Other Audio-Visual Means
("OAVM"), without the physical presence of the members atacommon venue. In accordance with the MCA Circulars, provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”), the AGM of the Company is being held through VC / OAVM. The deemed venue for
the AGM shall be the Registered Office of the Company.

2)  Generally, a member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on a poll instead
of himself and the proxy need not be a member of the Company. Since this AGM is being held through VC / OAVM pursuant to the
MCA C3irculars, physical attendance of members has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by
the members will not be available for the AGM and hence the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed hereto.
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9)

10)

11)

12)

13)

14)

15)

16)

17)

Corporate members intending to send their authorised representatives to attend the Meeting are requested to send to the
Company a certified copy of the Board Resolution authorising their representative to attend and vote through VC/ OAVM on their
behalf at the Meeting.

Since the AGM will be held through VC/ OAVM, the route map of the venue of the Meeting is not annexed hereto.

A Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 setting out the material facts relating to the Special Business
to be transacted at the Meeting is annexed hereto.

In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the order of names will be entitled to vote.

The Company has notified closure of Register of Members and Share Transfer Books from 11* September, 2021 to 18t
September, 2021 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of Annual General Meeting.

As per Regulation 40 of SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended, securities of listed companies can be transferred only in
dematerialized form with effect from 1t April, 2019, except in the case of request received for transmission or transposition
of securities. In view of this, Members holding shares in physical form are requested to consider converting their holding to
dematerialize form. Members can contact Company or Share Transfer Agent- M/s. MCS Share Transfer Agent Limited in this
regard.

Dispatch of Annual Report through E-mail:

In accordance with the MCA Circulars dated January 13, 2021 and the SEBI Circular dated January 15, 2021, the Notice alongwith
the Annual Report of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2021, will be sent only through e-mail, to those Members
whose e-mail addresses are registered with the Company or the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (the “RTA”), i.e., M/s. MCS Share
Transfer Agent Limited or the Depository Participant(s). The Notice and the Annual Report for the financial year ended March 31,
2021 shall also be available on the websites of the Company viz., www.vadilagroup.com and website of Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE
, NSE and AGM Notice is also disseminated on the website of CDSL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility) i.e. www.

evotingindia.com.

Members who have not registered their e-mail addresses so far are requested to register their e-mail address for receiving all
communication including Annual Report, Notices, Circulars, etc. from the Company electronically for that Members can contact
Company or Share Transfer Agent- M/s. MCS Share Transfer Agent Limited

Transfer of Unclaimed/Unpaid amounts to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF):

Members are requested to note that the amount of dividend for the financial year ended on 31t March, 2014, 315t March, 2015,
31t March, 2016, 315t March, 2017, 315 March, 2018 and 31t March, 2019 remaining unpaid or unclaimed for a period of 7 years is
due for transfer to the Investor Education and Protection Fund on 29™ October, 2021, 1** November, 2022, 1*t November, 2023, 6™
November, 2024, 6" November, 2025 and 30" October, 2026 respectively.

Members, who have so far not encashed their dividend warrants for the said financial years, are requested to approach the Company
for revalidation or duplicate dividend warrants

Pursuant to SEBI Regulations, the Shareholders who are holding shares in physical form are mandatorily required to furnish the PAN
and complete Bank account details with the Company or Registrar and Share Transfer Agent i.e. MCS Share Transfer Agent Limited.

Further, In terms of SEBI, Gazette Notification Shares in Physical Form will not be transferred. Hence, Shareholders holding shares in
physical form are advised to get their shares converted into demat form at the earliest.

All documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and the Explanatory Statement shall be open for inspection by the Members
by writing an e-mail to the Company Secretary at shareslogs@vadilalgroup.com

Members seeking any further information about the Accounts and/or Operations of the Company are requested to send their
queries to the Company Secretary at the registered office of the Company at least 10 days before the date of the meeting.

In compliance with the aforesaid MCA Circular and SEBI Circular, Notice of the AGM along with Annual Report 2020-21 is being
sent only through electronic mode to those Members whose e-mail addresses are registered with the Company / Depository
Participants. Members may note that the Notice and the Annual Report 2020-21 will also be available on the Company’s website
at www.vadilalgroup.com, on the website of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited at
www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com respectively, and on the website of CDSL.

The instructions for shareholders for remote e-voting, Instructions for members for attending the AGM through VC / OAVM and the
instructions for shareholders voting on the day of the AGM on e-voting system are given at the end of the notice.

The Following statement sets out all material facts relating to the Business mentioned in item No: 2, 3 & 4.


http://www.vadilagroup.com/
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http://www.evotingindia.com/
mailto:shareslogs@vadilalgroup.com

. . f ®_
As required under Regulation 36 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015 given below are

the details of Mr. Devanshu L. Gandhi and Mr. Kalpit R. Gandhi Directors who shall retire by rotation and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment: -

ITEMNO:2 &3
Mr. Devanshu L. Gandhi

Mr. Devanshu L. Gandhi aged 54 years is Science Graduate and has been associated with the Company since its inception having
experience on hands for Ice-cream and Processed Food business. He looks after day-to-day affairs of the Company pertaining to the
hereby-mentioned areas: Domestic Sales and Marketing of Ice-cream Division, Government Subsidies of Ice-cream plants and Revenue
Expenses of Refrigeration Service Division. Mr. Devanshu L. Gandhi looks after Production, Purchase, Works, QC, R & D of Processed Food
Division. He looks after purchase of Land & Materials, Project Commissioning & Legal for Construction Division. Entire Forex Division
(FFMC & Consultancy Services) and Human Resource & P & A (respective) is taken care by him. He is on the Board of following other
Companies.

Mr. Devanshu L. Gandhi is a member of Stakeholder Relationship Committee, Risk Management Committee and Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee. He is also a Member of the following committees of other Companies. Mr. Devanshu L. Gandhi holds
345,691shares in Vadilal Industries Limited in his individual capacity.

Directorship: Member of the Board Committees:

»  Vadilal Enterprises Limited Audit Committee:

»  Vadilal Chemicals Limited »  Vadilal Chemicals Limited

»  Vadilal International Private Limited Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee:
»  Vadilal Gases Limited »  Vadilal Enterprises Limited

»  Vale Properties Private Limited »  Vadilal Chemicals Limited

»  Byad Packaging Industries Private Limited Nomination & Remuneration Committee
>  Esveegee Wires and Metals Private Limited > Vadilal Enterprises Limited

»  Numen Technologies Private Limited

»  Vadilal Delights Limited

»  Varood Industries Limited

»  Rystic Trading Private Limited

»  Marveling Marketing Private Limited

»  ABDG Enterprises Private Limited

Relationship between the Directors:
Mr. Devanshu L Gandhi is the husband of Mrs. Deval D Gandhi.
None of the other directors are related to Mr. Devanshu L. Gandhi, Directors of the Company.

Profile of Mr. Kalpit R. Gandhi

Mr. Kalpit Gandhi aged 36 years has done Masters in Business Administration from IESE Business School Barcelona (Spain), which is one
of the top universities globally ranked as 5" as per Economist and 7t" as per Financial Times and have numerous accolades in field of
executive education. He is a graduate from University of Southern California with BSC in Administration & Accounting and carrying wide
experience in Finance and Marketing functions with international exposure. He had served reputed organization like Godrej Consumer
Products Limited, Financial Technologies (India) Itd in various capacities and had also exposure in international company named Akin
Bay in USA which strengthen his business acumens. Mr. Kalpit R. Gandhi is Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and Non-Executive Director of the
Company. He has attended 9 board meetings during the year 2020-21.

Mr. Kalpit R. Gandhi is a member of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee and Risk Management Committee of the Company.
He is not a Member of any Committee of other Companies. Mr. Kalpit R. Gandhi do not hold shares in Vadilal Industries Limited in his
individual capacity. Mr. Kalpit R. Gandhi is Director in the following other companies:

Directorship:
»  Vadilal International Private Limited
Vadilal Chemicals Limited

Vadilal Marketing Private Limited
Vadilal Delights Limited

YV V VY

Relationship between the Directors: -
Mr. Kalpit R. Gandhi is the son of Mr. Rajesh R. Gandhi.
None of the other directors are related to Mr. Kalpit R. Gandhi, Director of the Company.

4 | VADILAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED
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ITEM NO: 4

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on 13" August, 2020 approved and recommended appointment of M/s. Arpit Patel & Associates
as Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of 5 years i.e. till the conclusion of the 41t Annual General Meeting of the Company to
be held in the year 2025 subject to approval of shareholders in the annual general meeting. However, at the 36" Annual General Meeting
(AGM) of the members of the Company held on 30* September, 2020, the resolution for the appointment of M/s. Arpit Patel & Associates
as Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of 5 years i.e. till the conclusion of the 41t Annual General Meeting of the Company to
be held in the year 2025 was not passed and therefore, pursuant to the provisions of Section 139(10) of the CA 2013, Board of Directors in
its meeting held on 2" November, 2020 took note of continuation of M/s. Arpit Patel & Associates as Statutory Auditors of the Company
for the financial year 2020-21 i.e. till the conclusion of next Annual General Meeting of the members of the Company to be held in the
year 2021 as Auditors of the Company.

In view of provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, at the 37t AGM the members are required to consider the matter of appointment/
re-appointment of Statutory Auditors of the Company.

On the recommendation of the audit committee at its meeting held on 13 August, 2021, the Board of Directors at its meeting held on
13™ August, 2021, have approved and recommended to the Members for reappointment of M/s Arpit Patel & Associates as Statutory
Auditors of the Company for a balance period of four (4) years (as they have already continued as Statutory Auditors for 1 financial year in
the absence of appointment/re-appointment at the 36th AGM) i.e till the conclusion of the 415t Annual General meeting of the Company
to be held in the year 2025 i.e. for financial years 2021-22 to 2024-25.

The terms and conditions of appointment/re-appointment of the statutory auditors and the proposed fees are as follows:
Term of Appointment: 4 years from the conclusion of this 37t AGM till the conclusion of 41st AGM.

b. Proposed Fees: Fees for Statutory Audit of ¥ 22.50 lakhs (Rupees Twenty two lakhs fifty thousand only) plus applicable taxes,
travelling and other out-of-pocket expenses incurred by M/s. Arpit Patel & Associates in connection with the statutory audit of
the Company for the financial year 2021-22. The remuneration payable to M/s. Arpit Patel & Associates, statutory auditors for
the remaining tenure of the proposed appointment / re-appointment will be subsequently determined by the Board as per the
recommendations of the Audit Committee. The proposed fees is based on knowledge, expertise, industry experience, time and
efforts required to be put in by them, which is in line with the industry benchmarks. The fees for services in the nature of limited
review, statutory certifications and other professional work will be in addition to the audit fee as above and will be determined by
the Board in consultation with the Auditors and as per the recommendations of the Audit Committee. The Board, based on the
recommendation of the Audit Committee, unanimously, recommends the ordinary resolution as set out in item no. 4 of this notice.
None of the directors and key managerial personnel or their relatives are interested financially or otherwise in the resolution as set
out in item no. 4 of this notice.

Registered Office : For VADILAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Vadilal House, Shrimali Society,

Nr. Navrangpura Rly. Crossing, RAJESH R. GANDHI
Navrangpura, Ahmedabad - 380 009. Managing Director
CIN:L91110GJ1982PLC005169 (DIN : 00009879)

Email : shareslogs@vadilalgroup.com
Website : www.vadilalgroup.com
Phone : 079 4808 1200

Dated : 13t August, 2021

PROCESS AND MANNER FOR AVAILING REMOTE E-VOTING FACILITY

1. Asyou are aware, in view of the situation arising due to COVID-19 global pandemic, the general meetings of the companies shall
be conducted as per the guidelines issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020,
Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 5, 2020. The forthcoming AGM will thus be held through
video conferencing (VC) or other audio visual means (OAVM). Hence, Members can attend and participate in the ensuing AGM
through VC/OAVM.

2. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations
2015 (as amended), and MCA Circulars, the Company is providing facility of remote e-voting to its Members in respect of the
business to be transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with Central Depository
Services (India) Limited (CDSL) for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the authorized e-Voting's agency. The facility of
casting votes by a member using remote e-voting as well as the e-voting system on the date of the AGM will be provided by CDSL.

3. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled time of the commencement of
the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The facility of participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will
be made available to at least 1000 members on first come first served basis. This will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders
holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the

| 5
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Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are
allowed to attend the AGM without restriction on account of first come first served basis.

The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose of ascertaining the quorum
under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Pursuant to MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, the facility to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the members is
not available for this AGM. However, in pursuance of Section 112 and Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013, representatives of
the members such as the President of India or the Governor of a State or body corporate can attend the AGM through VC/OAVM
and cast their votes through e-voting.

In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, the Notice calling the AGM has
been uploaded on the website of the Company at www.vadilalgroup.com The Notice can also be accessed from the websites of
the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited at www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com
respectively. The AGM Notice is also disseminated on the website of CDSL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility and
e-voting system during the AGM) i.e. www.evotingindia.com.

The AGM has been convened through VC/OAVM in compliance with applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020 and MCA Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 and MCA Circular No. 20/2020
dated May 05, 2020 and MCA circular no. 02/2021 dated January,13,2021.

In continuation of this Ministry’s General Circular No. 20/2020, dated 05™ May, 2020 and after due examination, it has been decided
to allow companies whose AGMs were due to be held in the year 2020, or become due in the year 2021, to conduct their AGMs on
or before 31.12.2021, in accordance with the requirements provided in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the General Circular No. 20/2020 as
per MCA circular no. 02/2021 dated January,13, 2021.

The Board of Directors of the company has appointed Mr. Manoj R. Hurkat of M/s. Manoj Hurkat & Associates, Practicing
Company Secretary, Ahmedabad as Scrutinizer to scrutinize remote e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner and he has
communicated his willingness to be appointed and will be available for same purpose.

The Scrutinizer after Scrutinizing the votes cast will not later than three days of conclusion of the Meeting, make a scrutinizer’s report
and submit the same to the chairman. The results declared shall be placed on the website of the Company http://vadilalgroup.com
and on the website of CDSL viz. http://www.evotingindia.com. The results shall simultaneously be communicated to the stock
exchange.

THE INTRUCTIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND E-VOTING DURING AGM AND JOINING MEETING THROUGH
VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER:

(i)

(ii)
(iii)

(iv)

The voting period begins on Wednesday, 15" September, 2021 (9.00 a.m.) and ends on Friday, 17* September, 2021 (5.00 p.m.)
E-Voting facility will be available at the time of meeting also. During this period shareholders’ of the Company, holding shares
either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date 11t September, 2021 may cast their vote electronically. The
e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.

Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the meeting.

Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020, under Regulation 44 of Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, listed entities are required to provide remote
e-voting facility to its shareholders, in respect of all shareholders’ resolutions. However, it has been observed that the participation
by the public non-institutional shareholders/retail shareholders is at a negligible level.

Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to listed entities in India. This necessitates
registration on various ESPs and maintenance of multiple user IDs and passwords by the shareholders.

In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation, it has been decided to enable e-voting
to all the demat account holders, by way of a single login credential, through their demat accounts/ websites of Depositories/
Depository Participants. Demat account holders would be able to cast their vote without having to register again with the ESPs,
thereby, not only facilitating seamless authentication but also enhancing ease and convenience of participating in e-voting process.

In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed
Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained
with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat
accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.

| VADILAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED
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Pursuant to abovesaid SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for Individual shareholders
holding securities in Demat mode is given below:

Type of shareholders

Login Method

Individual ~ Shareholders  holding
securities in Demat mode with CDSL

1)

2)

3)

4)

Users of who have opted for CDSLs Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their
existing user id and password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page
without any further authentication. The URLs for users to login to Easi / Easiest are
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or www.cdslindia.com and click on
Login icon and select New System Myeasi.

After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting Menu. On
clicking the e-voting menu, the user will be able to see his/her holdings along with
links of the respective e-Voting service provideri.e. CDSL/ NSDL/ KARVY/ LINK INTIME
as per information provided by Issuer / Company. Additionally, we are providing links
to e-Voting Service Providers, so that the user can visit the e-Voting service providers’
site directly.

If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at https://
web.cdslindia.com/myeasi./Registration/ EasiRegistration

Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat Account
Number and PAN No. from a link in www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will
authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in
the Demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be provided links for
the respective ESP where the e-Voting is in progress during or before the AGM.

Individual ~ Shareholders  holding
securities in demat mode with NSDL

—_

)

2)

3)

If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-Services website
of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com
either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Services
is launched, click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is available
under‘IDeAS’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID and
Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services.
Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to see
e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you
will be re-directed to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during
the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at
https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for IDeAS “Portal or click at https://
eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once
the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is
available under‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have
to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold with NSDL),
Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful
authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see
e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you
will be redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during
the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting

Individual  Shareholders (holding
securities in demat mode) login
through their Depository Participants

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your
Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. After successful
login, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click on e-Voting option, you will
be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you
can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and
you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider’s website for casting your vote during
the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget Password
option available at abovementioned website.
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Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login through
Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL

Login type Helpdesk details ‘

Individual Shareholders holding securities | Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk by sending
in Demat mode with CDSL a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.comor contact at 022- 23058738 and
22-23058542-43.

Individual Shareholders holding securities | Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk by sending
in Demat mode with NSDL a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22
44 30

Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than individual shareholders & physical shareholders.

1) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.

2)  Click on“Shareholders” module.
3)  Now enter your User ID
a.  For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,
b.  For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,
¢.  Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the Company.

4)  Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.

5)  Ifyou are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier e-voting of any
company, then your existing password is to be used.

6) Ifyou are a first-time user follow the steps given below:

For Shareholders holding shares in Demat Form other than individual and Physical Form

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable for both

demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)

« Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository Participant are
requested to use the sequence number sent by Company/RTA or contact Company/RTA.

Dividend Bank Details | Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in your demat

OR Date of Birth (DOB) | account or in the company records in order to login.

- If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company, please enter the member id /
folio number in the Dividend Bank details field as mentioned in instruction (v).

After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT" tab.

Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen. However, shareholders holding
shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login password
in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any
other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly
recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential.

For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the resolutions contained in this
Notice.

Click on the EVSN for the relevant <Company Name> on which you choose to vote.

On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option “YES/NO” for voting. Select the
option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the
Resolution.

Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK" if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.

After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT". A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to
confirm your vote, click on “OK’, else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL" and accordingly modify your vote.

Once you “CONFIRM" your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the Voting page.
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If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and the image verification code and click on
Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.

Facility for Non - Individual Shareholders and Custodians -Remote Voting

. Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are required to log on to
www.evotingindia.com and register themselves in the “Corporates” module.

. A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed to helpdesk.evoting@
cdslindia.com.

. After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and password. The Compliance
User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on.

. The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval of the accounts
they would be able to cast their vote.

. A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in favour of the Custodian, if any,
should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

. Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. together
with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the
Company at the email address viz; shareslogs@vadilalgroup.com, if they have voted from individual tab & not uploaded same
in the CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM & E-VOTING DURING MEETING ARE AS UNDER:

1.

10.

The procedure for attending meeting & e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for Remote
e-voting.

The link for VC/OAVM to attend meeting will be available where the EVSN of Company will be displayed after successful login as per
the instructions mentioned above for Remote e-voting.

Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the meeting. However, they will not be eligible to
vote at the AGM.

Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / IPads for better experience.

Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance during the
meeting.

Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via Mobile Hotspot may
experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN
Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may register themselves as a speaker by
sending their request in advance atleast 7 days prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number,
email id, mobile number at (company email id). The shareholders who do not wish to speak during the AGM but have queries
may send their queries in advance7 days prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, email id,
mobile number at (company email id). These queries will be replied to by the company suitably by email.

Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their views/ask questions during
the meeting.

Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions
through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system available
during the AGM.

If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the AGM and if the same shareholders have not
participated in the meeting through VC/OAVM facility, then the votes cast by such shareholders shall be considered invalid as the
facility of e-voting during the meeting is available only to the shareholders attending the meeting.
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PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL ADDRESSES ARE NOT REGISTERED WITH THE DEPOSITORIES FOR
OBTAINING LOGIN CREDENTIALS FOR E-VOTING FOR THE RESOLUTIONS PROPOSED IN THIS NOTICE:

1. ForPhysical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate
(front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to
Company/RTA email id.

2. For Demat shareholders -, please provide Demat account detials (CDSL-16 digit beneficiary ID or NSDL-16 digit DPID + CLID), Name,
client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested
scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to Company/RTA email id.

If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voting from the CDSL e-Voting System, you can write an email to helpdesk.
evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022- 23058738 and 022-23058542/43.

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, Manager, (CDSL, ) Central
Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25™ Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East),
Mumbai - 400013 or send an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call on 022-23058542/43.

REQUEST TO THE MEMBERS:

Members desiring any relevant information on the audited financial statements during the AGM are requested to write to the Company
at least 7 days in advance of the date of AGM at its Registered Office, so as to enable the Company to keep the information ready.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To,

The Members

VADILAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Ahmedabad.

Your directors have pleasure in presenting herewith the 37" Annual Report together with the Audited Financial Statements for the year

ended 315 March, 2021.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS:

Rinlacs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
on 31-03-2021 on 31-03-2020
(a) | Earnings before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and Amortization (EBITDA) 666.43 6799.41
(b) | Finance Cost 2008.52 1472.53
(c) | Depreciation and amortization expenses 1828.62 1887.89
3837.14 3360.42
(d) | Profit before Tax (3170.71) 3438.99
(e) | Tax Expenses
(@) CurrentTax 17.39 860.43
(b) Deferred Tax (778.28) (636.21)
Total Tax Expenses (760.89) 224.22
(f) | Profit/ (Loss) for the year (2409.82) 3214.77
(g) | Other Comprehensive income:
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans (net of tax) 245 (38.12)
(h) | Total Comprehensive income for the year: (2407.37) 3176.65

STATE OF COMPANY'S AFFAIRS:

The Company has earned Revenue from Operations of ¥ 35654.01 lacs during the year ended on 31 March, 2021 as against
% 51662.97 lacs during the previous year ended on 31 March, 2020 a decrease of 30.99% compared to previous year.

After adding thereto, the other income of ¥ 1202.18 lacs, the Company has earned total income of ¥ 36856.19 lacs during the year under
review. The Company has incurred total expenses of I 40026.90 lacs including Finance cost of ¥ 2008.52 lacs and Depreciation and
Amortization expenses of T 1828.62 lacs during the year under review.

The Company has incurred loss before Tax of ¥ 3170.71 lacs during the year under review as compared to Profit of ¥ 3438.99 lacs during
the previous year ended on 315t March, 2020. The Company has incurred loss of ¥ 2409.82 lacs during the year ended on 315 March, 2021
adding reversal of total tax expense ¥ 760.89 lacs as compared to Profit of ¥ 3214.77 lacs during the previous year ended on 31t March,
2020 after deducting total tax expense ¥ 224.22 lacs

IMPACT OF COVID-19 ON THE COMPANY:

Outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic globally and in India has impacted significantly the business of the company during the year. Company
has witnessed lower revenues due to lock down imposed during the beginning of the year, being the peak period of the Ice cream
business. With the unlocking of restrictions, business improved gradually in the last two months of the year. Whilst there has been a
second wave of Covid 19 Pandemic in April and May, 2021, the domestic Ice cream business of the company once again got impacted
being the peak period. The management is continuously monitoring for any material changes to the future economic conditions.

DIVIDEND:

To conserve resources of the company, considering the situation arising due to COVID-19 pandemic, and the loss incurred, your Directors
do not recommend any dividend for the year under review.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES:
The Company has not transferred any amount to the General Reserves during the year under review.

37TH ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21 | 11



- Vol

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN:

Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Act and Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Annual Return
for FY 2020-21 is available on Company’s website at https://vadilalgroup.com/?page_id=904

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS:
Management Discussion and Analysis Report has been enclosed herewith as per Annexure - A and forming part of the Directors’'Report.

QUALITY ASSURANCE AND AWARDS

AWARDS AND CERTIFICATIONS:

Vadilal has won 27 awards over 4 consecutive years: 2008 to 2011 at ‘The Great Indian Ice Cream Contest’ organized by the Indian Dairy
Association. The various categories for awards were: The Best in Class (3): Chocolate Frozen Dessert, Standard Chocolate Ice Cream, Rose
Coconut Shell (Innovation — Novelty), Gold Medal (4): Standard Chocolate Ice Cream, Chocolate Frozen Dessert, Vanilla Frozen Dessert
and Rose Coconut Shell (Innovation — Novelty), Bronze Medal (1): Natural Orange (Premium without Inclusion). Best in Class in Kids
category — Joker Ice Trooper, Gold in Kids category — Joker Face Ice Trooper, Silver in Vanilla Frozen Dessert, Bronze in Vanilla Ice Cream -
Happinezz Vanilla Ice cream, Bronze in Premium - Pista Happinezz Ice Cream garnished with Green Pista.

Vadilal Ice Creams has been voted as the “Most Trusted Ice Cream Brand in India” as per The Brand Trust Report - 2013. The Economic
Times Survey ranked us among the “Top 20 Food and Beverages” brands in India.

Recently in 2019 Vadilal ice cream has been voted as “Super Brand'’a very proud moment.

1SO 22000:2005 AND 1SO 9001:2008 CERTIFICATES

The Company has always made continuous efforts to improve the“OVERALL PRODUCT QUALITY" by following the stringent GMP norms
and continuous process innovation. This is evident with the achievement of FSMS (Food Safety Management System) Certifications i.e.
BRC: Issue-6 with Grade “A”, 1S0-22000:2005 and HALAL for our Processed Food Division (PFD), located at Dharampur, Dist. Valsad,
Guijarat.

The PFD Manufacturing facility is also listed in “Two Star Export House” Status by Joint Director General of Foreign Trade, Ministry of
Commerce and Industry for export of Processed Foods Products -APEDA.

The Ice Cream plants of the Company located in two locations - Pundhra in Gujarat & Barelly in UP are also certified for 1SO-22000:2005,
1SO 9001:2015 and BRC: Issue 7 for Food Safety Management System is another feather in the cap for the Company.

FINANCE:

During the year under review, the company has been sanctioned & disbursed Covid Emergency Credit Line (CECL) from Bank of Baroda
& State Bank of India amounting to ¥ 2.26 Crore & ¥ 1.80 Crore respectively. Apart from that banks have also sanctioned Guaranteed
Emergency Credit Line 2.0 (GECL 2.0) from Bank of Baroda, State Bank of India, IDBI Bank and Indusind Bank for ¥ 4.05 Crore, 8.35 Crore,
% 0.23 Crore and ¥ 9.56 Crore respectively and out of it Indusind Bank has disbursed ¥ 7.17 Crore. Both above loans i.e. CECL & GECL have
been executed in favour of Security Trustee i.e. PNB Investment Services Ltd. on 07.05.2021.

During the year company has repaid various short-term loans availed from banks namely (1) State Bank of India for ¥ 25 Crore, (2)
Indusind Bank (Sanctioned for X 20 Crore) availed ¥ 16.50 Crore and fully repaid (3) The Kalupur Commercial Co-op. Bank Ltd. (Sanctioned
%30 Crore) availed ¥ 15.41 Crore repaid X 14.21 Crore. Apart from above Interest & Installment on working capital and term loan facilities
has been paid to Banks / Fls as availed by the Company.

India Ratings & Research Pvt. Ltd. has rated the Long Term borrowing of the company as BBB/ Negative and Short Term borrowing as A3+.

IMPACT OF COVID-19 ON THE COMPANY’S FINANCE

Due to Corona virus and multiple lock down in the country, our business module and business cycle has been badly affected in FY 2020-
21.The Company could not liquidate stock as per normal business cycle. Hence Sales & Profit was under pressure.

INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND:

During the financial year - 2020-2021, the Company has deposited unclaimed/ unpaid fixed deposit amount of ¥ 75,334/- to Investor
Education and Protection Fund - IEPF.

During the Financial year — 2020-2021, the Company has also transferred ¥ 316,880/- being amount of unpaid dividend for the year -
2012-2013 to Investor Education and Protection Fund.
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DETAILS OF DEPOSITS:

a.  During the year under review, the details of deposits accepted by the Company from its Members, after complying with the
provisions of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014, are as under:

i.  Details of Deposit from Shareholders :

R in lakhs)
(@) Amount of existing deposits as at 15t April, 2020 : 2527.75
(b)  Amount of deposits accepted or renewed during the year
(i)  Secured deposits : 0
(ii)  Unsecured deposits : 1848.30
Total (b) : : 1848.30
(c)  Amount of deposits repaid during the year : 1333.10
(d) Balance of deposits outstanding at the end of the year (a+b-c) 3042.95

ii. Details of Deposit from Public [Accepted under Companies Act, 1956 and Companies (Acceptance of Deposit)
Rules, 1975 ]:

® in lakhs)

(@ Amount of existing deposits as at 1¢t April, 2020 : 0.15
(b)  Amount of deposits accepted or renewed during the year

(i)  Secured deposits : 0

(i)  Unsecured deposits
Total (b): : 0
(c)  Amount of deposits repaid during the year : 0
(d) Balance of deposits outstanding at the end of the year (a+b-c) 0.15

b.  Ason 31 March, 2021, deposit of ¥ 15000/- has remained unpaid or unclaimed by the Company.

¢.  During the year under review, the Company has not made any default in repayment of deposits or payment of interest
on deposits.

d. The Company has not accepted or renewed any deposit which is not in compliance with the provisions of Chapter -V of
the Companies Act, 2013.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANY:

Company is having 2 wholly-owned subsidiary companies outside India namely Vadilal Industries (USA) Inc., USA, and Vadilal Industries
Pty Ltd and 2 wholly owned subsidiary companies in India viz; Vadilal Delights Limited and Varood Industries Limited.

A report on the financial position of the subsidiaries as per first proviso to sub-section (3) of Section 129 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Rules made thereunder in the prescribed Form — AOC-1 is provided as Annexure - B to the Directors’Report. The Policy for determining
material subsidiaries may be accessed on the Company’s website viz www.vadilalgroup.com.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 136 of the Act, separate Audited Accounts in respect of subsidiary company for the year ended on
315 March, 2021 are available at the web-site of the Company viz. www.vadilalgroup.com.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 129(3) read with Schedule - Il of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder, and
Regulation 34 of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement), 2015 and other applicable Accounting Standards, the
Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company, its subsidiaries and associates, for the year ended on 31t March, 2021 have been
attached with the financial statement of the Company. The Audited Consolidated Financial Statements form part of the Annual Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

Being a Listed Company, the Company has taken necessary measures to comply with the provisions of Regulation 72 of SEBI (Listing
Obligation and Disclosure Requirement), 2015 regarding Corporate Governance. A separate report on Corporate Governance for the year
ended on 315t March, 2021 is attached herewith as a part of this Annual Report viz Annexure - C. A certificate from Secretarial Auditors of
the Company regarding compliance of Corporate Governance as stipulated under Regulation 34(3) and 53(f) of SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is obtained by the Company and annexed to the Corporate Governance Report.
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BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT:

As required under Regulation 34 of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement), 2015, the Business Responsibility Report is
annexed herewith as a part of this Annual Report viz Annexure- D.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the confirmation and explanations obtained by them, your Directors make
the following statement in terms of Section 134(3)(C) and 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and confirm:

(@) Inthe preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper explanation
relating to material departures;

(b) The directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and
of the profit and loss of the company for that period;

(c) The directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) The directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

(e) The directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such internal financial controls are
adequate and were operating effectively; and

(f)  The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems
were adequate and operating effectively.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS GIVEN, INVESTMENTS MADE, GUARANTEES GIVEN AND SECURITIES PROVIDED:

Particulars of loans given, investments made, guarantees given and securities provided by the Company under Section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 forms part of the Notes to the financial statements provided in this Annual Report.

CONTRACTS AND ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES:

Information on transactions with related parties pursuant to Section 134(3)(h) of the Act read with Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014 are given in Annexure - E in the prescribed Form — AOC-2 and the same forms part of this report. All related party transactions
are placed before the Audit Committee and the Board of the Company for review and approval. Omnibus approval is obtained for
transactions which are foreseen and repetitive in nature

The Policy on materiality of related party transactions and dealing with related party transactions as approved by the Board may be
accessed on the Company’s website viz. www.vadilalgroup.com.

Your Directors draw attention of the members to Note - 45 to the financial statement which sets out related party disclosures.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

Pursuant to provisions of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder, term of Mr. Chetan M.Tamboli, Independent
Director (DIN: 00028421) ended at the conclusion of Annual General Meeting held on 30™ September, 2020.

Board of Directors in its meeting held on 13 December, 2019 had appointed Mr. Yogesh Bhatt and Mr. Anil Patil as Interim Chief Executive
Officer of the Company. They resigned w.e.f. 26.06.2020

Further Pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder, Mr. Devanshu L. Gandhi,
Director (DIN: 00010146) of the Company, shall retire by rotation at this Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers himself for
re-appointment. The Members are requested to consider his re-appointment as Director of the Company, for which necessary resolution
has been incorporated in the notice of the meeting.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder, Mr. Kalpit R. Gandhi (DIN: 02843308) of
the Company shall retire by rotation at this Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. The Members
are requested to consider his re-appointment as Director of the Company, for which necessary resolution has been incorporated in the
notice of the meeting.

As Vadilal Industries Limited falls under top 1000 Listed Companies, It is statutory requirement for the Company to appoint Independent
Woman Director on the Board of the Company, as per amendment of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations,
2015 therefor pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof
for the time being in force) and Regulation 17 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, and based on
the basis of the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors of the Company appointed,
pursuant to the provisions of Section 161(1) of the Act and the Articles of Association of the Company, Ms. Shaily Dedhia (DIN: 08853685)
as Additional Director of the Company with effect from 29™ August, 2020. She was appointed as an Independent Director under Section
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149 of the Act to hold office for a term of 5(Five) consecutive years upto the conclusion of the 41t Annual General Meeting of the

Company to be held in the calendar year 2025.

Pursuant to provisions of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder, appointment of Mr. Preet Shah,
Independent Director (DIN: 05131516) made in the Board as an additional director w.e.f. 29" August, 2020. He was appointed as an
Independent Director of the Company to hold office for a period of 5 years upto the conclusion of the 41t Annual General Meeting of
the Company in the calendar year 2025.

The brief resume/details relating to the Directors, who are to be re-appointed is furnished in the Notes to the Notice of the Annual
General Meeting.

BOARD EVALUATION:

The Board of Directors carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, Board committees and individual directors pursuant to
the provisions of the Act and the corporate governance requirements as prescribed under Regulation 17 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

The performance of the Board and committees was evaluated by the Board on the basis of the criteria determined by Nomination and
Remuneration Committee such as the Board composition and structure, effectiveness of board processes, information and functioning,
etc.

The Board reviewed the performance of the individual directors on the basis of the criteria such as the contribution of the individual
director to the Board and committee meetings like preparedness on the issues to be discussed, meaningful and constructive contribution
and inputs in meetings, etc.

In a separate meeting of independent Directors, performance of non-independent directors, performance of the board as a whole and
performance of the Chairman was evaluated, considering the views of executive directors and non-executive directors.

COMMITTEES OF DIRECTORS:

The details of various committees of Directors constituted under provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder, their
constitution, terms of reference and other details are provided in the Corporate Governance Report annexed with the Directors’ Report.

OTHERPOLICIESAND MEASURES ASPERTHE REQUIREMENT OF SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATION AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENT),
2015

The policies formulated by the Company under various provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 are available on the website of the Company viz : www.vadilalgroup.com.

NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS:

During the year under review, 11 Meetings of Board of Directors were held the details of which are mentioned in the Corporate
Governance Report annexed with the Directors’ Report.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

As required under Section 134(1)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder, details relating to Conservation of Energy,
Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo are given in the Annexure - F attached herewith and forming part
of the Directors’Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT:

The Company is exposed to various business risks from time to time. Risk management involves handling appropriately risks that are
likely to harm an organization. There are various types of risks associated with conducting business of the Company. The ultimate goal
of risk management is the preservation of physical and human assets of the organization for successful continuation of its operations.

In view of the same and in terms of requirements of the regulation 17 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 regarding Corporate Governance, the Board of Directors had, approved the risk assessment and minimization
procedure adopted by the Company in relation to its business.

The Board of the Company has formed a Risk Management Committee to frame, implement and monitor the risk management plan for
the Company. The committee is responsible for reviewing the risk management plan and ensuring its effectiveness. The audit committee
has additional oversightin the area of financial risks and controls. The major risks identified by the businesses are systematically addressed
through mitigation actions on a continual basis.

The Board periodically reviews the risk assessment and minimization procedure in relation to the business of the Company.

37TH ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21 | 15


http://www.vadilalgroup.com

- Vol

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:

In terms of provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder, a committee of the Directors of the
Company has been constituted as Corporate Social Responsibility Committee. The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee has
formulated a policy on the Corporate Social Responsibility measures to be undertaken by the Company as specified in Schedule VIl to
the Companies Act, 2013.

The Corporate Social Responsibility Policy is available on the Company’s web-site viz. www.vadilalgroup.com.

The Annual Report on CSR activities is annexed herewith marked as Annexure - G.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company has an Internal Control System, commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of its operations. The External and
Internal Auditors carryout periodic reviews of the functioning and suggest changes, if required. The company has also a sound budgetary
control system with frequent reviews of actual performance as against those budgeted.

The Statutory Auditors have given qualified opinion on the financial reporting in their Report with regards to assessment and closure
of the matters emanating out of the allegations made by promoter directors against each other and their consequential impact, if
any, on the standalone financial statements of the Company The Management does not expect any material impact on the financial
statements of the Company considering the fact that the matters pertain to earlier financial years and amount as already been expensed
in the relevant financial years. Voluntary inquiries by external agencies initiated by the management are in process to substantiate its
conclusion.

AUDITORS:

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on 13" August, 2020 approved and recommended appointment of M/s. Arpit Patel & Associates
as Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of 5 years i.e. till the conclusion of the 41t Annual General Meeting of the Company to
be held in the year 2025 subject to approval of shareholders in the annual general meeting. However, at the 36" Annual General Meeting
(AGM) of the members of the Company held on 30* September, 2020, the resolution for the appointment of M/s. Arpit Patel & Associates
as Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of 5 years i.e. till the conclusion of the 41t Annual General Meeting of the Company to
be held in the year 2025 was not passed and therefore, pursuant to the provisions of Section 139(10) of the CA 2013, Board of Directors in
its meeting held on 2" November, 2020 took note of continuation of M/s. Arpit Patel & Associates as Statutory Auditors of the Company
for the financial year 2020-21 i.e. till the conclusion of next Annual General Meeting of the members of the Company to be held in the
year 2021 as Auditors of the Company.

On the recommendation of the audit committee at its meeting held on 13t August, 2021, the Board of Directors at its meeting held on
13t August, 2021, have approved and recommended to the Members for reappointment of M/s Arpit Patel & Associates as Statutory
Auditors of the Company for a balance period of four (4) years (as they have already continued as Statutory Auditors for 1 financial year in
the absence of appointment/re-appointment at the 36 AGM) i.e till the conclusion of the 415t Annual General meeting of the Company
to be held in the year 2025 i.e. for financial years 2021-22 to 2024-25.

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR:

Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 inter alia requires every listed companies to annex with its Board Report a Secretarial Audit
Report given by a Company Secretary in practice in the prescribed form. The Board has appointed M/s SPAN & Co., Company Secretaries
LLP, to conduct Secretarial Audit for the financial year — 2020-2021. The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended March 31,
2021 is annexed herewith marked as Annexure - H to this Report.

The Secretarial Auditors’ Report of the Company for the year ended 315t March, 2021 contains certain Comments/ observations. The
explanation on observations therein is as under: -

1. The appointment of Woman Independent Director under Regulation 17(1) (a) of LODR Regulations was delayed by 150 days. Fine
was imposed by BSE and NSE which had been paid by the Company: The process of identifying suitable woman independent
director took time.

2. There was a delay in disclosure of revision in credit ratings by CARE and IND-RA to BSE and NSE as required under Regulation 30(6)
of LODR Regulations: The Company has intimated the stock exchanges about the credit ratings within 24 hours of receipt of ratings
from the rating agency.

3. Asrequired under Regulation 31(2) of LODR Regulations, hundred percent shareholding of one of the promoter is not maintained
in dematerialized form: The promoter group are in the process of dematerialization of shares of the Company.

INSURANCE:

All insurable interests of the Company including buildings, plant and machinery, furniture & fixtures and other insurable interest are
adequately insured.
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LISTING WITH STOCK EXCHANGES:
The Equity Shares of the Company are listed on the BSE Limited (BSE) and the National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE).

The Company confirms that it has paid Annual Listing Fees due to the BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited upto
the Financial Year -2021-2022.
PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:

The Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rule 5(1) of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are enclosed with this report as Annexure - I.

MATERIAL INFORMATION:

A Company Petition (being Company Petition No. 42 of 2017) has been filed against the Company, before the National Company Law
Tribunal, Ahmedabad (“NCLT"), under Sections 241 and 242 of the Companies Act, 2013. In connection to the said Company Petition No.
42 of 2017, the case has been heard on 27% July, 2021 and the matter has been adjourned to 4" October, 2021.

GENERAL:
»  During the year under review, there was no change in the nature of business of the Company and there is no material change and/
or commitments, affecting the financial position of the Company, during the period from 315t March, 2021 till the date of this report.

>  During the year under review, there was no significant and/or material order passed by any regulators or courts or tribunals
impacting the going concern status and company’s operations in future.

»  The Company does not provide any loan or other financial arrangement to its employees or Directors or Key Managerial Personnel
for purchase of its own shares and hence, the disclosure under Section 67(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 does not require.

»  During the year under review, no Director or Managing Director of the Company has received any remuneration or commission
from subsidiary of the Company in terms of provisions of Section 197(14) of the Companies Act, 2013.

»  Thedisclosure in terms of Rule - 4 of Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014 is not provided, as the Company does
not have any equity shares with differential voting rights.

»  The Company has zero tolerance towards sexual harassment at the workplace and has adopted a policy on prevention, prohibition
and redressal of sexual harassment at workplace in line with the provisions of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder. The Company has also organized an awareness
program for its employees on the said policy on prevention, prohibition and redressal of sexual harassment at workplace adopted
by the Company.

»  The trademark “Vadilal” and its associated trademarks are owned by Vadilal International Pvt. Ltd. The Company is a licensee of the
said Trademarks.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

The Directors place on record the appreciation and gratitude for the co-operation and assistance extended by various departments of
the Union Government, State Government, Bankers and Financial Institutions.

The Directors also place on record their appreciation of dedicated and sincere services of the employees of the Company at all levels.

The Company will make every effort to meet the aspirations of its Shareholders and wish to sincerely thank them for their whole-hearted
co-operation and support at all times.

By order of the Board of Directors

Rajesh R. Gandhi Devanshu L. Gandhi
Date : 13* August, 2021 Managing Director Managing Director
Place : Ahmedabad DIN: 00009879 DIN: 00010146
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ANNEXURE - BTO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (2020-2021)

(1) INDUSTRY STRUCTURE & DEVELOPMENT AND OUTLOOK.

a)

Ice Cream Division
Overview

India is the largest producer and marketer of milk. It accounts for over 1/5%" of the global milk production. This provides the ice
cream industry with a large volume of raw material to manufacture ice creams. The ice cream market in India is forecasted to
exhibit a CAGR of 17.03% during 2016-2021. Keeping up with the economy’s quantum growth in recent years, the ice cream
market has also set new records. Today, the total organized Indian ice cream market is estimated at approx. ¥ 6000 crores.
Though overall organized & unorganized ice market are estimated near about 310,000 crore with National, Regional & Local
players presence. Compared to western countries, per capita Ice cream consumption in India is low. So, considering the fact
that still In India there is huge scope of ice cream market expansion and penetration with innovative product mix to attract
India with all class & mass of Consumers.

The ever-growing urbanization, rise in disposable income, and increase in the “out of home food” consumption coupled with
the steep increase in the availability of multi cuisine restaurants, online portals in the residential areas are some of the reasons
behind the thriving ice cream industry.

The Ice cream industry has evolved, resulting in many developments, right from consumer perception to products and
services being offered. Ice creams have seen a shift in the category, from being considered as an indulgent desert to a
snacking essential. This, in turn has resulted in innovation within the category. Adapting to the changing trends Vadilal has
become the brand with the widest range of ice cream variants. Ice cream as a product has seen a huge transformation and this
has created ample of investment and growth opportunities for investors. Vadilal Ice Cream division has shown a sustainable
annual growth and aims at maintaining it further in the years to come.

Since inception, Vadilal has been a trend setter& committed towards delivering best quality products at affordable prices to
customers from diverse cultures. Improving products in terms of its nutritional value as well as quality is a constant at Vadilal.

Developments
Growth in Quality and Quantity

In the past few years, India has seen an inflow of huge number of international ice cream brands/players, which has offered
a plethora of products in the category for the consumers. To curb with the competition and challenges in the market, Vadilal
reinvented its strategy to consolidate its leadership. Being brave, like it has always been, Vadilal revamped its look with
aggressive marketing approach and the menu to give the brand the lift it required to combat its international counterparts.
In a bold step, the company revamped the entire brand identity by introducing a refreshed brand logo, new template and
packaging. With all due efforts and now the with same aggressive marketing approach Vadilal products with brand identity
with packaging is established in the market and trade with consumers are identifying the Vadilal products with their unique
brand color code and visual uniqueness with clutter free brand presence in Trade & Consumer top of mind recall. This was
welcomed in the market and worked in the brands flavor in setting a fresher and younger brand perception in the consumer’s
mind.

Apart from aesthetical revamping, the brand also paid special attention towards upgrading the production technology. This
has made it easier for Vadilal to offer premium and delectable products.

With International brands /players crowding the market, consumer awareness and the size of the premium ice cream segment
has increased in India. Following these developments, Vadilal introduced many variants in the premium segment like ice
cream bars, ice cream sandwiches, Artisan ice cream cakes and ice cream pastries and many more unique products launches
with different format, taste & innovation.

Taking forward the tradition of introducing novelty in products at regular intervals, in the year 2020 Vadilal has made
numerous additions. The brand had three new delicious additions in its offerings, ice creams in the 1+1 party pack form in
every 6 months. Also, on regular intervals Vadilal is launching new flavors in 1+1 party packs & other innovative products
based on extensive R&D as well market with consumers feedback. With such initiatives we have created the unique space in
trade & consumer mind.

The brand’s existing variants like Gourmet, Badabite, Flingo Jumbo Ice cream Cups and Ice trooper continue to show
substantial movement in the market. Besides this, Vadilal has also introduced new delicious products like Chickoo, Jambu,, ,
Kesar —e -Khas, Almond Nautanki, Choco sphere cone etc.

While the grown-up consumer strata had a remarkable range of products to their delight, Vadilal’s Ice Trooper range continues
to consolidate the kids’ market and has become every kid’s favorite across India. This year, a new variant called Ice Trooper
Football candy has been added to this popular range.
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Growth country wide

Vadilal is growing, the brand spread its wings wide in South India, and enjoyed a widespread acceptance. Vadilal ice creams
and frozen desserts were introduced for the first time in Tamil Nadu, receiving an overwhelming response from the consumers.
This positive response has got the brand already working on the future endeavors down South.

Growth in Infrastructure and Production

After enjoying a wide spread popularity amongst the mass since decades, the brand is now in constant efforts of upgrading.
In the wake of ramping up consumer targeting and brand positioning, it has started exclusive parlors in three formats: Scoop
Shop, Hangout & Express. These parlors offer a delicious range of Premium Ice Creams, Scoops and Concoctions in a very
enjoyable ambience. These parlors are an exercise to give the brand a youth appeal and also to shift the focus from Mass to
Mass Premium.

Introduction of new mega brands, installation of state-of-the-art machines and significant expansion in production facilities is
what the brand is focusing on to be an even stronger force to reckon with in the domestic ice cream market. Vadilal’s strategic
approach towards the controlled usage of resources and raw materials has boosted its growth in the market by many folds.

Vadilal proudly possesses the label of having, India’s fastest cone-making machine, with the production capacity 12lakh cones
per day. The brand is known to be the first and the only ice cream producer in India to have a machine with such a huge
capacity. This has made Vadilal the largest player in Cones, Cups and Candy categories.

Currently the brand’s ice cream production facilities are located at Pundhra in Gandhinagar district, Gujarat and the other at
Bareilly in Uttar Pradesh.To increase the production capacity and to have better automation, an expansion-cum-modernization
project of the factories was undertaken, which has been successfully completed.

Apart from ice creams, Vadilal is also vigorously expanding in categories which offer value chain benefits and show a strong
potential to grow. Vadilal already has strong backward linkages with the farmer community for its milk procurement for ice
creams at its plant near Ahmedabad. Taking the relationship further, Vadilal has forayed in the flavored milk segment under
the brand name “Power Sip”. Power Sip is available in flavors like “Kesar”, “Elaichi”, “Badam” and “Rose” packaged uniquely for
the brand to stand out in the crowd. The research and development team is working towards introducing more flavors in the
category specifically to match the palate of the youth.

Quality first

Like every other industry, the ice cream industry has a vast unorganized market that works at low costs and margins. These
unorganized players pose the biggest challenge and are a competition to the big players. While there are hurdles in the
journey of growth, Vadilal has always seen these unorganized, small yet tough competitors as an opportunity to excel.

Being the 2" largest ice cream brand in India, Vadilal has always focused on maintaining product quality, and constantly
improving the same

Progress in Niche Market

International brands venturing into Indian ice cream market has provided an impetus for Vadilal to evolve. Vadilal has once
again proven its mettle in launching international ice cream experiences in India.

Vadilal’s MELT IN parlor offers a range of high-end Artisanal Gelato ice cream that has gained a lot of popularity in the past few
years.

The brand is making a steady progress in launching new products in the premium segment. The latest introduction in seasonal
party packs category with premium quality and unique mix of flavors is quickly catching hold over niche market.

Recently conducted market research through Nielsen India, are most inspiring. With Brand Vadilal, it is most trusted and
favoured brand amongst India with all classes & masses especially in Youth consumers. Our Waah! Vadilal campaign is an
extension of the same research, highly valuing what our consumers make us and the experience we offer to them. The idea of
the campaign is to showcase Vadilal as young at heart, classic, energetic, royal and a vibrant brand.

The brand has a wide media mix targeted for the release of this campaign ranging from outdoor hoardings, point-of-sale
branding, television, digital, radio and more. The brand will be investing heavily on digital mediums given the inevitable
digital era namely, social media, IPL via Hotstar, other OTT platforms and Youtube.

We believe people are ready to experiment as far as premium ice cream flavours are concerned, and we feel the Waah! Vadilal
campaign will make them want to indulge in Vadilal’'s premium offerings, so we have strategized, planned, and executed the
Waah Vadilal campaign.

Within the research Consumers relate the Vadilal brand with Heritage and legacy producing unique products, Health, Hygiene
& Happy feeling.
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b)

Processed Food Division

Frozen food products are food products that are processed and preserved at acute cold temperatures and then stored in
freezers for later use. They include fruits, vegetables, ready-to-eat meals, and more. Freezing of foods is a natural form of
preservation that retains the nutrients for extended periods. At Vadilal, we use the advanced IQF (Individually Quickly Frozen)
technique which prevent cells within the food from becoming damaged, preserve nutrients and results in a much higher
quality end product than the normal freezing process.

The frozen food industry has seen steady growth since COVID-19 began, as people gravitated towards foods with longer shelf
lives. Decreasing grocery store visits and preparing for potential food shortages motivated consumers to shop frozen during
the pandemic. Frozen foods also appeal to consumers looking to avoid cooking and cleaning. Many even believed that “frozen
foods are safer than fresh items right now”.

Along with COVID-19, one more factor that drove the frozen sales upwards was ‘health-consciousness. Consumer began
gravitating towards vegetarian dishes and nutritious meals from the frozen food aisle even before the pandemic. These new
consumers include Gen Z buyers, as well as Baby Boomers who left the category during the TV dinner era—returning to find
newer, healthier, tastier options. Suppliers are responding to these buying trends, offering an increasing number of healthy
frozen food options.

The ice cream market has also witnessed significant growth in the past years. This growth is attributed to the increasing
awareness and shifting of consumer preference and interests towards ice cream products that are free from genetically
modified organisms, with no artificial flavours, fat-free and organic in nature.

GLOBAL MARKET VIEW:

The global frozen food market is expected to grow from $167.34 billion in 2020 to $174.4 billion in 2021 at a compound annual
growth rate (CAGR) of 4.2%. The growth is mainly due to the companies rearranging their operations and recovering from the
COVID-19 impact, which had earlier led to restrictive containment measures involving social distancing, remote working, and
the closure of commercial activities that resulted in operational challenges. The market is expected to reach $224.2 billion in
2025 at a CAGR of 6%.

Whereas, the global ice cream market stood at a value of $62.3 billion in 2020. The market is further anticipated to grow in the
forecast period of 2021-2026 at a CAGR of 7.5% to reach $96.1 billion by 2026.

2020 has seen record sales in the frozen food sector. According to Frozen Food Europe Magazine, Europe had the largest
share of the global frozen food market in 2020. Asia Pacific, the Middle East and Africa are projected to be the fastest-growing
markets during the 2020-2025 period.

Europe dominated the global frozen food market in 2020, accounting for more than 30% of market shares, followed by North
America. Customer attitude towards frozen foods has transformed significantly in Europe, driven by an improvement in living
standards and an increasing need for convenience. Germany, France, and the UK account for more than 50% of the frozen food
market in Europe.

Europe ice cream market is expected to grow at a CAGR of 4.87% during the forecast period, 2020-2025. Indulgence and the
increasing consumer preference for ice cream as a leisure product drive the growth of this market and new innovative flavours,
offered by companies, further act as a catalyst for demand generation. All natural and natural flavours ice cream are on the rise
driven by consumer preferences for healthy food.

Globally, the growth of organized retail has led to a widespread supply of frozen ready-to-eat food products through a
wide distribution network. North America holds the largest consumer base of the frozen ready-to-eat food market, and it
is estimated to grow at a healthy rate owing to technological innovations, busy lifestyles of consumers and high disposable
incomes. Frozen yoghurt drinks, frozen smoothies and frozen fruit juices are the most popular ready-to-drink products,
globally.

The United States was the leading frozen food market in North America in 2020. In the US, after a 94% sales surge in mid-
March, total frozen food sales maintained a 30-35% increase in April 2020 compared to April 2019.

Middle East and Africa Frozen Snacks market is projected to grow at a CAGR of 7.45% during the forecast period of 2021-2026.
Backed by increasing number of time-poor consumers coupled with development of healthy snacking options in the market,
the frozen snacks market is progressively paving its way in overall snack industry of the region. By distribution channel,
supermarkets led the sales, owing to growing prevalence of private label brands aiding the sales of these formats. The ice
cream market in MEA region is forecasted to reach USD 3.4 billion by 2024, witnessing a CAGR of 10.7% during the forecast
period of 2019-2024. The branded and private-labeled ice creams comprise the vital part of the Middle East & African frozen
dessert market.

Frozen vegetables account for more than 90% of the world market for frozen fruits and vegetables. Unlike frozen fruits, most
frozen vegetables do not require thawing, which saves time. In Germany, the fruit and vegetable segment are projected to be
the fastest growing segment, due to the growing popularity of vegetarian foods and vegan diets.
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Future Strategy:

Vadilal has presence in over 45 countries including the countries in North and South America, Europe including the UK, the
Middle East, South East Asia and Australasia. Hence, strategy for every territory has been planned basis respective country’s
market demands and thorough research.

Short term strategy: To be de-risked by focusing on multiple territories for growth since COVID restrictions may surprise a
manufacturer at any point in time.

Long term strategy: To enter into multiple food categories as newer business avenues are likely to come up with consumers
opening up to experiment with new categories and newer brands for their routine consumption.

Forex Division

VADILAL FOREX provides a niche Forex Consultancy Services to Corporates pan India having Foreign Currency Exposure in any
Currency since April 1996.

It's Forex Consultancy, aids Corporates manage their Forex Risk arising out of various EXIM activities.

VADILAL FOREX in its 25% year of services — is Numero Uno in Gujarat having more than 450 Corporates associated with it.

Our gamut of Services includes A to Z Services in relation to FOREX advisory from Fx Hedging, RBI guidelines, FEMA regulations,
FEDAI rules, etc.

The Division is looked after by Experienced and Qualified MBA (Finance), CA and CFA professionals, well versed in line with
FOREX Risk Management activities.

With HO stationed in Ahmedabad, the Division is in constant quench for growth and to establish its footing firmer, VADILAL
FOREX has deployed it's Staff Members and opted for Franchise Model within Baroda, Surat and even Rajkot Territory.

Additionally we also provide our Service Subscribers with, ‘LIVE Website’ and ‘Mobile Application’ that guides them with ‘Live
Interbank Rates’ at the time of booking transactions with their Registered Bankers.

LME Base Metal and Bullion Services are also a part of VADILAL FOREX Services that facilities Corporates having Various Metal
and Bullion Exposures.

FFMC - Money Changing Activities, a part of Vadilal Industries Limited arm is a RBI AUTHORISED AD Il CATEGORY MONEY
CHANGING ACTIVITY involved in Buying/Selling Foreign Exchange from Tourists, Internal Banking and other Money Changers.

With AD Il Category Licence, VADILAL FOREX further remains in the forefront for doing Remittances Abroad on of behalf
Indians within Directives covered in Current Accounts Free Remittances under FEMA. FFMC Division operates only from
Ahmedabad.

(C) OPPORTUNITY AND THREATS

a)

Ice-cream Division

India’s ice cream market was dominated by the ‘impulse’ category of ice creams since the past 5 years, and this category is
further expected to continue its dominance during the forecast period as well, owing to growing demand for premium ice
creams and changing consumer taste.

Looking at the trends from the recent past, we foresee fast growth in the ice cream and frozen dessert category. However,
along with the increasing demand for convenience, the continuing need for value as a trend is growing as well. Earlier, Vadilal
was focused on offering only mass segment products. However, we have been able to increase our share in the premium
segment as well and it has resulted in an overall enhanced growth. We plan to continue with the strategy of consolidating our
presence in the high-end premium segment.

However, last year in the months of April & May, when the consumption of icecreams is the highest, there was a nationwide
lockdown due to the Covid 19 situation, resulting a severe dent in the icecream sales. Our sales were lowered, even after the
lockdown was lifted as there were temporary issues, where people were avoiding eating cold desserts. However, we bounced
back with our sales in the second half of the last financial year and we are confident of strong sales this year.

We also started our own Online delivery portal vadilalonline.com for our patrons during the pandemic. We also reached out to
our customers through different super markets like the Big Basket, D mart, Reliance Smart, Star Bazaar [in selected areas] and
also on online portals like Zomato, Swiggy.

Distribution and Logistics

Distribution plays a key role in the success of a business. We plan to increase our reach in the existing market in terms of
consolidating our presence in Cash and Carry format as well as the Modern Retail segment. The logistics of ice cream, being a
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(d)

cold chain product, are complex and we are continuously expanding our cold chain distribution network through refrigerated
vehicles and deep freezers.

We have worked on increasing the physical touch points with our consumers and executed it by putting in place a robust
network of dealers, FOWs (Freezer On Wheels) and Ice Cream parlors. Along with various extensive ATL marketing campaigns, a
heavy investment has been done in various BTL marketing activities to enhance consumer experience. We are also committed
towards deeper penetration in trade sector. Innovative cross promotional activities and digital media activities have been our
point of focus to increase consumer engagement.

Processed Food Division

Online sales of frozen food increased 75% in the United States and over the past year, according to the AFFI (American Frozen
Food Institute). During the pandemic the share of US core frozen food consumers, defined as those who consume frozen food
daily or every few days, rose to 39% in 2020 from 35% in 2018. Similar scenarios were seen across the world, hence the online
market space is a good opportunity that we should build upon.

The AFFI study also found that frozen food consumers are most likely to want “real” ingredients, freshness, and no artificial
colors. This being our product’s core characteristics, we should take this as an opportunity to highlight and communicate it
more to consumers.

HIGHLIGHTS OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE AND OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE.

The Company has earned Revenue from Operations of ¥ 35,654.01 lacs during the year ended on 31 March, 2021 as against
% 51,662.97 lacs earned during the previous year ended on 315 March, 2020 giving an decrease of 30.99% as compared to
previous year.

After adding thereto, the other income of ¥ 1,202.18 lakhs, the Company has earned total income of ¥ 842.08 lakhs during
the year under review. It has incurred total expenses of I 40,026.90 lakhs including Finance cost of ¥ 2,008.52 lakhs and
Depreciation and Amortization expenses of ¥ 1,828.62 lakhs, during the year under review.

The Company has Incurred loss before Tax of ¥ 3,170.71 lacs during the year under review as compared to loss of ¥ 3,438.99
lacs during the previous year ended on 31t March, 2020. The Company has incurred loss of ¥ 2,409.82 lacs during the year
ended on 31t March, 2021 after deducting Current Tax of ¥ 17.69 lacs and Deferred Tax of ¥ (778.28) lacs as compared to Profit
of ¥ 3214.77 lacs during the previous year ended on 31° March, 2020.

Turnover History

Financial year Zin lakhs % in Lakhs
60000

2011-12 28580.25

2012-13 32765.9 |>0000

2013-14 37170.32 | 40000

2014-15 41288.57
30000

2015-16 45538.21

2016-17 48438.1 |20000

2017-18 52013.98 10000

2018-19 50705.78

2019-20 51662.97 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21

Financial Year
2020-21 35654.01

SEGMENT WISE PERFORMANCE.

The company is primarily engaged in one business segment namely Food segment as determined by the chief operating decision maker
in accordance with IND AS 108 - “Operating segment”and hence, Segment-wise Performance of the Company has not been provided.

RISKS AND CONCERNS

a)

Ice Creams Division

Brand Vadilal has a 16% of organized market share against total organized Indian ice cream market which is estimated at
approx. 3 6000 crores. Vadilal has a robust and extensive pan-India distribution network with more than 1,50,000 dealers and
trade partners that cater to every nook and corner of the country.
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6)

7)

8)

9)

Vadilal stays ever ready for competition with a strategy in place before hand. Keeping a check on competitor products and
constantly innovating is the key to stay at par with the ever-changing market. The unorganized market that pose a threat to
the sales are taken care of by maintaining quality in our products. Expertise and decades of experience is what makes Vadilal
stand a class apart in the highly competitive market.

However, there are certain concerns like infrastructure and rising input costs, which the company keeps in mind and is working
towards

b) Processed Food Division

The pandemic is still far from over with few countries still being under lockdown and an expected third wave might again
put consumers under stricter rules which can hinder the forecasted growth. Hence, the supplies will have to be planned and
shipped keeping in account the unseen future circumstances that might arise due to the restrictions of COVID-19.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY:

In view of the management, the Company has adequate internal control systems for the business processes followed by the
Company. The External and Internal Auditors carry out periodical reviews of the functioning and suggest changes if required. The
Company has also a sound budgetary control system with frequent reviews of actual performance as against those budgeted.

The Audit Committee of the Board meets periodically to review various aspects of the performance of the Company and also
reviews the adequacy and effectiveness of internal control systems and suggests improvement for strengthening them from time
to time. The External Auditors also attend these meetings and convey their view on the business processes and also of the policies
of financial disclosures. When found necessary, the Committee also gives suggestions on these matters.

HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT:

Employee being prime force the Company gives equal emphasis on employee development and their engagement. The Company
believes in enhancing the competencies of employee to create a high performing and innovative organization. Equal emphasis is
given on the on technical & soft skills. There are cordial relations between the management and employee of the Company.

As on 315t March, 2021, the Company has employed total 670 employees at all locations.

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN FINANCIAL RATIOS:

Ratio 2021 2020
Interest Coverage Ratio -0.70 3.59
Net Profit Ratio -6.54% 6.12%

Return on Net worth Ratio -11.49% 13.75%
Operating Profit Margin Ratio -3.15% 9.35%

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT:

The statements made and figures given in the various sections of “Management Discussion and Analysis” are keeping in mind
the Company’s objectives, estimates and expectations. The Actual results may differ from those expected depending upon the
economic conditions, changes in Govt. Regulations, tax regimes and other external and internal factors.

By order of the Board of Directors

Rajesh R. Gandhi Devanshu L. Gandhi

Date : 13* August, 2021 Managing Director Managing Director
Place : Ahmedabad DIN: 00009879 DIN: 00010146
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ANNEXURE - B TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Form AOC-1

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

PART “A”: SUBSIDIARIES

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures

Sr. | Particulars TinLacs TinLacs ZInLacs ZIn Lacs
No.
1 | Name of the subsidiary Vadilal Industries | Vadilal Industries | Varood Industries Vadilal Delights
(USA) Inc., (wholly Pty Ltd. (wholly Limited (wholly Limited (wholly
owned subsidiary) | owned subsidiary) | owned subsidiary) = owned subsidiary)
2 | Reporting period for the subsidiary 31.03.2021 31.03.2021 31.03.2021 31.03.2021
concerned, if different from the holding
company'’s reporting period
3 | Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on 1$-373.50 1AUD -X 55.89 INR INR
the last date of the relevant Financial year in
the case of foreign subsidiary
4 | Share capital 136.41 0.06 5.00 5.00
5 | Reserves & surplus 4272.15 Nil -0.84 -0.79
6 |Total assets 7760.16 0.06 441 4.41
7 | Total Liabilities 7760.16 0.06 441 441
8 |Investments Nil Nil Nil Nil
9 | Turnover 18136.52 Nil Nil Nil
10 | Profit/ (Loss) before taxation 4069.24 Nil -0.45 -0.40
11 | Provision for taxation 1101.97 Nil Nil Nil
12 | Profit / (Loss) after taxation 2967.27 Nil -0.45 -0.40
13 | Proposed Dividend Nil Nil Nil Nil
14 | % of shareholding 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
Notes:
1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations:- Vadilal Industries PTY Ltd, Australia
2. (2) Names of subsidiary which has been liquidated during the year: Not Applicable
NOTES - EXCHANGE RATE Rate of exchange 1 USD - Current Year 73.86

Date : 13* August, 2021
Place : Ahmedabad
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By order of the Board of Directors

Rajesh R. Gandhi
Managing Director

DIN: 00009879
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Managing Director
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ANNEXURE - CTO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Report on Corporate Governance for the year ended on 31 March, 2021 (2020-2021)

o
*

Pursuant to Schedule -V of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015

Brief statement on Company’s philosophy on Code of Governance: -

This report is prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Listing Regulations) and the report contains the details of Corporate Governance
systems and processes at Vadilal Industries Limited (VIL or the Company). At VIL, Corporate Governance is all about maintaining
a valuable relationship and trust with all the stakeholders. We consider stakeholders as partners in our success and remain
committed to maximizing stakeholders’ value, be it Customers, Local Communities, Employees, Suppliers & Distributors, Investors
& Shareholders and Government & Regulatory Authorities.

o
4

9)
10)

The Report on Corporate Governance is divided into ten parts:-

Board of Directors,

Remuneration of Directors,

Committees of the Board,

General Body Meetings,

Means of Communication

General Shareholder information

Other Disclosures

Disclosure of Compliance with Corporate Governance Requirements
Non-compliance, if any, of requirement of Corporate Governance Report

Compliance of discretionary requirements

1) Board of Directors

(@

(i)

Composition and category of Directors:

The Board of the Company comprises Executive and Non-executive Directors. The majority Directors on the Board are Non-
executive Directors. The day-to-day management of the Company is conducted by the Managing Directors of the Company,
subject to the supervision, direction and control of the Board of Directors of the Company.

The Board of Directors of the Company as on 31-03-2021 consists the following 7 Directors, out of which, majority Directors
are Non-executive Directors and one third of the total Directors are Independent Directors: -

Category Name of the Directors

A | Promoters and Executive Directors Mr. Rajesh R. Gandhi, Managing Director
Mr. Devanshu L.Gandhi, Managing director

Mrs. Deval D. Gandhi
Mr. Kalpit R. Gandhi*

Mr. Chetan Tamboli**
Mr. Vijay Shah

Mr. Preet Shah***

8 Ms. Shaily Dedhia***

B | Promoters, Non-executive and Non-Independent
Directors

C Independent Directors

NoOou| b~hw N =

* Mr. Kalpit R. Gandhi is also Chief Financial Officer, Key Managerial Personnel, of the Company.

** During the year Mr. Chetan Tamboli ceased to be Director of the Company w.e.f. 01.10.2020 due to completion of his term as an
independent director of the company.

*** During the year Mr. Preet Shah and Ms. Shaily Dedhia were appointed as an independent director of the Company w.e.f.
30.09.2020

Number of Board Meetings held and the dates on which held:

During the year under review, 11 Board Meetings were held on 18-04-2020, 26-06-2020, 10-08-2020, 13-08-2020, 27-08-2020
(Adjourned and held on 29-08-2020), 31-08-2020, 02-11-2020, 09-11-2020, 22-01-2021, 03-02-2021, 11-02-2021 The gap
between two Board Meetings did not exceed 120 days.
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(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Attendance of each Director at the 11 Board Meetings held during the year from 01-04-2020 to 31-03-2021, last
Annual General Meeting (AGM) and number of Directorship and Chairmanship / Membership of Committee of each
Director in various Companies as on 31-03-2021:

Name of Attendance No. of Directorships and Committee membership/chairmanship held in Listed
Director Particulars Entities (including Vadilal Industries Limited)
Board Last | Name of listed entity in Directorship* Committee Committee
meetings | AGM | which Directorship held Member | Chairmanship **
ship**  (Outof Committee
Membership)

Mr. Rajesh R. 11 Yes |1. Vadilal Industries Limited 3 4 1
Gandhi 2. Vadilal Enterprises Limited

3. Vadilal Chemicals Limited
Mr. Devanshu L. 10 Yes | 1. Vadilal Industries Limited 3 4 0
Gandhi 2. Vadilal Enterprises Limited

3. Vadilal Chemicals Limited
Mrs. Deval D. 10 Yes |1. Vadilal Industries Limited 2 0 0
Gandhi 2. Vadilal Chemicals Limited
Mr. Kalpit R. 10 Yes | 1. Vadilal Industries Limited 2 0 0
Gandhi 2. Vadilal Chemicals Limited
Mr. Chetan M. 5 No | 1. Vadilal Enterprises Limited 2 1 2
Tamboli+ 2. Steel Cast Limited
Mr. Vijay R. Shah 11 Yes |Vadilal Industries Limited 1 3 2
Mr. Preet P. 6 Yes | Vadilal Industries Limited 1 1 1
Shah++
Ms. Shaily 6 Yes |1. Vadilal Industries Limited 2 2 0
Dedhia++ 2. Deep Energy Resources

Limited

+ During the year Mr. Chetan Tamboli ceased to be Director of the Company w.e.f. 01.10.2020 due to completion of his term as an
independent director of the company. He was eligible to attend 6 board meetings.

++ During the year Mr. Preet Shah and Ms. Shaily Dedhia were appointed as independent directors of the Company w.e.f. 30.09.2020.
They were eligible to attend 6 board meetings.

*This excludes Directorships held in Private/Foreign Companies and Companies incorporated under Section 8 of the Companies Act,
2013.

** Committees of Directors include Audit Committee and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee.

None of the Directors of the Company is a member of Board of more than 20 Companies and more than 10 Public Limited
Companies, in terms of Section 165 of the Companies Act, 2013. None of the Directors is a member of more than 10 Board level
Committees or a Chairman of more than 5 such Committees as required under Regulation 26(1) of SEBI (LODR) Regulation,
2015. The necessary disclosures regarding Committee positions have been made by the Directors.

Relationship between the Directors :-
»  Mr. Kalpit R. Gandhi is the son of Mr. Rajesh R. Gandhi.

»  Mrs. Deval D. Gandhi is the spouse of Mr. Devanshu L. Gandhi.

None of the other directors are related to any other director on the Board.

Independent Directors:

Independent Directors (“IDs") are non-executive directors as defined under regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations read
with section 149(6) of the Act along with rules framed thereunder. In terms of regulation 25(8) of the Listing Regulations, the
IDs have confirmed that they are not aware of any circumstance or situation which exists or may be reasonably anticipated
that could impact or impair their ability to discharge their duties. Based on the declarations received from the IDs, the Board
has confirmed that they meet the criteria of independence as mentioned under regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations
and that they are independent of the management.
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(vi)

(vii)

During the year under review, the Company’s Independent Directors met 2 times during the year i.e. on 10-08-2020 & 11-02-
2021 without the presence of Executive Directors or management personnel, to inter alia:

>
>

>

review the performance of non-independent directors and the Board as a whole.

review the performance of the Chairperson of the company, considering the views of executive directors and non-
executive directors.

assess the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the company management and the Board that
is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties.

Familiarization programme for independent director: the said policy is available on website of the Company at
www.vadilalgroup.com.

Information supplied to the Board:-

The information in respect of the following matters, among others, are regularly placed before the Board of Directors:

>

YV V VYV V

Y

YV V V V V V V V V V VY

Annual operating plans and budgets and any updates.

Capital budgets and any updates.

Quarterly results for the company and its operating divisions or business segments.
Minutes of meetings of audit committee and other committees of the board.

The information on recruitment and remuneration of senior officers just below the level of board of directors, including
appointment or removal of Chief Financial Officer and the Company Secretary.

Show cause, demand, prosecution notices and penalty notices which are materially important.
Fatal or serious accidents, dangerous occurrences, any material effluent or pollution problems.

Any material default in financial obligations to and by the company, or substantial nonpayment for goods sold by the
company.

Any issue, which involves possible public or product liability claims of substantial nature, including any judgement or
order which, may have passed strictures on the conduct of the company or taken an adverse view regarding another
enterprise that can have negative implications on the company.

Details of any joint venture or collaboration agreement.
Transactions that involve substantial payment towards goodwill, brand equity, or intellectual property.

Significant labour problems and their proposed solutions. Any significant development in Human Resources/ Industrial
Relations front like signing of wage agreement, implementation of Voluntary Retirement Scheme etc.

Sale of material nature, of investments, subsidiaries, assets, which is not in normal course of business.

Quarterly details of foreign exchange exposures and the steps taken by management to limit the risks of adverse
exchange rate movement, if material.

Non-compliance of any regulatory, statutory or listing requirements and shareholders service such as non-payment of
dividend, delay in share transfer etc.

Appointment, remuneration and resignation of Directors.

Formation/reconstitution of Board Committees.

Declaration of Independent Directors at the time of appointment/annually

Disclosure of Directors'interest and their shareholding

Appointment or removal of the Key Managerial Personnel

Appointment of Internal Auditors and Secretarial Auditors

Quarterly / Annual Secretarial Audit reports submitted by Secretarial Auditors

Dividend declaration

Quarterly summary of all long-term borrowings made, bank guarantees issued and loans and investments made
Significant changes in accounting policies and internal controls

Issue of securities including debentures
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2)

»  Recommending appointment of and fixing of remuneration of the Auditors as recommended by the Audit Committee
»  Internal Audit findings and External Audit Reports (through the Audit Committee)
»  Proposals for major investments, mergers, amalgamations and reconstructions

The Board is routinely presented with all information required under Regulation 17(7) read with Schedule - Il of the SEBI
(LODR) Regulation, 2015 wherever applicable and materially significant. These are normally submitted as a part of the Agenda
papers and circulated in advance to the Directors. Where it is not practicable to attach any document to the agenda, it is tabled
before the meeting with specific reference to this effect in the agenda. In special and exceptional circumstances, additional or
supplementary item(s) on the agenda are permitted. Action taken report on the decision / minutes of the previous meeting is
placed at the immediately succeeding meeting of the Board/Committee for noting by the Board/Committee.

The Board evaluated its own performance and that of its committees and individual directors in terms of the provisions of
Section 134(3)(p) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 17(10) read with Regulation 25(4) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulation,
2015.

Remuneration to all Directors:
The Policy on appointment and remuneration of Directors is available on website of Company at www.vadilalgroup.com.

The aggregate value of salary, perquisites and other allowances paid including contribution towards Provident Fund to the two
Managing Directors of the Company during the year ended on 31-03-2021 (i.e. from 01-04-2020 to 31-03-2021) is as follows: -

Amountin¥
Name of Managing Director Salary Perquisites/ Commission Contribution Total
Allowances to PF
Mr. Rajesh R. Gandhi 5,921,400 2,368,560 0 710,568 9,000,528
Mr. Devanshu L. Gandhi 5,921,400 2,368,560 0 710,568 9,000,528

Besides this, the above Managing Directors are also entitled to Superannuation or Annuity Fund, to the extent not taxable and
Gratuity and encashment of Leave as per Rules of the Company.

The Managing Directors are required to give 3 months’ notice in writing to the Company to resign from the office of Managing
Director. The Company does not have a scheme for grant of stock options either to the Managing Directors or Employees.

Apart from the Managing Directors, Mr. Kalpit R. Gandhi, who is a non-executive and non-independent Director and Chief Financial
Officer of the Company, has received remuneration, in his capacity of Chief Financial Officer, during the year — 2020-2021. Mrs. Deval
D Gandhi who is a non-executive and non-independent Director and Head-new Product development, has received remuneration
as under during the year 2020-2021:

Amountin¥
Name of the Director Salary Perquisites/ Allowances Others Total
Mr. Kalpit R. Gandhi 1,307,676 2,271,624 156,921 3,736,221
Mrs. Deval D. Gandhi 760,691 - - 760,691

Except the above, none of the other Directors are paid remuneration except sitting fees for attending Board and Committee
Meetings.

The Company has paid sitting fees to all Non-executive Directors & Independent Directors of the Company for attending Board
Meetings, as under, held during the year ended on 31-03-2021:

Sr.No. | Name of the Director Amountin¥
(Gross)

1 Mr. Chetan M. Tamboli 40,000

2 Mr. Vijay R. Shah 22,0000

3 Mr. Preet Shah 120,000

4 Ms. Shaily Dedhia 120,000
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The Company has also paid sitting fees to the following Non-executive Directors & Independent Directors of the Company for
attending Audit Committee meetings, held during the year ended on 31-03-2021: -

Sr.No.  Name of the Director Amountin¥
(Gross)

1 Mr. Chetan M. Tamboli 12,500

2 Mr. Vijay R. Shah 75,000

3 Mr. Preet Shah 25,000

4 Ms. Shaily Dedhia 25,000

The Company has also paid sitting fees to the following Non-executive Directors & Independent Directors of the Company for
attending Nomination and Remuneration Committee meeting, held during the year ended on 31-03-2021: -

Sr.No.  Name of the Director Amountin?¥
(Gross)

1 Mr. Chetan M. Tamboli 10,000

2 Mr. Vijay R. Shah 50,000

3 Mr. Preet Shah 10,000

4 Ms. Shaily Dedhia 10,000

The Non-executive Directors & Independent Directors of the Company are also reimbursed the traveling and out-of-pocket
expenses for attending such meetings.

Managing Directors Mr. Rajesh R. Gandhi & Mr. Devanshu L. Gandhi are holding 227,721 and 345,691 shares respectively. Mrs. Deval
D. Gandhi is holding 59,266 Equity Shares of the Company. Except Mrs. Deval D. Gandhi, no other Non-executive Directors of the
Company hold any shares in the Company.

There was no pecuniary relationship or transaction of Independent Directors with the Company.

Key Board Qualifications, Expertise and Attributes

The company’s business includes manufacturing of Ice-cream, Flavoured Milk, Frozen desert, Other dairy Products and processing
& exporting Processed Food Products such as Frozen Fruits, vegetable Pulp, Ready to eat and Ready to serve products etc.

In context of the above mentioned businesses following capabilities skills/expertise/competencies have been identified by the
Board fundamental for the effective functioning of the Company and are available with the board members collectively.

. Knowledge and/or expertise in one or more of areas like consumer business, manufacturing, accounts, finance, taxation,
banking, HR, IT, marketing, law, business and management.

. This criterion is designed to ensure the Board consists of individuals with a balance of skills to oversee the organisation,
achieve the strategic goals and direct the organisation’s future.

. The above core skills / expertise / competencies identified by the Company are also actually available with the Board as under:

Sr. | Name of Director Skills Actually Available with the Directors
No.
1 | Mr.Rajesh R. Gandhi Knowledge and expertise in FMCG, manufacturing and marketing, business and
management.
2 | Mr. Devanshu L. Gandhi Knowledge and expertise in FMCG, manufacturing and marketing, business and
management.
3 | Mrs. Deval D. Gandhi Knowledge and expertise in marketing and product development.
4 | Mr. Kalpit R. Gandhi Knowledge and expertise in law & Finance
5 | Mr.Vijay R. Shah Knowledge and expertise in law & Finance
6 | Mr. Preet Shah Knowledge and expertise in Finance
7 | Ms. Shaily Dedhia Knowledge and expertise in Corporate Laws

The eligibility of a person to be appointed as a Director of the Company is dependent on possession of the requisite skills, as
identified by the Board. c. Board Meetings / Directors’ particulars.
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3) Committees of the Board:

The Board of Directors of the Company has formulated the following committees in terms of the provisions of the SEBI (LODR)
Regulation, 2015 and Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder:

(a)

(e)

Audit Committee

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

Risk Management Committee

The composition and terms of reference of the said committees are as under:

(a)

Audit Committee:

0]

(ii)

(iii)

Composition
As on 31-03-2021, there were 3 members of Audit Committee as under: -

Sr.No.  Name of the Member Designation Category
1 Mr. Preet Shah - Chairman Independent Director
2 Mr. Vijay Shah - Member Independent Director
3 Ms. Shaily Dedhia - | Member Independent Director

Mr. Kalpit Gandhi CFO and Non-Executive-Non-Independent Director and Mr. Devanshu Gandhi Managing Director are
Permanent Invitees in the Audit Committee.

The constitution of the Audit Committee fulfills the requirements of Regulation 18 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulation,
2015 and Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. The members of audit committee are financially literate and having
accounting or related financial management expertise.

Mrs. Rashmi Bhatt, who is a Company Secretary of the Company, is the Secretary to the Audit Committee.

Meeting and Attendance:

The Audit Committee met 6 times during the year under review on 26.6.2020, 10.08.2020, 13.08.2020, 02.11.2020,
09.11.2020 and 11.02.2021

The presence of the Members of the aforesaid Audit Committee Meetings was as under:

Sr.No. | Name of the Director No. of Audit Committee Meetings attended.
1 Mr. Chetan M. Tamboli* 3
2 Mr. Devanshu L. Gandhi* 2
3 Mr. Vijay R. Shah 6
4 Ms. Shaily Dedhia* 3
5 Mr. Preet Shah* 3

*Mr. Chetan Tamboli, Mr. Devanshu Gandhi, Ms. Shaily Dedhia and Mr. Preet Shah was eligible to attend 3 meetings.

The representative of the Statutory Auditors was present in all meetings of the Audit Committee. The Internal Auditors
were present in the meetings as and when called for. The Managing Directors of the Company were also generally invited
to attend the Audit Committee meetings. The Minutes of the Audit Committee Meetings are placed before all Directors
of the Company at the time of Board Meeting and are confirmed in the Board Meeting.

Terms of reference:

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are as under and they are in accordance with the provisions of Regulation
18 read with Part C of Schedule Il of the SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015 and Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013:

1. The recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the company;

2. Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process;
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3.

© N o w»n R

10.
11.
12.

14.
15.

18.
19.

Examination of the financial statement and the auditors’ report thereon; Reviewing, with the management,
the annual financial statements and auditor’s report thereon before submission to the board for approval, with
particular reference to:

a.  Matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be included in the Board's report
in terms of clause (c) of sub-section 3 of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013;

Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same;

Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management;
Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings;
Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements;

Disclosure of any related party transactions;

e - o o 0T

Modified Opinions/Quialifications in the draft audit report

Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties;
Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary;

Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an issue (public
issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated
in the offer document / prospectus / notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the
utilisation of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate recommendations to the Board to take
up steps in this matter;

Oversight of the company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to ensure that
the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible;

Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors;
Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the board for approval;

Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the internal control
systems;

Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit department,
staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal
audit;

Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on;

Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is suspected
fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the
board;

Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as
post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern;

To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, shareholders
(in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;

To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism;

Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e., the whole-time Finance Director or any other person heading the finance
function or discharging that function) after assessing the qualifications, experience and background, etc. of the
candidate”

(b) Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

(i) Composition

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company comprises the following Directors of the Company, as
on 31t March, 2021, namely:

Sr.No. | Name of the Member Designation Category
1 Mr. Preet Shah - | Chairman Independent Director
2 Mr. Vijay R. Shah - | Member Independent Director
3 Ms. Shaily Dedhia - | Member Independent Director

Mr. Kalpit Gandhi CFO and Non-Executive-Non-Independent Director is Permanent Invitee in the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee meeting.
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(i)

(iii)

(iv)

The constitution of Nomination and Remuneration Committee fulfills the requirements of the Regulation 19 of the SEBI
(LODR) Regulation, 2015 and Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. All members of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee are independent Directors of the Company.

Meeting and attendance:

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee normally meets for considering proposal related to appointment and/or
remuneration of any Director or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and for considering any other matter as may
be specified under the terms of reference of the committee.

During the year under review, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee met 5 times on 26.06.2020, 10.08.2020,
13.08.2020, 27.08.2020 and 11.02.2021

The presence of the Members of the aforesaid Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meetings are as under:

Sr.No.  Name of the Member No. of meetings attended
1 Mr. Chetan M. Tamboli* - 4
2 Ms. Deval D. Gandhi* - 3
3 Mr. Vijay R. Shah 5
4 Mr. Preet Shah** - 1
5 Ms. Shaily Dedhia** - 1

* Ms. Deval D. Gandhi and Mr. Chetan M. Tamboli was eligible to attend 4 committee meeting
**Mr. Preet Shah and Ms. Shaily Dedhia was eligible to attend only 1 committee meeting

Terms of Reference:

Pursuant to Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Meeting of Board and its Powers) and
Regulation 19 read with Part — D of Schedule - II of SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015, the role of the Nomination and
Remuneration committee shall, inter-alia, include the following:

1. Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director and
recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and
other employees;

2. Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board of Directors;
3. Devising a policy on diversity of the Board of Directors;

4.  Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior management in
accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the Board their appointment and removal.

5. Whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the basis of the report of
performance evaluation of independent directors.

Performance evaluation of all the Directorand Key Managerial Personnel carried out by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee of the Company apart from the Board of Directors and Independent Directors.

Performance evaluation criteria of Independent Directors

The Performance Evaluation criteria for independent director are determined by Nomination and Remuneration
Committee. An indicative list of factors on which evaluation was carried out includes participation and contribution by
Directors, Commitments, Effective Deployment of Knowledge and Expertise, Integrity and Maintenance of Confidentiality
and Independence of Behavior and Judgement.

(c) Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee:

(i)

Composition:

The Stakeholders'Relationship Committee of the Company comprises the following Directors of the Company, as on 31
March, 2021, namely:

Sr.No. | Name of the Member Designation Category
1 Mr. Vijay R. Shah - | Chairman Independent Director
2 Mr. Rajesh R. Gandhi - |Member Executive Director
3 Mr. Devanshu L. Gandhi - | Member Executive Director
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(i)

(iii)

The constitution of Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee fulfills the requirements of Regulation 20 read with Part D of
Schedule Il of the SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015 and Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Committee, inter alia, approves the transfer of Shares, issue of duplicate Share Certificates, splitting and consolidation
of Shares etc. The Committee also looks after redressal of Shareholder’s complaints like transfer of shares, non-receipt
of balance sheet, non-receipt of dividends, etc. The Board of Directors has delegated the power of approving transfer of
Shares etc. to the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee.

During the year under review, the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee met 5 times on, 20.07.2020, 30.09.2020,
20.11.2020, 20.02.2021 and 10.03.2021.

The presence of the Members of the aforesaid Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee meetings is as under:

Sr.No.  Name of the Member No. of meetings attended
1 Mr. Vijay R. Shah - 5
2 Mr. Rajesh R. Gandhi - 5
3 Mr. Devanshu L. Gandhi - 5

No. of Shareholders complaints received and not solved to the satisfaction of the Shareholders:

The total number of complaints received and replied to the satisfaction of Shareholders during the year under review
were as under :

No. of Complaints outstanding as on 31-03-2020 -

No. of complaints received during the year under review -

No. of complaints disposed off during the year under review -

o |o o |o

No. of complaints outstanding as on 31-03-2021 -

Name and designation of Compliance Officer:

The Board has designated Ms. Rashmi Bhatt, Dy. General Manager (Secretarial) and Company Secretary, as the Compliance
Officer of the Company in terms of Regulation 6 and 20 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015.

(d) Risk Management Committee:

(i

(ii)

Composition:

In terms of provisions of Regulation 21(2) (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement), 2015 has been constituted as
Risk Management Committee, comprising the following Directors:

«  Mr. Preet Shah - Chairperson
% Mr. Kalpit Gandhi - Member
% Mr. Devanshu Gandhi - Member
% Ms. Shaily Dedhia - Member

Terms of Reference:
»  Toformulate a detailed risk management policy which shall include:

(@) A framework for identification of internal and external risks specifically faced by the listed entity, in particular
including financial, operational, sectoral, sustainability (particularly, ESG related risks), information, cyber
security risks or any other risk as may be determined by the Committee.

(b) Measures for risk mitigation including systems and processes for internal control of identified risks.
(c) Business continuity plan.

»  To ensure that appropriate methodology, processes and systems are in place to monitor and evaluate
risks associated with the business of the Company;

»  To monitor and oversee implementation of the risk management policy, including evaluating the
adequacy of risk management systems;

»  To periodically review the risk management policy, at least once in two years, including by considering
the changing industry dynamics and evolving complexity;

»  Tokeeptheboardofdirectorsinformed about the nature and content of its discussions, recommendations
and actions to be taken
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»  The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief Risk Officer (if any) shall be subject to
review by the Risk Management Committee.

The Risk Management Committee shall coordinate its activities with other committees, in instances where there is any
overlap with activities of such committees, as per the framework laid down by the board of directors.

(e) Corporate Social Responsibility Committee:

0]

(i)

(iii)

Composition:

In terms of provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder, a committee of the
Directors of the Company has been constituted as Corporate Social Responsibility Committee, comprising the following
Directors:

1. Mr.Vijay R. Shah - Chairman
2. Mr.Devanshu L. Gandhi - Member
3. Mr.Kalpit R. Gandhi - Member

The constitution of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee fulfills the requirements of Section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

Meeting of Committee members was held on 11.02.2021 and all the members were present.

Terms of Reference:
The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee shall, —

1. Formulate and recommend to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy which shall indicate the activities
to be undertaken by the company as specified in Schedule VII;

Recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities referred to in clause (a);
Monitor the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the company from time to time and;

4. Institute a transparent mechanism for implementation of the CSR Projects or programs or activities undertaken by
the Company.

Corporate Social Responsibility Policy:

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee has formulated a policy on the measures to be undertaken by the
Company as specified in Schedule VIl to the Companies Act, 2013.

4) General Body Meetings:

(i) Location and Time for last 3 Annual General Meetings (AGM) were along with details of Special Resolution Passed:

Year AGM | Location Date Time | Special Resolution Passed

2019-2020 | 36" | Though Video Conference and| 30-09-2020 | 11.00a.m.|1. To Appoint Mr. Rajesh R. Gandhi

other Audio-Visual Means (DIN: 00009879) as a Managing
Director for a period of 5 years
and payment of remuneration for
a period of 3 years

2.  To Appoint Mr. Devanshu L.
Gandhi (DIN: 00010146) as a
Managing Director for a period
of 5 years and payment of
remuneration for a period of 3
years

2018-2019 | 35" | HT Parekh Convention Center, 1*t| 30-09-2019 | 11.00 a.m. | No special resolution.

Floor, Ahmedabad Management
Association, ATIRA  Campus,
Dr. Vikram Sarabhai Marg,
Ahmedabad, Gujarat 380 015

2017-2018 34" | HT Parekh Convention Center, 1*t| 24-09-2018 | 11.00 a.m. | No special resolution.

Floor, Ahmedabad Management
Association, ATIRA  Campus,
Dr. Vikram Sarabhai Marg,
Ahmedabad, Gujarat 380 015

(ii) Resolution carried out through Postal Ballot: NIL

34 | VADILAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED



T vadiley T

5)

6)

Means of communication:

>

Annual Reports:

The Company has total 11307 shareholders as on 31t March, 2021. The main channel of communication to the shareholders
is through Annual Report, which includes inter alia, the Director’s Report, Management Discussions & Analysis and Report on
Corporate Governance and Audited Financial Results. The Annual Report is also posted on the web-site of the Company viz.
www.vadilalgroup.com/reports.

Quarterly Results:

The Unaudited Quarterly Results of the Company for the quarters ended on 30-06-2020 (1*t Quarter), 30-09-2020 (2" Quarter)
and 31-12-2020 (3" Quarter) and the Annual Audited Accounts for the year ended on 31-03-2021 including notes, results
and also the Consolidated Financial Results and Limited Review Report thereon were submitted to the Stock Exchanges
immediately after conclusion of the Board Meetings in which, they are approved by the Board.

The said results were published in the newspapers of Ahmedabad edition, namely, Indian Express (English) and
Financial Express (Gujarati). The said results including Notes are displayed on the corporate website of the Company viz.
www.vadilalgroup.com/reports.

Company’s Web-site:

The website of the Company viz. www.vadilalgroup.com has an exhaustive Investor-Relations section. It contains
comprehensive guidelines and procedure for the investors. It also contains all statutory disclosures required to be placed
under the provisions of various statute.

NSE Electronic Application Processing System (NEAPS):

The NEAPS www.connect2nse.com/LISTING/is a web-based application designed by NSE for corporates. All periodical
compliancefilings like shareholding pattern, corporate governance report, media releases,among others are filed electronically
on NEAPS.

BSE Corporate Compliance & Listing Centre (the 'Listing Centre’):

BSE’s Listing Centre viz. www.listing.bseindia.comis a web-based application designed for corporates. All periodical compliance
filings like shareholding pattern, corporate governance report, media releases, among others are also filed electronically on
the Listing Centre.

SEBI Complaints Redress System (SCORES):

The investor complaints are processed in a centralised web-based complaints redress system. The salient features of this
system are centralised database of all complaints, online upload of Action Taken Reports (ATRs) by concerned companies and
online viewing by investors of actions taken on the complaint and its current status.

Designated Exclusive email-id:

The Company has designated email-id viz. shareslogs@vadilalgroup.com exclusively for resolving investor grievance.

General Shareholder’ information:

0]

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Annual General Meeting, i.e. next AGM
. Date & Time : 18 September, 2021 at 11.00 a.m.

. Venue: Video Conferencing (“VC") / Other Audio-Visual Means (“OAVM")

Financial Calendar (from 01-04-2021 to 31-03-2022) (Tentative):

»  Results for quarter ended on 30-06-2021 : On or before 14 August, 2021

»  Results for quarter ending on 30-09-2021 :On or before 14" November, 2021
»  Results for quarter ending on 31-12-2021 :On or before 14" February, 2022
»  Audited Results for the year ending on 31-03-2022 : On or before 30" May, 2022

»  AGM for the year ending on 31-03-2022 :In the month of September, 2022

Book-closure date:

Book-closure shall be from 11% September, 2021 to 18" September, 2021 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of annual
general meeting for the year ended on 31 March, 2021.

Dividend payment date:
N.A.
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(v) Listing of Equity Shares on Stock Exchanges at -
The Company’s shares are listed at the BSE Limited (BSE) and National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE).

BSE Limited

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers
Dalal Street

Mumbai- 400001

Phone: 91-22-2272 1234 /1233

The National Stock Exchange of India Ltd.
Exchange Plaza, Plot no. C/1, G Block,
Bandra-Kurla Complex

Bandra (E), Mumbai - 400 051

Phone: 91-22-26598100/8114

Listing fees upto the Financial Year —2021-2022 has already been paid to the above Stock Exchanges. The Annual Custody/
Issuer fee for the year —2020-2021 has also been paid by the Company to NSDL and CDSL.

(vi) Security Code No.:
> BSE Limited : 519156

»  National Stock Exchange of (India) Limited : VADILALIND-EQ
» ISIN No. of NSDL & CDSL for demat of Equity Shares : INE694D01016

(vii) Stock Market Data:

The monthly High, Low and Closing Prices of Shares of the Company at BSE Limited, (BSE) and National Stock Exchange of
India Limited (NSE), for the year under review are as under:

BSE NSE
Months High Low | Closing () High Low | Closing ()
) (] R) )
April-2020 575.85 450.05 505.75 570 440.85 509.20
May-2020 555 477.1 5257 552 473.30 528.85
June-2020 573 507.05 520.45 574.90 505.45 521.40
July-2020 666.2 500.4 602.6 665 501 602.95
August-2020 749.5 583.6 703.9 749.70 583 704.95
September-2020 8334 665 790 834 665.05 785.95
October-2020 829.95 770.75 779 815 770.15 779.25
November-2020 876.15 763.2 808.3 833.90 750.1 808.95
December-2020 869 744.95 758.4 830.05 745 759.80
January-2021 840.25 751 810.9 835 755 809.60
February-2021 905 773.25 879.6 898.70 772.65 878.90
March-2021 979 865.6 898.7 980 870.00 895.65
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(viii) Vadilal Industries Limited BSE Share Price versus the BSE Sensex :

Market - Price data : The monthly closing prices of the shares of the Company, during the financial year under review and
performance of the same in comparison to BSE Sensex are given below :

Month BSE Closing Sensex Closing
April-2020 505.75 33,717.62
May-2020 525.7 32,424.10
June-2020 520.45 34,915.80
July-2020 602.6 37,606.89
August-2020 703.9 38,628.29
September-2020 790 38,067.93
October-2020 779 39,614.07
November-2020 808.3 44,149.72
December-2020 758.4 47,751.33
January-2021 810.9 46,285.77
February-2021 879.6 49,099.99
March-2021 898.7 49,509.15
Price Chart:
Stock Performance viz-a-viz BSE Prices
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(ix) Vadilal Industries Limited NSE Share Price versus the NSE NIFTY

(x)

Market - Price data: The monthly closing prices of the shares of the Company, during the financial year under review and
performance of the same in comparison to NSE Nifty are given below :

Month NSE Closing Nifty Closing
April-2020 509.20 9859.90
May-2020 528.85 9580.30
June-2020 521.40 10302.10
July-2020 602.95 11073.45
August-2020 704.95 11387.50
September-2020 785.95 11247.55
October-2020 779.25 11642.40
November-2020 808.95 12968.95
December-2020 759.80 13981.75
January-2021 809.60 13634.60
February-2021 878.90 14529.15
March-2021 895.65 14690.70

Price Chart:

Stock Performance viz-a-viz NSE Prices
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Registrar and Transfer Agent:

In terms of SEBI Circular No. D&CC/FITTC/CIR-15/2002, dated 27-12-2002, the Company has assigned all work related to Share
Registry in terms of both physical and electronic to MCS Share Transfer Agent Ltd., Ahmedabad, by entering into an Agreement
with the said R&T Agent to that effect. Hence, all Shareholders are requested to send/deliver the documents/correspondence
including complaints relating to the Company’s share transfer/demat/remat activity to

MCS Share Transfer Agent Limited
201, Shatdal Complex, 2" Floor, Opp. Bata Show Room, Ashram Road, Ahmedabad - 380 0009.
Tel. Nos. : (079) 26580461/62/63 Fax No.: (079) 26581296
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(xi)

(xii)

Share Transfer system:

Presently, the requests for share transfer, which are received by the Company or its Registrar & Share Transfer Agent, in physical
form, from the shareholders, are processed and the share certificates are returned to the shareholders, within a period of 15/30
days from the date of receipt of such request for transfer, subject to the documents being valid and complete in all respects.
The Share Transfer & Investors’ Grievance Committee of the Company, normally meets twice a month to approve the transfer,
issue of duplicate share certificates, consolidation and splitting of shares etc.

Share Reconciliation Audit:

M/s PRT & Associates, practicing Company Secretaries carried out Share Reconciliation audit for all quarters in the Financial
Year —2020-2021, to reconcile the total admitted capital with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central
Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) and total issued and listed capital. The audit reports confirm that the total issued /
paid-up capital is in agreement with the total number of shares in physical form and the total number of dematerialized shares
held with depositories.

Pursuant to SEBI Cir. D&CC/FITTC/CIR-16/2002 dated December, 2002, certificates, on half-yearly basis, have been issued by a
Practicing Company Secretary for due compliance of share transfer formalities by the Company.

(xiii) Shareholding Details:

(a) Distribution of Shareholding as on 31 March, 2021:

No. of Equity No. of No. of Shares | % of Shareholding
Shares held Shareholders

1-500 10920 602934 8.38
501-1000 176 135629 1.88
1001-2000 83 121371 1.68
2001-3000 31 76043 1.05
3001-4000 14 49180 0.68
4001-5000 15 67241 0.93
5001-10000 25 189913 2.64
10001- 50000 25 409568 5.69
50001-100000 3 205543 2.85
100001 & above 15 5330408 74.15
Total: 11307 7187830 100.00

(b) Categories of Shareholders as on 31t March, 2021:

Sr. | Category of Shareholders No. of Equity Percentage of total
No. Shares held paid-up capital

A: Promoters and Promoters’ Group
1 Directors and relatives 1056871 14.70
2 | Group Companies 3413175 47.49
3 HUFs 182110 2.54
Total (A): 4652156 64.72

B: Public:

1. | Mutual Funds 600 0.00
2. | Bodies Corporate 557621 7.75
3. | Public Individuals 1736859 24.15
4. | Trust and Foundations 12000 0.18
6. | Non-Resident Indians 49519 0.69
7. | Hindu Undivided Families 94759 1.32
8. IEPF 84316 1.18
Total (B): 2535674 35.27
Total 7187830 100.00
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Percentage of total paid-up capital

m Promoter Group mTrust mIndividual mIEPF =NRI + HUF  Body Corporate

(xiv) Dematerialisation of Shares :

The Company, consequent to introduction of Depository System (DS), has established an electronic connectivity with
NSDL & CDSL, Depositories. Members, therefore, have the option of holding and dealing in the shares of the Company in
electronic form through NSDL and CDSL. In view of the numerous advantages offered by the DS, members are requested
to avail the facility of dematerialisation of the Company’s shares on either of the Depositories as aforesaid.

If you wish to maintain your shareholding in the electronic form by joining DS, you will have to open an account with
a Depository Participant (DP), who are agents of NSDL or CDSL and lodge your share certificates with your DP for
Dematerialisation. The DP will then ensure that the physical share certificates are cancelled and after verification by the
Company, an equivalent number of shares will be credited to your account with the DP in the electronic form. You are
also permitted under the DS to reconvert your electronic shareholding into the physical form of share certificates by a
process of Rematerialisation. It may be noted that the DP would charge the investors for its services, which may vary from
one DP to another.

It is reiterated that requests for Dematerialisation and Rematerialisation are to be made only to the DP with whom you
have opened an account and not directly to the Company or its Registrar & Share Transfer Agent.

Total 7015251 Equity Shares of the Company representing 97.59% of the total paid-up capital of the Company have been
dematerialized upto 31-03-2021. Trading in Equity Shares of the Company is permitted only in dematerialised form as
per notification issued by SEBI.

(xv) Dividend History for last 10 years:

Financial | Dividend Per Dividend Per Share (Rs.)
year Share (%) 16

2010-11 1.50

2011-12 1.50

2012-13 1.50

2013-14 1.00

2014-15 1.00

2015-16 1.25

2016-17 1.25

2017-18 1.25

2018-19 1.25

2019-20 N.A

2020_2" NA 2010-11  2011-12  2012-13  2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21

(xvi) Outstanding GDRs / ADRs / Warrants or any Convertible Instruments, conversion date and likely impact on Equity:

Not Applicable
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(xvii)Plant locations:

A. Ice-cream Division: : | 1) Village Pundhra, Taluka Mansa, Dist. Gandhinagar (Gujarat)

2)  Parsakhera Industrial Area, Bareilly, Uttar Pradesh.

B. Processed Food Division: : | Dharampur, Dist. Valsad (Gujarat)

C. ForexDivision: : | Vadilal House, Navrangpura, Ahmedabad (Gujarat)

(xviii) Investor Correspondence:

For transfer and dematerialisation of shares, payment of dividend on shares and interest and redemption on debentures
and any other query relating to the shares of the Company: -

1) MCS Share Transfer Agent Limited, (Unit: Vadilal Industries Limited),
201, Shatdal Complex, 2" Floor, Opp. Bata Show Room, Ashram Road, Ahmedabad - 380 009.
Tel. Nos. : (079) 26580461/62/63 Fax No.: (079) 26581296

2)  Secretarial & Share Department
9t Floor, Colonnade Building, Opp. Iskon Temple BRTS Bus Stop, Bopal-Ambli Road, Bopal, Ahmedabad.
Contact person: Ms. Rashmi Bhatt, Company Secretary
Tel. Nos.: (079) 48081200

3)  E-mail ID for investors’ grievance purpose: shareslogs@vadilalgroup.com

Shareholders holding shares in electronic mode should address all their correspondence to their respective Depository
Participant.

(xix) Amalgamation of Vadilal Financial Services Ltd. with Vadilal Industries Limited - Exchange of Share Certificates:

(xx)

Vadilal Financial Services Ltd. (VFSL), which was a Subsidiary Company, was amalgamated with Vadilal Industries Limited
(VIL) w.ef. 1t April, 1997. It is observed that some of the members of VFSL have still not exchanged their Share Certificates
for new Shares of VIL on amalgamation of VFSL with VIL. As the Share Certificates of VFSL are no longer valid, concerned
Shareholders are requested to surrender their Share Certificates of VFSL at the Registered Office of the Company to
enable them to get new Shares of VIL in the ratio of 1:4.

Nomination facility:

Your Company has already offered the facility of nomination to the members. Individual Shareholders can avail of the
facility of nomination and may submit to the Company the prescribed SH-13 at the Share Department of the Company.
It is advisable to avail of this facility especially by Shareholders who currently hold Shares in single name. In case of any
assistance, please contract at the Share Department of the Company at -

9" Floor, Colonnade Building, Opp. Iskon Temple BRTS Bus Stop, Bopal-Ambli Road, Bopal, Ahmedabad.
Contact person: Ms. Rashmi Bhatt, Company Secretary
Tel. Nos.: (079) 48081200

(xxi) Commodity price risk/foreign exchange risk and hedging activities

Hedging of Foreign Exchange Risk is discussed amongst internal departments like Export Department and Forex
Advisory service Department before hedging the Forward Contract and subsequently Foreign exchange risk is hedged
accordingly.

As on 31.03.2021 the Unhedge exposure is NIL.

7) Other Disclosures:

(@

Related party transactions:

Transaction with related parties are disclosed in Note No. 45 of the Notes on Accounts for the year ended on 31 March, 2021,
in the Annual Report as required by the Indian Accounting Standard (IND-AS) issued by ICAI.

The details of Related party transactions made by the Company during the year under review are mentioned in the Directors

’

Report.

However, there are no materially significant related party transactions made by the Company with its promoters, directors or
the management or their subsidiaries etc. that may have potential conflict with the interests of the Company at large.

The Independent Directors, who apart from receiving sitting fees for attending Board Meetings and Committee Meetings, do
not have any other material pecuniary relationship or transactions with the company, its promoters, its management or its
subsidiary, which in the judgment of the Board may affect independence of the judgment of the Directors.
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(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

The Directors regularly make full disclosures to the Board of Directors regarding nature of their interest in the Companies in
which they are Directors or Members. Full particulars of contract entered with the Companies / Partnership Firms, in which the
Directors are directly or indirectly concerned or interested are entered in the Register of Contract maintained under Section
189 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the same is placed in every Board Meeting for the noting and signature of the Directors.

The policy on related party transaction is placed on the company website at www.vadilalgroup.com

During the last three years, there were following penalties imposed on the Company by either SEBI or the Stock Exchanges or
any statutory authority for non-compliance of any matter related to the capital markets.

Penalty paid to BSE limited and National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. for delay in declaration of Unaudited financial results for
quarter ended 30" September, 2018 of ¥ 76,700/- to each stock exchange.

Penalty paid to BSE limited and National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. for delay in declaration of audited financial results for
quarter ended 31t March, 2019 and delay in declaration of unaudited financial results for quarter ended 30" June, 2019 of
% 5,60,500/- to each stock exchange.

Penalty paid to BSE limited and National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. for delay in appointment of independent woman
director in the company of ¥ 8,85,000/- to each stock exchange.

Risk Management:

Business risk evaluation and management is an ongoing process within the Company. During the year under review, the Board
of Directors has reviewed frequently the risk assessment and minimization procedure adopted by the Company covering the
business operations of the Company.

CEO/CFO Certification:

In terms of Regulation 17(8) read with Part — B of Schedule - Il of the SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015 the Certification by CEO and
CFO on the financial statements and internal controls relating to financial reporting of the Company has been obtained and is
a part of the Annual Report.

Management:

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report is set out in a separate section included in this Annual Report and forms part
of this report.

Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 26(5) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015 the Senior Management has made
disclosures to the Board that during the year ended on 31 March, 2021, they have not entered into any material financial
and commercial transactions, where they have personal interest that may have a potential conflict with the interest of the
Company.

Code of Conduct:

The Board of Directors has adopted the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for Directors and Senior Management Personnel.
The said Code has been communicated to all the Directors and members of Senior Management. They have also affirmed to
the Company about the compliance of the said Code during the Financial Year ended on 315t March, 2020. The Code has also
been posted on the Company’s website - www.vadilalgroup.com The Certificate received from Managing Directors of the
Company, affirming compliance of the said Code of Conduct by all the Board Members and the Senior Management Personnel
is annexed separately to this Report.

Whistle Blower policy / Vigil Mechanism:

The Company has a Vigil mechanism and Whistle blower policy under which the employees are free to report any act of
serious misconduct or wrongful activity being occurred or suspected to occur within the organization, to his immediate HOD
or the HR Head or directly to the concern Managing Director of the Company, as he may desire. No employee of the Company
is denied access to the Audit Committee.

(viii) Policy on Directors’ appointment and remuneration:

(ix)

The Policy on Directors’ appointment and remuneration as recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
and approved by the Board of Directors is placed on the company website at www.vadilalgroup.com.

Policy on determining ‘material’ subsidiary:

The Company has prepared policy on determining‘material’ subsidiary pursuant to regulation 16 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulation,
2015 were criteria for determining material subsidiary has been clearly specified

The policy on the same has been placed on the company website at www.vadilalgroup.com.
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(x)

(xi)

(xii)

Code of Conduct under SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015:

The Company has formulated Code of Internal Procedures and Conduct for Regulating, Monitoring and Reporting of Trading
by Insiders including therein Code of Conduct for fair disclosures of price sensitive information of the Company, in terms of
provisions of SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulation, 2015. The same has also been published on the web-site of the
Company viz. www.vadilalgroup.com.

Disclosure on Audit and Non-Audit Services rendered by the Auditor:

The SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018 requires to disclose total fees paid
to auditors for audit and non-audit services to improve transparency. The total fee paid to the Statutory Auditor during the
FY2020-21 is as under:

a. Fees paid for Audit Service : ¥ 22.50 Lacs
b.  Feesfor Non-Audit Service : ¥ 7.50Lacs
Total fee Paid : ¥30.00 Lacs

Credit Rating
During the year company has obtained credit rating from following credit rating agencies:

India Ratings & Research:

Term Loan - IND BBB/Negative

Fund-based Bank Facilities - IND BBB/Negative
Non-fund-based Bank Facilities -IND A3+

(xiii) Certificate Non-Disqualification of Directors

The Company has obtained a certificate pursuant to the regulation 34(3) read with schedule V of the Listing regulation from
SPAN & Co. Company Secretaries LLP confirming that none of the Directors on the board of the Company have been debarred
or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of the Company either by SEBI or MCA or any other statutory
authority which is attached to this Report as Annexure - 1.

(xiv) There are no complaints during the year in relation to sexual harassment of woman at workplace (prevention, prohibition and

(xv)

redressal) act, 2013
Details of compliance with mandatory requirements under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015

The Company has disclosed compliance with all the mandatory requirements under Listing Regulations in the relevant
sections of this report.

8) Disclosure of Compliance with Corporate Governance requirements:

The Company has duly complied with the Corporate Governance requirements as specified in Regulation 17 to 27 of and clauses
(b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015.

9) Non-Compliance, if any, of requirements of Corporate Governance Report:

There is no instance of non-compliance of any requirement of corporate governance report as specified in sub-paras (2) to (10) of
Part C of Schedule -V of the SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015.

3
”e

Compliance Certificate of the Auditors:

The Certificate from M/s. SPAN & Co. Company Secretaries LLP, a firm of Practicing Company Secretaries, confirming compliance
with conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated under SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015, is attached to this Report as
Annexure - 2.

By order of the Board of Directors

Rajesh R. Gandhi Devanshu L. Gandhi
Date : 13 August, 2021 Managing Director Managing Director
Place : Ahmedabad DIN: 00009879 DIN: 00010146
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Certificate by Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and Chief Financial Officer (CFO)

[As per Schedule Il, Part B read with Regulation 17(8) of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulation, 2015]

We the undersigned, certify that:

(@) We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement of Vadilal Industries Limited for the year ended 31t March, 2021
that to the best of their knowledge and belief:

1. These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that might
be misleading;

2. These statements together present a true and fair view of the listed entity’s affairs and are in compliance with existing
accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

(b) There are, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the listed entity during the year which are
fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s code of conduct.

(c) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that we have evaluated the
effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed to the auditors
and the audit committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which We are aware and the
steps they have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

(d) We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit committee
1. That there were no Significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;

2. That there were no significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements; and

3. Thatthere were no instances of significant fraud of which they have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the
management or an employee having a significant role in the listed entity’s internal control system over financial reporting.

Place: Ahmedabad Kalpit Gandhi Rajesh Gandhi Devanshu Gandhi
Date: 13t August, 2021 Chief Financial Officer Managing Director Managing Director

Declaration Regarding Affirmation of Code of Conduct

In terms of the requirement of the Regulation 26 of SEBI (Listing obligations and Disclosure Requirements) regulations, 2015 regarding
Corporate Governance, we hereby confirm that all Board members and senior Management Personnel of Vadilal Industries Limited have
affirmed the Compliance of code of Business Conduct & Ethics during the year ended on 315t March, 2021

Rajesh Gandhi Devanshu Gandhi
Place: Ahmedabad Managing Director Managing Director
Date: 13" August, 2021 DIN: 00009879 DIN: 00010146
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ANNEXURE - 1
CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

[pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015]

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of VADILAL INDUSTRIES
LIMITED having CIN L91110GJ1982PLC005169 and having registered office at Vadilal House, 53, Shrimali Society, Nr. Navrangpura Police
Station, Ahmedabad - 380009, Gujarat, India (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before us by the Company for the
purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification Number (DIN)
status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to us by the Company & its officers, We hereby
certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on 31 March, 2021 have
been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of
India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any other Statutory Authority:

Sr.No. |Name of Director DIN Date of Appointment*
1. Rajesh Ramchandrabhai Gandhi 00009879 01/04/2009
2. Devanshu Laxmanbhai Gandhi 00010146 01/04/2008
3. Vijaykumar Ratilal Shah 00376570 11/11/2016
4. Deval Devanshu Gandhi 00988905 31/03/2015
5. Kalpit Rajeshbhai Gandhi 02843308 31/03/2015
6. Preet Prakashbhai Shah 05131516 29/08/2020
7. Shaily Jatin Dedhia 08853685 29/08/2020

*the date of appointment is as per MCA portal.

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the management of
the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to
the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the
Company

Premnarayan Tripathi,
(Designated Partner)
SPAN & Co. Company Secretaries LLP

FCS:8851
Place: Ahmedabad COP: 10029
Date: 06.08.2021 UDIN: FO08851C000748425
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ANNEXURE - 2
CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To,
The Members
VADILAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

We, M/s. SPAN & Co. Company Secretaries LLP, a firm of Practicing Company Secretaries, have examined the compliance of conditions
of Corporate Governance by Vadilal Industries Limited (“the Company”) having CIN L91110GJ1982PLC005169 for the year ended 31+
March, 2021, as per regulations 17 to 27, clauses (b) to (i) of requlation 46(2) and Paragraphs C, D and E of Schedule V of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”) with amendments
as applicable.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our examination was limited to
procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate
Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that the Company has
complied with the conditions of the Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above-mentioned Listing Regulations as applicable
except delay of 150 days in appointment of Woman Independent Director, for which fine was imposed by the Bombay Stock Exchange
Limited (BSE) and the National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) and the Company has paid the same.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness
with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the company.

Premnarayan Tripathi,
(Designated Partner)
SPAN & Co. Company Secretaries LLP

FCS:8851
Place: Ahmedabad COP: 10029
Date: 06.08.2021 UDIN: FO08851C000748403
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ANNEXURE - D TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT
BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT

SECTION A: GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANY

Sr. No. | Particulars Details
1 Corporate Identity Number (CIN) of the Company L91110GJ1982PLC0O05169
2 Name of the Company Vadilal Industries Limited
3 Registered Address Vadilal House, 53, Shrimali Society

Nr. Navrangpura Railway Crossing,
Navrangpura, Ahmedabad- 380009

4 Website www.vadilalgroup.com
5 E-mail id shareslogs@vadilalgroup.com
6 Financial Year reported 31.03.2020 to 31.03.2021
7 | Sector(s) that the Company is engaged in (Industrial | Food Processing Industry (covered under various codes as specified
activity code-wise) under NIC 1987 covering food products)
8 List three key products / services that the Company | Product ITC Code
manufactures/provides (as in balance sheet) Ice-cream and Frozen Desert Products 1050
Fruit Pulp, Frozen Fruits, etc. 1030
Foreign Exchange (Services) NA
9 | Total number of locations where business activity is | Please refer to Corporate Information page of the Annual Report
undertaken by the Company 2021.
(@ Number of International Locations (Provide details | Export to USA, Australia and UAE
of major 3)
(b) Number of National Locations 3 manufacturing, 65 sales branches, Head Office, Corporate office,

national sales and distribution network

10 | Markets served by the Company: Local/State/ National/ | Local and International.
International

SECTION B : FINANCIAL DETAILS OF THE COMPANY

Sr. No. | Particulars Details
1 Paid up Capital (INR) <7,18,78,300
2 | Total Turnover (INR) ¥ 3,565,401,000
3 | Total Profit/ (Loss) after taxes (INR) 3 (240,982,000)
4 | Total Spending on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) as | Total spending on CSR is 2% of average profit after tax. This is
percentage of profit after tax (%) detailed in the Annual Report of CSR Activities, ANNEXURE-G of

the Board's Report.

5 List of activities in which expenditure in 4 above has been | List of CSR activities are detailed in the Annual Report of CSR
incurred Activities, ANNEXURE-G to the Board'’s Report.

SECTION C: OTHER DETAILS

Sr. No. Particulars Details

1 Does the Company have any Subsidiary Company/ | Yes, Company has 4 Subsidiaries
Companies?

2 Do the Subsidiary Company/Companies participate in the | No, Subsidiary Companies do not participate in BR Initiatives of
BR initiatves of the parent Company? If yes, then indicate | the parent company.
the number of such subsidiary Company(s).

3 Do any other entity/entities (e.g. suppliers, distributors etc.) | No other entity / entities that we work with have taken up BR
that the Company does business with, participate in the BR | initiatives have taken up during the previous Financial Year.
initiatives of the Company?
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SECTION D: BRINFORMATION

Sr. | Particulars Details
No.
1 |Details of Director/Directors responsible for BR
(@) |Details of the Director/Director responsible for|DIN Number 00009879 and 00010146
implementation of the BR policy/policies Name Rajesh R Gandhi and
Devanshu L. Gandhi
Designation Managing Directors
(b) | Details of the BR head DIN Number 00009879 and 00010146
Name Rajesh R Gandhi and
Devanshu L. Gandhi
Designation Managing Directors
Telephone number 079-48081200
E-mail id shareslogs@vadilalgroup.com
2 | Principle-wise (as per NVGs) BR Policy/Policies
(a) | Details of Compliances (Reply in Y/N)
No. | Questions P1 P2 | P3| P4 | P4  P5 P6 P7*| P8 | P9*
1 | Do you have a policy/policy for ... v oIV V v v oY v
2 | Hasthe policy being formulated in consultation withthe | v | v | + \J N V N N
relevant stakeholders?
3 | Does the policy conform to any national/ international | v | + | + V v v V V
standards? If yes, specify? @
4 | Has the policy being approved by the Board? Is Yes,has | + | v | + N N V N N
it been signed by MD/ owner/CEO/appropriate Board
Director?
5 |Does the Company have a specified committee of the| | Vv | + N N V N N
Board/Director/Official to oversee the implementation
of the policy?
6 | Indicate the link for the policy to be viewed online? We have some policies on our website
Has the policy been formally communicated to all| v | Vv | + N N J N N
relevant internal and external stakeholders?
8 |Does the Company have in-house structure to| + | v | + N N V N N
implement the policy/policies
9 |Does the Company have a grievance redressal|v |V v o V N V N
mechanism related to the policy/ policies to address
stakeholders’ grievances related to the policy/policies?
10 |Has the Company carried out independent audit/|We have not carried out an independent audit of these policies
evaluation of the working of this policy by an internal or
external agency?
(b) | If answer to the question at serial number 1 against any principle, is ‘No’ please explain why: | Not applicable
(Tick up to 2 options)
3 Governance related BR

(a)

Indicate the frequency with which the Board of
Directors, Committee of the Board or CEO to assess the
BR performance of the Company.

The Board / Committee will review the BR performance at least
annually.

(b)

Does the Company publish a BR or a Sustainability
Report? What is the hyperlink for viewing this report?
How frequently it is published?

The BRR is published annually and available on the website of
the Company at www.vadilalgroup.com

@ The policies have been derived and adopted by Vadilal Group and are aligned as per local requirements to safeguard the interests of all its
stakeholders.

* We do not have a defined policy as of now.
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SECTION E: PRINCIPLE-WISE PERFORMANCE
Principle 1: Business should conduct and govern themselves with Ethics, Transparency and Accountability

1.

Does the policy relating to ethics, bribery and corruption cover only the company? Yes/ No. Does it extend to the Group/Joint
Ventures/Suppliers/Contractors/NGOs /Others?

Vadilal Industries Limited Code of Business Conduct includes the Company’s policy on ethics, bribery and corruption covering the
Company and all its vendors, contractors and associates. Other significant documents from the Vadilal Group, which define the
standard of behaviour of the Company, are Vadilal Code of conduct for prohibition of Insider trading, Whistle Blower policy, and
Resource Supply Chain Guidelines.

How many stakeholder complaints have been received in the past financial year and what percentage was satisfactorily resolved by
the management? If so, provide details thereof, in about 50 words or so.

No stakeholder complaints received/ pending at the end of the year.

Principle 2: Business should provide goods and services that are safe and contribute to sustainability throughout their life cycle

1.

List up to 3 of your products or services whose design has incorporated social or environmental concerns, risks and/or opportunities.

Vadilal is providing three types of milk products to the consumer- Ice cream, Flavoured Milk and Paneer All are nutritionally enriched
product. All our products are free from preservative and transfat.

Malai Paneer is rich in protein and calcium and without any preservative and rennet free product.

We have a wide range for Kids product specifically designed for kids with the Goodness of real milk and enriched with calcium.
We have flavoured Milk of variety of flavours such as kesar, Rose and Elaichi.

Sugar free ranges are without any added sugar.

We have removed our non-recyclable packaging material and converted into recyclable material and we are working more on this
matter for our other packaging material.

For each such product, provide the following details in respect of resource use (energy, water, raw material etc.) per unit of
product(optional):

(@) Reduction during sourcing/production/ distribution achieved since the previous year throughout the value chain?
(b) Reduction during usage by consumers (energy, water) has been achieved since the previous year?
There is no reduction in usage as compared to last year.

Does the company have procedures in place for sustainable sourcing (including transportation)? (a) If yes, what percentage of your
inputs was sourced sustainably? Also, provide details thereof,

N.A

Has the company taken any steps to procure goods and services from local & small producers, including communities surrounding
their place of work? (a) If yes, what steps have been taken to improve their capacity and capability of local and small vendors?

Company prefers to procure the material from local vendor & support the development of local farmer by assisting them to increase
milk productivity and quality through technical assistance - providing veterinary services, subsidiary medicines and cattle feed.

Does the company have a mechanism to recycle products and waste? If yes what is the percentage of recycling of products and
waste (separately as <5%, 5-10%, >10%). Also, provide details thereof

Company has fulfilled the extended producer’s responsibility for post-consumer waste management. and complied the waste
management rules 2016 amended in 2018.We have working change the non-bio-degradable packaging material to recyclable
material and used recycled paper wherever suitable to our products.

Principle 3: Employee Wellbeing

Sr. No. | Particulars Details
1 Please indicate the Total number of employees 670
2 Please indicate the Total number of employees hired on temporary/ | 3599

contractual/casual basis

Please indicate the Number of permanent women employees 74

Please indicate the Number of permanent employees with |0
disabilities
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Sr. No. | Particulars Details ’
5 Do you have an employee association that is recognised by | The Company does not have an employee association
management?
6 | What percentage of your permanent empoyees are member of | NA

this recognised employee association?

Please indicate the Number of complaints relating to child labour,
forced labour, involuntary labour, sexual harasment in the last
financial year and pending, as on the end of the financial year.

There were no complaints of this nature during the
Financial Year.

What percentage of your mentioned employees were given safety
and skill up-gradation training in the last year?

(@) | Permanent Employees 28% Approx.
(b) | Permanent Women Employees 62% Approx.
(c) | Casual/Temporary/Contractual Employees 12% Approx.
(d) |Employees with Disabilities NA

Principle 4: Business should respect the interest of, and be responsive towards all stakeholders, especially those who are
disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalised

1.

Has the Company mapped its internal and external stakeholders?

Yes, the Company’s business operations have evolved, balancing business priorities and responsibility towards economic,
environmental and social sustainability. The Company builds trust through productive relationships, fosters working partnerships
and stakeholders both internal and external as integral to its business. Company’s key stakeholders include employees, suppliers,
customers, business partners, regulatory agencies and local communities around its Plants

Out of the above, has the Company identified the disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalised stakeholders

Yes, the Company has identified the disadvantaged, vulnerable and the marginalised sections within the local communities around
its Plants.

Special initiatives taken by the company to engage with the disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalized stakeholders

No

Principle 5: Business should respect and promote human rights

1.

Does the Company’s policy on human rights cover only the Company or extend to the Group / Suppliers / Contractors / NGOs /
others?

The Company has put in place a Human Rights Policy applicable to all Vadilal Group of Companies. The Company’s commitment
to follow the basic principles of human rights is embedded in “Code of Conduct” adopted by the Company. The Company strictly
adheres to all applicable labour laws and other statutory requirements in order to uphold the human rights within its organisational
boundary.

How many stakeholder complaints have been received in the past financial year and what percent was satisfactorily resolved by the
Management?

No stakeholder complaints were received during the last financial year.

Principle 6: Business should respect, protect, and make effort to restore the environment

1.

Does the policy related to Principle 6 cover only the company or extends to the Group/Joint Ventures/Suppliers/Contractors/NGOs/
others

The policy covers the Company and all its vendors, contractors and associates.

Does the company have strategies/ initiatives to address global environmental issues such as climate change, global warming, etc?
Y/N. If yes, please give hyperlink for webpage etc.

Yes, Vadilal is committed to contribute to limiting global temperature increasing. We are working on several initiatives to achieve
energy efficiency and are committed to adopt renewable energy in our operation.

We aim to procure maximum of our electricity as per allowable limit by respective state’s regulations from renewable sources.
Reduce GHG emissions. Expand the use of natural refrigerants, which do not harm the ozone layer and have a negligible impact on
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climate change/The development of our packaging to accelerate the development of functional and safe packaging solutions that
have a lower carbon footprint.

Does the company identify and assess potential environmental risks? Y/N
Yes

Does the company have any project related to Clean Development Mechanism? If so, provide details thereof, in about 50 words or
so. Also, if Yes, whether any environmental compliance report is filed?

Yes, the company has initiated the steps to reduce GHE effect since 2016. It has replaced the use of fossils fuel with bio gas (generated
from water treatment plants) in heating ovens in plants, worker’s colony canteen. It is also generating electricity from biogas by gas
engines (80 Kw). It has converted its furnace oil fired boiler into bio gas fired boiler by installing bio gas firing systems.

Has the company undertaken any other initiatives on - clean technology, energy efficiency, renewable energy, etc. Y/N. If yes,
please give hyperlink for web page etc.

Yes, Company has the procedure of biogas generation from effluent treatment plant and that biogas is used for various purposes.
We have also initiated for supply of about 1800KVA power through Group Captive solar generation at Bareilly plant.

Are the Emissions/Waste generated by the company within the permissible limits given by CPCB/SPCB for the financial year being
reported?

Yes

Number of show cause/ legal notices received from CPCB/SPCB which are pending (i.e. not resolved to satisfaction) as on end of
Financial Year.

There is no pending show cause notice/legal notices received in the year 2020-21 .

Principle 7: Business, when engaged in influencing public and regulatory policy, should do so in a responsible manner

1.

Is your company a member of any trade and chamber or association? If Yes, Name only those major ones that your business deals
with

a.  Confederation of Indian Industry
b. Indian Ice Cream Manufacturer’s Association

Have you advocated/lobbied through above associations for the advancement or improvement of public good? Yes/No; if yes
specify the broad areas/

The company does undertake need based advocacy on issues relating to ice-cream sector and sustainability through our
membership of ICMA. All the engagements are guided by the values of commitment, integrity and the need to balance interests
among our diverse stakeholders.

Principle 8: Business should support inclusive growth and equitable development

1.

Does the company have specified programmes/initiatives/projects in pursuit of the policy related to Principle 8 If yes details thereof.

The company has Programmes in area of primary health care in the rural area. The unit is run by qualified doctor and staff. It
provides preliminary education for preventive health care. It also provides primary treatments to villagers. About 2 medical camps
were organised in the area of ortho & RBS camp etc and treated about 200 patients. The health care unit was attended to by about
8500 patients at its OPD.

The company has also started the programme of clean water and sanitation for more than 12 villages as Vadilal group has made
substantial progress made in increasing access to clean drinking water across 12 villages donating RO plant ..and also we have
donated sanitation infrastructure for clean villages .

We have arranged vaccination drive for employees and their family members as Safety is our workplace our priority

The company has also started the programme of educating and training the farmers in the area of different high yielding crop
pattern, soil conservation, optimal use of inputs like water/ fertilisers/ manpower, quality of seeds. Awareness programmes were
conducted in 10 villages and hired one crop expert doctor for survey of local land of the farmers for increase the income of farmers
after growing new crops.

Are the programmes/projects undertaken through in-house team/own foundation/external NGO/ government structures/any
other organization?

Projects are undertaken through in-house expert teams and in partnership with likeminded expert partner organizations that share
the Company’s ambition towards creating inclusive growth.
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3.

Have you done any impact assessment of your initiative?
Yes

What is your company’s direct contribution to community development projects- Amount in INR and the details of the projects
undertaken.

The details are in Annexure-G of the Directors Report.

Have you taken steps to ensure that this community development initiative is successfully adopted by the community? Please
explain in 50 words, or so.

All the community development initiatives are monitored and presentation is made to top management. Also, field visits are made
by top management to ensure that community is adopting the development. Direct interaction with villagers is done to understand
the factual impacts of the initiatives.

Principle 9: Business should engage with and provide value to their customers and consumers in a responsible manner

1.

What percentage of customer complaints/consumer cases are pending as on the end of financial year.

Normally we receive the complains thru our social media, customer care & email id and it process with respective department and
head with required solution to consumers & trade. There is no any pending complain till date.

2. Does the company display product information on the product label, over and above what is mandated as per local laws? Yes/
No/N.A. /Remarks (additional information)
Yes. We are following the all the mandate of Product labels.
3. Isthere any case filed by any stakeholder against the company regarding unfair trade practices, irresponsible advertising and/or
anti-competitive behaviour during the last five years and pending as on end of financial year. If so, provide details thereof, in about
50 words or so.
There is no case filed by any stakeholder against the company regarding unfair trade practices irresponsible advertising or anti-
competitive behaviour which are pending as at the end of Financial Year 2021.
4.  Did your company carry out any consumer survey/ consumer satisfaction trends?
On periodic based we do consumer & trade research thru our internal team and external sources and get the feedback and basis on
the same it applies in our business planning.
Recently we have done market research thru Nielsen Research agency across India where we geographically presence.
By order of the Board of Directors
Rajesh R. Gandhi Devanshu L. Gandhi
Date : 13* August, 2021 Managing Director Managing Director
Place : Ahmedabad DIN: 00009879 DIN: 00010146
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ANNEXURE - ETO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

FORM NO. AOC -2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to in sub section
(1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length transaction under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis. : NIL

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.

Sr. No.

Particulars

Details

a

Name (s) of the related party &
nature of relationship

Vadilal Enterprises Limited (VEL), a Public Company in which Directors are Directors
and holding more than 2% shares alongwith relatives.

b Nature of contracts/ Agreement between VIL and VEL to sell Ice-cream, Frozen Desserts, Flavoured Milk
arrangements/transaction and other Milk and Dairy products and Processed Food Products by VIL to VEL.

d Duration of the contracts/ Agreement executed on 29.09.2017, which is valid for a period of 10 years w.e.f. 1
arrangements/transaction October, 2017.

d Salient terms of the contracts - Sale of Ice-cream, Frozen Desert, Flavoured Milk and other Milk and Dairy
or arrangements or transaction products and Processed Food Procuts by VIL to VEL on Principal to Principal
including the value, if any basis and on credit basis. All matters related to marketing including marketing

expenses will be decided and born by VEL.

- Payment shall be made by VEL within 180 days from the last date of month in
which the Company has supplied the products to VEL. VEL shall be liable to pay
interest @15% at the discretion of the Company on all outstanding amount due
to the Company, beyond the said credit period of 180 days

e Date of approval by the Board The Agreement was approved by the Board at its meeting held on 8-8-2017. The

details transactions of sale/purchase between VIL and VEL are placed at the Board

Meetings on quarterly basis.

f Amount paid as advances, if any | No.

Date

: 13" August, 2021

Place : Ahmedabad

By order of the Board of Directors

Rajesh R. Gandhi
Managing Director
DIN: 00009879

Devanshu L. Gandhi
Managing Director
DIN: 00010146
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ANNEXURE - F TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

[Information under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder and
forming part of the Directors’' Report for the year ended on 31t March, 2021]

A) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

»  The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy and the steps taken by the company for utilising alternate
sources of energy:

In order to reduce the cost of production, save consumption of energy and increase the productivity, the Company has taken
several measures which mainly include the following:

Ice-cream Division at Pundhra, Gujarat :

>

>

>

Installed the automatic roll up door in cs 21 first floor and increase the capacity of good lifts for handle the export ice
cream.

Installed 800TR evaporative condenser in Frick compressor refrigeration plant for enhance condensing capacity &
reduction in power consumption.

Installed the steam operated pumping trap in CIP section for recover the steam condensate water

Ice-cream Division at Bareilly, Uttar Pradesh:

>

>

Sensor are fixed in continues Chaina hardening tunnel to control chain break down, it help for smooth operation
hardening and reduce maintenance cost.

Level controller is fixed on the filling hopper of candy machine to control the mix level, so that mix overflow stopped and
mix pump running become automated, it help to control mix and production losses.

A cyclic timer has been fixed near main gate for shift duty in and out to operate time hooter, security not to do it manual

Sensor is fixed with crate washer to control unnecessary running of the machine, when crates not taken out for cleaning,
it help to save energy

A timer has been fixed in CIP room for the exhaust fan to run on auto mode with cip process only, unnecessary exhaust
fan will not run.

A candy machine of 21000 PCS/HR received & installation is pending due to covid.19, it will not only increase the
production, but also save the man power.

A candy machine is installed of capacity 7000 PCS / HR, and increased candy production and save man power.
Two new cold rooms are installed 10000 crates each to store candy only, so candy storage capacity increased now.

Automation system fixed with 7.5 KL/HR. homogenizer, so that homogeniser cannot stopped or start when it will on
load, previously a malfunction done by production operator, so machine usually went in break down.

6000 PCS/HR. cone machine installed to enhance cone production capacity.

E.T.P. capacity enhancing work under progress from 300 KL TO 1200 KL, A M S anaerobic tank is under fabrication,
completed by 15/06/2020.

Cone packing conveyor modified & 2 nos., are new purchased to control men power & smooth operation.
Mat./ Empty crate conveyor is fixed from kulfi plant to Rollo plant .

Empty crate conveyor from crate storage area to store at Rollo roof in winter season, when crates come in bulk to store
in the winter season.

Hot air blower plant to be fixed to dry the crates after wash, so that wet crates will not use in production floor.

A comprehensive automation of the ice cream plant is under progress, expected to complete by end of the year, it is
getting delay due to covid-19.

Processed Food Division at Dharampur, Gujarat:

>
>
>

HVAC System installed for comfort atmosphere at New Tava Room area to increase productivity.
Continuous Fryer machine installed, which improved the product quality, output as well as energy saving

Fire hydrant line installed at whole area of Dharampur factory and Got Fire safety NOC
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b)

)

B)

Capital investments on energy conservation equipments:
Ice-cream Division at Pundhra, Gujarat:

» Installation of one more steam operated pumping trap in CIP section.

» Installation of 66KV power connection to comply legal requirement for power demand above 4000 KVA & uninterrupted
power.

» Installation of 06 TPH Wood fire boiler for enhancing the capacity of steam Generation & constant Pr. supply to plant.

Processed Food Division at Dharampur, Gujarat:

»  The Company is planning to install Spiral freezer for RTE product at Dharampur Factory, to improve the quality and reduce the
manpower.

»  Planning to replace cold room Doors one by one at 2" Floor of Cold stores to minimize losses and save energy

»  To start Preventive Maintenance monitoring by SAP

Impact of measures at (a) and (b) above for reduction of production of goods :
Ice-cream Division:

»  After Cold Store No-21 lift & door modification work export ice cream with pallate to be stored in ¢s 21. it will improve
productivity & save the power due to ¢s16 will remain off in slac season.

»  After Installation of Evaporative Condensers for Refrigeration system total power requirement per ton refrigeration will come
down.

» After installation of the SOPT the steam cost will be reduced.

» Afterinstallation of 66 KV Elect. Power connection legal requirement will comply and frequency of interruption of power failure
from GEB will reduce & subsequently loss of product.

»  After Installation of 06 TPH capacity boiler steam generation capacity will increase and steam will be supplied at constant
pressure for process requirement.

» Quality of process also will improve & reduction in Basundi/ Mix production time.

Processed Food Division:

»  Themeasures listed in above (a) and (b) would result in energy saving, increase in production rate, improvement in quality and
avoiding in production break-down due to power-off.

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION
a) Efforts in brief, made towards technology absorption, adaptation and innovation:

Ice-cream Division at Pundhra, Gujarat:

»  Automatic chloring dosing system installed in Firewater 300KL tank to improve the water microbiological quality.
Conversion of existing Manual GEA Pasteurizer system to fully automatic system & integration with New SCADA system.
Relocation of Bakery Product from existing RM process section for increased operational efficiency & hygiene.

Started making inhouse required sweet for export Ice-cream to reduce Microbial rejection & improve quality.

Started separating cream from Paneer whey to reduce fat loss.

Reprocess & Recovery Section: redesigned & relocated to improve utilization, reduce losses & microbial issue.

YV V V VYV V V

Use of Quark Separator to increase production volume & quality of Maska for Shrikhand Production.

b) Additional investments and proposals, if any, for Technology Absorption, Adaption & Innovation: -

Ice-cream Division at Pundhra, Gujarat:

» Procurement of “Narmada water” to reduce borewell water consumption & improve water quality in terms of TDS &
Chlorides.
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c) Benefits derived as a result of the above efforts :

Ice-cream Division at Pundhra, Gujarat:
»  product quality improvement

»  water saving

»  product quality improvement

»  cost reduction

d) In case of Imported technolo imported during last Five years reckoned from the beginning of the financial year
information to be furnished:

During the last five years, the Company has imported the following technologies:

Details of Imported Technology Year of Whether fully | Areas where absorption has not
import absorbed or | taken place and reason.
not
“ Cao-tech” make Chocolate making machine 2017 Yes NA
“Product in Product machine” (PIP) for candy 2017 Yes NA
product
Extrusion ice cream machine with Continuous 2017 Yes NA
tunnel
“Gram” make continuous ice cream making freezer 2017 Yes NA
-02 nos.
“Ulma” make Paneer packing machine 2018 No Packing Material in development stage
Ice cream freezing Continuous tunnel with candy 2018 Yes No
filling attachment
Tub filling machine 02 nos from China 2018 Yes NA
Rotary cone machine from china 2018 Yes NA
Automatic Cartoning Machine 2019 NO Packing Material in development stage
“Tetra” make Continuous ice cream making freezer 2020 Yes NA
700 Itr & 1500 ltr
“WCB"” make Continuous nut feeder 2020 Yes NA

e) The expenditure incurred on Research and Development:

During the year under review, the Company has incurred expenditure of ¥ 34.22 towards Research and Development.

C) FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

As against Foreign Exchange Earnings of 7539.82 lacs for the previous year ended on 31 March, 2020, the Company has earned
Foreign Exchange of ¥ 11081.38 lacs for Export of Goods on FOB value for the year ended on 31t March, 2021.

As against Foreign Exchange Outgo of ¥ 1038.57 lacs for the previous year, the Outgo during the year under review was ¥ 464.66

lacs.
By order of the Board of Directors
Rajesh R. Gandhi Devanshu L. Gandhi
Date : 13 August, 2021 Managing Director Managing Director
Place : Ahmedabad DIN: 00009879 DIN: 00010146

56 | VADILAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED



T vadiley T

ANNEXURE- G TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT
Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:

for the financial year - 2020-2021

a. Todirectthe Company’s CSR Programmes, inter alia, towards achieving one or more of the following - enhancing environmental
and natural capital; supporting rural development; promoting education; providing preventive healthcare, providing
sanitation and drinking water; creating livelihoods for people, especially those from disadvantaged sections of society, in
rural and urban India; preserving and promoting sports;

b.  Todevelop the required capability and self-reliance of beneficiaries at the grass roots in the belief that these are prerequisites
for social and economic development;

c.  To engage in affirmative action interventions such as skill building and vocational training, to enhance employability and
generate livelihoods for various persons including farmers;

d. To pursue CSR Programmes primarily in areas that fall within the economic vicinity of the Company’s operations to ensure

maximum development impact;

2. Composition of CSR Committee:

Sr.
No.

Name of Director

Designation / Nature of
Directorship

Number of meeting of
CSR committee held
during the year

Number of meeting of
CSR Commiittee attended
during the year

Mr. Vijay R. Shah

Chairman & Independent Director

1

1

Mr. Devanshu L Gandhi

Managing Director

1

1

Mr. Kalpit R. Gandhi

Director & CFO

1

1

3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the board are
disclosed on the website of the company:

https://vadilalgroup.com/pdf/CSR%20Policy%20VIL.pdf

4. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies
(Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report): Not Applicable

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate Social

responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial year, if any:

Sr. | Financial Year Amount available for set-off from Amount required to be set off for the
No. proceeding financial years (in <) financial year, if any (in<)
1. |2017-18 - -
2. 2018-19 - -
3. 201920 - -
TOTAL - -

6. Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5):3 3661.57 Lacs

a
b.

n

o

Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): ¥ 73.23 Lacs

Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years: NIL

Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any.: NIL

Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c): ¥73.23 Lacs
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8. (a) CSRamountspent or unspent for the financial year:

Total Amount spent for Amount Unspent (in %)
the Financial Year (in %) Total Amount transferred to Unspent Amount transferred to any fund specified under
CSR Account as per section 135(6) Schedule VIl as per second proviso to section 135(5)
Amount Date of Transfer | Name of the Fund Amount
% 73.51 Lacs - NA NA -

(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 1
Sr | Name | Itemfrom | Localarea Locationofthe | Project | Amount = Amount Amount Mode of Mode of
No. | ofthe | thelistof | (Yes/No) project duration | allocated | spent transferred to Impleme- | Implementation -
Project | activities for the inthe unspent CSR ntation- | Through Agency
in project | current = Accountforthe | pjract (ves/
Schedule State | District (in%) financial | project as per No) Name | CSR
Vil to the year (in%) | section 135(6)
act (ing)
1. NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA

(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Sr. | Name of the Project | Item from Local Location of the Project Amount Mode of Mode of Implementation -
No the list of Area spentfor | Implementation - Through Agency
2c:v:jtlels :;II | (Yes/No) State District the Pr;ject Direct (Yes/No) Y CSR
¢ : :e ) Registration
R Number
1. | Providing Medical aid | Promoting Yes Gujarat | Gandhinagar 18.35 Yes NA NA
to the villagers near health care
pundhra Factory of the
Company
2. | RO Plant for Village Promoting Yes Gujarat | Gandhinagar 5.07 Yes NA NA
1500 Itr (2 RO Plant) health care
3. | Minitractor &Trolley | Ensuring Yes Gujarat | Gandhinagar 6.85 Yes NA NA
for door to door waste | environmental
collection sustainability,
4. | water distributionand | Promoting Yes Gujarat | Gandhinagar 3.71 Yes NA NA
pipeline expenses for | health care
tube well
5. | RO Plant- 1500 Ltr Promoting Yes Gujarat | Gandhinagar 2.50 Yes NA NA
health care
6. | Atithi Grhu and Water | Promoting Yes Gujarat | Gandhinagar 5.00 Yes NA NA
pipeline expenses health care
7. | RO Plant and water Promoting Yes Gujarat | Gandhinagar 512 Yes NA NA
tank (1500 Ltr 2RO health care
Plant with RO ATM)
8. | ROPlant(1000Ltr) & | Promoting Yes Gujarat | Gandhinagar 2.84 Yes NA NA
Water Jug health care
9. | For Gram Panchayat Promoting Yes Gujarat | Gandhinagar 2.50 Yes NA NA
Lok falo- swajal dhara | health care
scheme
10. | RO Plant (1000 Ltr) Promoting Yes Gujarat | Gandhinagar 2,01 Yes NA NA
health care
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9.

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Sr. | Name of the Project | Item from Local Location of the Project Amount Mode of Mode of Implementation -
No the list of Area spentfor | Implementation - Through Agency
2c:v:jtlels :;II | (Yes/No) State District the ?r;ject Direct (Yes/No) T CSR
¢ : :e ) Registration
to the Act Number
11. | For Gram Panchayat Promoting Yes Gujarat | Gandhinagar 2.50 Yes NA NA
Lok falo - swajal dhara | health care
scheme
12. | Water pipeline Promoting Yes Gujarat | Gandhinagar 6.72 Yes NA NA
expenses within 2.7 health care
kms (4 gauge pipeline
installation )
13. | Analyzer machine Promoting Yes Gujarat | Gandhinagar 2.80 Yes NA NA
health care
14. | ROPlant (1000 Ltr) & | Promoting Yes Gujarat | Gandhinagar 2.56 Yes NA NA
Water Jug health care
15. | Water pipeline Promoting Yes Gujarat | Gandhinagar 3.00 Yes NA NA
expenses within 1.5 health care
kms (3 gauge pipeline
installation)
16. | Three Batch for Nearby | Women Yes Gujarat | Gandhinagar 1.99 Yes NA NA
villages female training | Empowerment
classes
(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: NIL
(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Not Applicable
(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year: ¥ 73.51 Lacs
(g) Excess amount for set off, if any:
Sr.No. | Particular Amount (Ing)
(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) 3 73.23 Lacs
(i) Total amount spent for the Financial Year % 73.51 Lacs
(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] % 00.28 Lacs
(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years, -
if any
(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] %00.28 Lacs
(a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: Not Applicable
Sr. Preceding | Amount transferred | Amount spent Amount transferred to any fund Amount remaining
No. Financial to Unspent CSR in the reporting | specified under Schedule VIl as per to be spentin
Year Account under Financial Year section 135(6), if any succeeding financial
section 135(6) (in %) (in%) Name ofthe Amount Date of years (in ¥)
Fund (in%) transfer
1. 2017-18 - - NA - NA -
2. 2018-19 - - NA - NA -
3. 2019-20 - - NA - NA -
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(b)

Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s):

Sr Project Name Financial year Project Total Amount Cumulative Status of
No. ID of the in which the duration amount spentonthe @ amountspent | the project-
Project project was allocated for | project in the at theend Completed /
commenced the project reporting of reporting Ongoing
(in%) financial Year | Financial year
(in¥) (in%)
1. 2017-18 NA NA NA - - - NA
2. | 2018-19 NA NA NA - - - NA
3. 2019-20 NA NA NA - - - NA

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or acquired through CSR

spent in the financial year (asset-wise details):

a.  Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s): Not Applicable
b.  Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset: Not Applicable
c.  Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is registered, their address etc:

Not Applicable

d.  Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and location of the capital asset):
Not Applicable

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per section 135(5):

The Company has spent full amount towards CSR activities during the year as per Section 135 and Companies (Social Responsibility
Policy) Rules, 2014. There is no unspent amount of CSR obligation for the financial year 2020-21.

RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The Responsibility Statement of the Corporate Social Responsibility and Governance (CSR&G) Committee of the Board of Directors of the
Company, is reproduced below:

‘The implementation and monitoring of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy, is in compliance with CSR objectives and policy of
the Company!

Rajesh R.

Gandhi

Managing Director

Vadilal Industries Limited

Date

: 13™ August, 2021

Place : Ahmedabad
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ANNEXURE- H TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT

FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FORTHE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31°" MARCH, 2021

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Vadilal Industries Limited
Vadilal House 53 Shrimali Society,
Nr Navrangpura Police Station,
Ahmedabad-380009,

Gujarat, India.

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate
practices by Vadilal Industries Limited (CIN: L91110GJ1982PLC005169) (hereinafter called ‘the Company’). Secretarial Audit was
conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing
our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the
Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct
of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the financial year ended on 31 March, 2021 (‘Audit
Period’) complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company for the Audit
Period according to the provisions of:

i.  The Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the Rules made thereunder;
ii.  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA’) and the Rules made thereunder;
iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

iv.  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made thereunder (“FEMA”) to the extent of Foreign Direct
Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

v.  The following Regulations prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):
a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;
b)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

¢)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 (Not Applicable
to the Company during the Audit Period);

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 (Not Applicable to the Company
during the Audit Period);

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 (Not Applicable to the
Company during the Audit Period);

f)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrar to Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the
Companies Act and dealing with client;

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 (Not Applicable to the Company
during the Audit Period); and

h)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 (Not Applicable to the Company during
the Audit Period)
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vi. We report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and on examination of the relevant documents
and records in pursuance thereof, the Company has complied with the following laws applicable specifically to the Company:

a.  Prevention of Food Adulteration Act, 1954 and rules and regulations made there under;
b.  Food Safety and Standards Act, 2006 and rules and regulations made there under;

c.  The Standards of Weights and Measurers Act, 1976 and Standards of Weights and Measurers (Packaged Commodities) Rules,
1977 and other rules and regulations made there under;

d. Legal Metrology Act, 2009 And Legal Metrology (Packaged Commaodities) Rules, 2011;

For the purpose of other laws applicable specifically to the Company, we have relied on the representations made by the Company and
its officers for systems and mechanisms formed by the Company for compliance under other laws as may be applicable specifically to the
Company and verification of document and records.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
i) Secretarial Standards (SS-1 & SS-2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India; and

i)  The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with BSE Limited (BSE) and National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE)
and provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
['LODR Regulations’].

During the Audit Period, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Standards etc. mentioned above
subject to the following observations:

1. The appointment of Woman Independent Director under Regulation 17(1) (a) of LODR Regulations was delayed by 150 days. Fine
was imposed by BSE and NSE which had been paid by the Company.

2. There was a delay in disclosure of revision in credit ratings by CARE and IND-RA to BSE and NSE as required under Regulation 30(6)
of LODR Regulations.

3. Asrequired under Regulation 31(2) of LODR Regulations, hundred percent shareholding of one of the promoter is not maintained
in dematerialized form.

We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and
Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were
carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven
days in advance or at a shorter period, whenever required with the consent of Directors, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining
further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the
Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the Audit Period, the company had no specific events/ actions having major bearing on the Company’s
affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, standards etc.

Premnarayan Tripathi,
Designated Partner
SPAN & Co. Company Secretaries LLP

FCS 8851
Place : Ahmedabad COP: 10029
Date: 05/08/2021 UDIN: FO0851C000742672

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as “Annexure A” and forms an integral part of this report.

62 | VADILAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED



T vadiley T

Annexure A

To,

The Members

Vadilal Industries Limited
Vadilal House 53 Shrimali Society,
Nr Navrangpura Police Station,
Ahmedabad-380009,

Gujarat, India.

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter:

Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on these secretarial records based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the
contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records.
We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company.

Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and
happening of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of management.
Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with
which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Premnarayan Tripathi,
Designated Partner
SPAN & Co. Company Secretaries LLP

FCS 8851
Place : Ahmedabad COP: 10029
Date: 05/08/2021 UDIN: FO0851C000742672
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ANNEXURE - 1 TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT
PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The information required under Section 197(12) of the Act read with rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 for the year ended 315t March, 2021, are given below:

a. The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company for the
financial year - 2020-2021 and the percentage increase in remuneration of each director, chief executive officer, chief
financial officer, company secretary in the financial year - 2020-2021:

Name of the Managing Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Ratio to median % increase in

Financial Officer, and Company Secretary remuneration of the remuneration in the
employees financial year

Mr. Rajesh R. Gandhi, Managing Director 1:31 7.00%

Mr. Devanshu L. Gandhi, Managing Director 1:31 7.00%

Mr. Yogesh Bhatt, Interim Chief Executive Officer (upto 26.06.2020) N.A. 0.00%

Mr. Anil Patil, Interim Chief Executive Officer (upto 26.06.2020) N.A. 0.00%

Mr. Kalpit R. Gandhi, Chief Financial Officer N.A. 0.00%

Ms. Rashmi T. Bhatt, Company Secretary N.A. 0.00%

The Company does not pay any remuneration to the Non-executive Directors except sitting fees for attending Board and Committee
Meetings.

b. The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year - 2020-2021:
0% due to COVID-19 pandemic

c. The number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company as on 31-3-2021: 670

d. Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the last
financial year - 2020-2021 and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and justification
thereof and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration:

0% due to COVID-19 pandemic

Increase in the managerial remuneration for the year was 7%. There is no exceptional increase in the remuneration of the Managing
Directors of the Company.

In orderto ensure that remuneration reflects Company performance, the performance pay is also linked to organization performance,
apart from an individual’s performance.

e. Affirmation:

The Company affirms that the remuneration of the Managing Directors and the employees of the Company are as per the
remuneration policy of the Company.

f.  The statement containing top ten employees in terms of remuneration drawn and particulars of employees as required under
Section 197(12) of the Act, read with Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,
2014, is provided in a separate annexure forming part of this report. Further, the report and the accounts are being sent to the
members excluding the aforesaid annexure. In terms of Section 136 of the Act, the said annexure is open for inspection and any
shareholder interested in obtaining a copy of the same may write to the Company Secretary and the same will be provided free of
cost to the shareholder.

By order of the Board of Directors

Rajesh R. Gandhi Devanshu L. Gandhi
Date : 13* August, 2021 Managing Director Managing Director
Place : Ahmedabad DIN: 00009879 DIN: 00010146
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the members of Vadilal Industries Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Qualified Opinion

We have audited accompanying standalone financial statements of Vadilal Industries Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of
Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for the effects / possible effects
of the matters described in the ‘Basis for Qualified Opinion’ section of our report, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India including Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind AS’) specified under section 133 of the
Act, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021, and its loss (including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and
the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

We are unable to comment upon the possible effects of the following matters, on the standalone financial statements of the Company
for the year ended March 31, 2021. The matter more fully discussed in Note 50 of the standalone financial statements pertaining to the
pending receipt of conclusive reports/findings for the item described therein:

1. Matter involving counter allegations levelled by two Promoter Directors against each other in respect of potential personal
expenses claimed as official business expenditure amounting to ¥ 25.33 lakh (for financial year 2017-18 and financial year 2018-
19), and % 25.00 lakh (for financial year 2014-15 and financial year 2018-19) respectively, by the Promoter Directors.

Pending receipt of the reports/findings, as referred above, we are unable to conclude the possible effects on the standalone financial
statements of any undetected misstatements, if any, and whether it could be material.

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (“SAs”) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Company
in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI") together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

Emphasis of Matter
We draw attention to

1. Note 51 of the standalone financial statements, which describes the management’s assessment of the impact of the outbreak of
COVID-19 on the business operations of the Company.

2. Note 40 of the standalone financial statements, which refers to the status of on-going litigations filed against the Company
and some of its promoters under Section 241 and 242 of the Companies Act, 2013, pertaining to prevention of oppression and
mismanagement of the Company before the National Company Law Tribunal, Ahmedabad.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the standalone financial
statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2021. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

In addition to the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section, we have determined the matters described below to be
the key audit matters to be communicated in our report. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter
is provided in that context.
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Key audit matters

| How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Inventory Existence and Carrying Value

Refer to Note 2(d) (accounting policy), Note 9 to
the standalone financial statements.

Inventory is held by Company’s plants, and hired
locations across India.

The Company has significant levels of inventories
and significant management judgments are taken
with regard to categorization of inventories into
obsolete and/or slow moving and which should be
therefore be considered for provision. Estimates
are then involved in arriving at provisions against
cost in respect of slow moving and obsolete
inventories to arrive at valuation based on lower
of cost and net realizable value.

Given the level of significant management
judgments and estimates involved this is
considered to be a key audit matter.

Our procedures included:

Performed inventory count at plant on sample basis, which were selected
based on financial significance and risk. Where locations were not attended,
we tested certain controls over inventory existence across the Company.

Observing sample of management’s inventory count procedures, to assess
compliance with the Company process.

Performing roll forward procedures for the year-end balance from the date of
inventory count attended.

Obtaining inventory confirmations from the hired locations as on balance
sheet date and comparing the same with the inventory as per books and
obtaining the reconciliations for the variations (if any).

Challenging the management with regard to the calculation methodology,
the basis for provision and the process with respect to inventory provision;

Testing the design, implementation and operating effectiveness of the key
controls management has established for provision computations and to
ensure the accuracy of the inventory provision.

Assessing the adequacy of, and movements in, inventory provisions held,
by recalculating a sample of items included within the provision to ensure
appropriate basis of valuation.

Evaluating, on a sample basis, whether inventories were stated at the lower of

cost or net realizable value at the reporting date by comparing the sales prices
of inventories subsequent to the reporting date.

Evaluating the appropriateness of the assumptions used based on our
knowledge and information of the client and the industry.

Assessment of going concern basis

We draw attention to the standalone financial
statements which indicates that the Company
has incurred loss before tax amounting to ¥
3,170.71Lakh for the year ended March 31, 202
1 which have resulted in erosion of net worth of
the Company and its current liabilities exceeds its
current assets by ¥ 2,689.99 Lakh as at March 31,
2021 with a consequent lower credit rating of its
borrowings.

Management has prepared future cash flow
forecasts taking into cognizance the above
developments and performed sensitivity analysis
of the key assumptions used therein to assess
whether the Company would be able operate
as a going concern for a period of at least 12
months from the date of financial statements,
and concluded that the going concern basis
of accounting used for preparation of the
accompanying financial statements is appropriate
with no material uncertainty.

We have considered the assessment of
management’s evaluation of going concern
basis of accounting as a key audit matter due to
the pervasive impact thereof on the standalone
financial statements and the significant
judgements and assumptions that are inherently
subjective and dependent on future events,
involved in preparation of cash flow projections
and determination of the overall conclusion by
the management.

Our procedures included:

Obtained an understanding of the management'’s process for identifying all
the events or conditions that could impact the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern and the process followed to assess the mitigating factors
for such events or conditions. Also, obtained an understanding around the
methodology adopted and the associated controls implemented by the
Company to assess their future business performance to prepare a robust
cash flow forecast;

Reconciled the cash flow forecast to the future business plans of the Company
as approved by the management. In order to corroborate management’s
future business plans and to identify potential contradictory information, we
read the minutes of the Board of Directors and discussed the same with the
management;

Tested the appropriateness of key assumptions used by the management,
including the impact of COVID-19 pandemic on such assumption, that had
most material impact in preparation of the cash flow forecast;

Assessed the methodology used by the management to estimate the cash
flow projections including the appropriateness of the key assumptions in the
cash flow projections for next 12 months by considering our understanding
of the business, past performance of the Company, external data and market
conditions apart from discussing these assumptions with the management;
and

Tested mathematical accuracy of the projections and applied independent
sensitivity analysis to the key assumptions mentioned above to determine
and ensure that there was sufficient headroom with respect to the estimation
uncertainty impact of such assumptions on the calculations.
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The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Corporate
Governance and Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.
The other information is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditors’ report.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained during the
course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we are required
to communicate the matter to those charged with governance as required under SA 720 'The Auditors’ responsibilities relating to other
Information’.

Responsibilities of the Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the
preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including
other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, Management and Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the
audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by management.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditors’report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and

significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2021, and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government in terms of Section
143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and except for the matter described in the “Basis for Qualified Opinion” paragraph, obtained all the
information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b)  Except for the matter described in the “Basis for Qualified Opinion” paragraph, in our opinion, proper books of account as
required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and
Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d)  Except for the effects of the matter described in the “Basis for Qualified Opinion” paragraph above, in our opinion, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act,
read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

(e)  The matter described in the “Basis for Qualified Opinion” paragraph in our opinion, may have an adverse effect on the
functioning of the Company.

(f) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2021 taken on record by the Board
of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act;

()  The qualification relating to maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are as stated in the “Basis for
Qualified Opinion” paragraph above and para 2(b)

(h)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company with reference to
these financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B” to
this report;

(i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

l. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its standalone financial
statements — Refer Note 39 to the standalone financial statements;

I. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material
foreseeable losses;

M. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the
Company.

For Arpit Patel & Associates.

Chartered Accountants

[Firm Registration No: 144032W]

Arpit K. Patel

Partner

Place: Ahmedabad [Membership No.: 034032]
Date: June 30, 2021 UDIN: 21034032AAAACE8099
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report to the members of Vadilal
Industries Limited of even date)

The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of the Company on the standalone financial statements for
the year ended March 31, 2021.

We report that:

(i). (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars; including quantitative details and situation of fixed
assets.

(b)  The Company has a regular program of physical verification of its fixed assets by which all fixed assets are verified in a
phased manner over a period of three years, which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company
and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, portion of the fixed assets were physically verified by the Management
during the year. According to information and explanation given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

(0) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us and based on the examination
of the registered sale deed/transfer deed/conveyance deed provided to us, we report that, the title deeds, comprising all
the immovable properties of land and buildings which are freehold, are held in the name of the Company as at the balance
sheet date, except for the following:

Particulars of the land and building Gross Block (as at | Net Block (as at | Remarks (give reasons for the
March 31, 2021) | March 31, 2021) | exception)

Freehold land located at Dwarka admeasuring T 338.44 lakh ¥ 338.44 lakh | The title deeds are not readily

58,096 sq. mtrs. available.

Freehold land located at Bareilly admeasuring 7 8.82 lakh ¥ 8.82 lakh | The title deeds are not readily

94 sq. yards available.

House Building Located at Pushpak Bungalow, T 13.39lakh ¥ 8.21 lakh | The title deed is in dispute.

Ahmedabad admeasuring 200 sq. yards

Residential Flat in Maruti Centre, Ahmedabad ¥ 13.34 lakh % 4.46 lakh | The title deeds are not readily

admeasuring carpet area 4750 sq. ft. available.

Investment property located at Mahalaya ¥20.69 lakh ¥18.72 lakh | The title deed is not yet in name

Complex, Ahmedabad admeasuring 1360 sq. of the Company

ft.

(ii).  Asexplained to us, inventories have been physically verified at reasonable intervals by the management during the period. In our
opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable. No material discrepancies were noticed during such verification.

(iii).  The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties
covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(iv).  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act in
respect of loans to directors including entities in which they are interested and in respect of loans and advances given, investments
made and, guarantees, and securities given, have been complied with by the Company, as applicable.

(v).  Inouropinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the provisions of
Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules,
2014, as amended. According to the information and explanations given to us, no order has been passed by the Company Law
Board or the National Company Law Tribunal or the Reserve Bank of India or any Court or any other Tribunal.

(vi).  To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to
maintain cost records pursuant to Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended, prescribed by the Central
Government under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.

(vii).  According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

(@)  The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Provident Fund, Income-tax,
Customs Duty, cess, Goods and Service Tax and other material statutory dues applicable to it to the appropriate authorities.

(b)  There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Income-tax, Customs Duty, cess, Goods and
Service Tax and other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2021 for a period of more than six months from the
date they became payable
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(c) Details of dues of Sales Tax, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess, Goods and Services Tax and Income-tax which have not
been deposited as on 31st March, 2021 on account of disputes are given below:

Sr | Name of Statute Nature of Forum where dispute Period to Amount Amount
No. Dues is pending which the involved unpaid
amount relates (In% Lakh) (In% Lakh)
1 |Central Sales Tax Salestaxand | High Court 1998-99 39.07 23.24
Act, Sales Tax Acts of penalty
various states & Goods | Additional tax |JT Comm S.Tax 2000-01 12.49 12.49
and Service Tax demand
Sales tax DC, Appeal-4, Mehsana 2000-01 20.74 15.74
demand
Sales tax Dy. Comm, S. Tax 2001-02 1.55 1.55
demand
Sales tax Sales Tax Tribunal, 2002-03 2.10 0.60
demand Bhubaneshwar
Sales tax asst. | JC-1, Appeal, 2003-04 2.39 2.39
dues Ahmedabad
Purchasetax |JC-1, Appeal, 2003-04 0.46 0.46
Ahmedabad
Sales tax Sales Tax Tribunal 2004-05 3.67 3.67
Salestaxand | Sales Tax Tribunal 2010-11 24.81 14.81
penalty
Sales tax JC-Corporate, Bareilly. 2010-11 8.02 7.25
Sales tax Addnl. Comm., Grade-2 2013-14 9.34 467
Appeal, Bareilly.
Sales tax Addnl. Comm., Grade-2 2012-13 0.66 -
Appeal, Bareilly
Sales tax Addnl. Comm., Grade-2 2017-18 0.25 -
Appeal, Bareilly.
Sales tax Addnl. Comm., Grade-2 2015-16 3.83 1.25
Appeal, Bareilly
Sales tax Addnl. Comm., Grade-2 2016-17 2.07 -
Appeal, Bareilly
Sales tax Addnl. Comm., Grade-2 2016-17 0.19 -
Appeal, Bareilly
Sales tax Addnl. Comm., Grade-2 2014-15 14.62 13.98
Appeal, Raigadh
GST Guijarat Authority for 2017-18 to 43.16 43.16
Advance Ruling 2020-21
GST Gujarat Authority for 2017-18 to 22.36 22.36
Advance Ruling 2020-21
Excise Act Excise duty Asst. Commissioner 1988-89 4.58 4.58
Excise duty Asst. Commissioner 2003-04 4.28 4.28
Excise duty Customs, Excise & 2011-12to 34.14 34.14
Service Tax Appellate 2014-15
Tribunal
2 |Income tax Income tax ITAT 1996-97 1.93 1.93

(viii). According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not
defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to any financial institution or bank or Government as at the balance sheet date.
The Company did not have any outstanding dues to debenture holders during the period.

(ix).  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, money raised by way of term loans has been
applied by the Company during the year for the purpose for which they were raised. The Company has not raised moneys by way
of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments).
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(x).  Wereferto the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our audit report, the outcome of which is inconclusive
as on date of this report. Read with the above, to the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations

given to us, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or
reported during the year.

(xi).  According to the information and explanations given by the management, the managerial remuneration has been paid / provided
in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act,
2013.

(xii).  In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.

(xiii). In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has entered into transactions with
related parties in compliance with the provisions of Sections 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013. The details of such related
party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standard.

(xiv). According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not
made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under
review. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3(xiv) are not applicable to the Company.

(xv). Based on the examinations of the records and according to the information and explanations given by the management, during
the year, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

(xvi). According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of
the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

For Arpit Patel & Associates.
Chartered Accountants
[Firm Registration No: 144032W]

Arpit K. Patel

Partner

Place: Ahmedabad [Membership No.: 034032]
Date: June 30, 2021 UDIN: 21034032AAAACE8099
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report

(Referred to in paragraph 3(h) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report to the members of
Vadilal Industries Limited of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company as of March 31, 2021, in conjunction with our
audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management and Board of Directors’ Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Management and the Board of Directors of the Company are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements
based on our audit conducted in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Control over Financial Reporting
(the “Guidance Note") and the standard on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and both issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining
an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified audit opinion on
the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company'’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of standalone financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions
of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
standalone financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets
that could have a material effect on the standalone financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion orimproper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Basis for Qualified Opinion

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit, the following material weakness has been identified
in the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting as at 31 March 2021:

We draw attention to Note 50 of the standalone financial statements relating to the counter allegations levelled by two Promoter Directors
against each other in respect of potential personal expenses claimed as official business expenditure amounting to ¥ 25.33 lakh (for
financial year 2017-18 and financial year 2018-19), and ¥ 25.00 lakh (for financial year 2014-15 and financial year 2018-19) respectively,
by the Promoter Directors. without following the process of the Company. Pending receipt of the reports/findings, as referred above, we
are unable to conclude whether the Company’s financial reporting process did have controls to identify the nature of the expenses and
the procedures to be followed for the payments made for certain travelling expenses.

A’material weakness'is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal financial control over financial reporting, such that there
is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the company’s annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or
detected on a timely basis.

Qualified Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for the possible effect of the material
weakness described in Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above on the achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, the
Company has maintained, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as of 31 March 2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the
ICAL

We have considered the material weakness identified and reported above in determining the nature, timing, and extent of audit tests
applied in our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31,2021, and this material weakness
has affected our opinion on the said standalone financial statements of the Company and we have issued a qualified opinion on the
standalone financial statements of the Company.

For Arpit Patel & Associates.
Chartered Accountants
[Firm Registration No: 144032W]

Arpit K. Patel

Partner

Place: Ahmedabad [Membership No.: 034032]
Date: June 30, 2021 UDIN: 21034032AAAACE8099
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STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET as at March 31, 2021

(X in Lacs)
Particulars Notes As at As at
u No. March 31,2021 | March 31,2020
l.  ASSETS
(1) Non-Current Assets
(a)  Property, Plant and Equipment 3(a) 29,271.07 29,202.04
(b) Capital Work-in-Progress 3 (b) 529.59 865.23
(¢) Investment Property 3(q) 18.72 19.06
(d) Intangible Assets 3(d) 105.75 137.68
(e) Right of Use Assets 3(e) 604.53 753.37
(f)  Financial Assets
(i) Investments 4 299.31 298.81
(i) Loans 5 1.05 274.64
(iii) Other Financial Assets 6 215.39 440.83
(g) Non Current Tax Assets (Net) 7 125.60 141.46
(h)  Other Non-Current Assets 8 253.47 626.97
Total Non-Current Assets 31,424.48 32,760.09
(2) Current Assets
(@) Inventories 9 12,632.72 14,556.30
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Investments 10 1.28 1.22
(ii) Trade Receivables 11 2,116.96 3,321.00
(iii) Cash & Cash Equivalents 12 846.73 665.13
(iv) Other Balances with Banks 13 1,045.27 914.49
(v) Loans 14 257.19 299.21
(vi) Other Financial Assets 15 83.28 258.04
(c)  Other Current Assets 16 1,735.10 1,232.39
Total Current Assets 18,718.53 21,247.78
Total Assets 50,143.01 54,007.87
Il. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Equity
(@) Equity Share capital 17 718.78 718.78
(b) Other Equity 18 20,259.80 22,667.17
Total Equity 20,978.58 23,385.95
(2) Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
(@) Financial Liabilities
(i)  Borrowings 19 5,537.11 4,820.28
(ii)  Other Financial Liabilities 20 589.33 738.47
(b) Provisions 21 256.67 195.53
(c) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 22 815.37 1,589.62
(d) Other Non Current Liabilities 23 557.43 609.25
Total Non-Current Liabilities 7,755.91 7,953.15
Current Liabilities
(@) Financial Liabilities
(i)  Borrowings 24 6,962.57 10,479.11
(ii) Trade Payables
- Dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 25 857.57 526.26
- Dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 25 9,350.22 7,604.78
enterprises
(iii) Other Financial Liabilities 26 2,756.58 3,341.28
(b) Provisions 27 334.29 298.13
(c)  CurrentTax Liabilities (Net) 28 17.82 -
(d) Other Current Liabilities 29 1,129.47 419.21
Total Current Liabilities 21,408.52 22,668.77
Total Liabilities 29,164.43 30,621.92
Total Equity and Liabilities 50,143.01 54,007.87_
See accompanying notes to the standalone financial statements.
In terms of our report attached.
For Arpit Patel & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm registration number: 144032W Rajesh R Gandhi Devanshu L Gandhi
Managing Director Managing Director
(DIN: 00009879) (DIN: 00010146)
Arpit K Patel Kalpit R Gandhi Rashmi Bhatt
Partner Director & Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Membership No.: 034032 (DIN: 02843308)
Place : Ahmedabad Place : Ahmedabad
Date: June 30, 2021 Date: June 30, 2021
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STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS for the year ended March 31, 2021

(X in Lacs)
Particulars Notes Year Ended Year Ended
No. March 31,2021 | March 31,2020
| Revenue From Operations 30 35,654.01 51,662.97
I OtherIncome 31 1,202.18 842.08
Il Total Income (I+Il) 36,856.19 52,505.05
IV Expenses:
Cost of Materials Consumed 32 21,353.31 29,033.85
Purchase of Stock-in-trade 33 414.51 860.76
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods and Stock-in-trade 34 552.28 (201.64)
Employee Benefits Expense 35 3,426.78 4,385.71
Finance Costs 36 2,008.52 1,472.53
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 3 1,828.62 1,887.89
Other Expenses 37 10,442.88 11,626.96
Total Expense (IV) 40,026.90 49,066.06
V  Profit/(Loss) Before Tax (llI-IV) (3,170.71) 3,438.99
VI Tax Expenses
(@) CurrentTax 38 17.39 860.43
(b) Deferred Tax 38 (778.28) (636.21)
Total Tax Expenses (760.89) 224.22
VIl Profit/ (Loss) for the year (V-VI) (2,409.82) 3,214.77
VIIl Other Comprehensive Income
(i)  Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans 3.27 (35.58)
(ii)  Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (0.82) (2.54)
Other Comprehensive Income for the year 2.45 (38.12)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year (VII+VIII) (2,407.37) 3,176.65
Earning Per Share (Face Value of T 10 each)
- Basic & Diluted 44 (33.53) 4473
See accompanying notes to the standalone financial statements.
In terms of our report attached.
For Arpit Patel & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm registration number: 144032W Rajesh R Gandhi Devanshu L Gandhi
Managing Director Managing Director
(DIN: 00009879) (DIN: 00010146)
Arpit K Patel Kalpit R Gandhi Rashmi Bhatt
Partner Director & Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Membership No.: 034032 (DIN: 02843308)
Place : Ahmedabad Place : Ahmedabad
Date: June 30, 2021 Date: June 30, 2021
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STATEMENT OF STANDALONE CASH FLOWS for the year ended March 31, 2021

(X in Lacs)
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31,2021 | March 31,2020
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit / (Loss) Before Tax (3,170.71) 3,438.99
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 1,828.62 1,887.89
(Profit) / Loss on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment (Net) 21.22 (1.53)
Profit on Sale of Investments (2.08) (24.07)
Excess Provision Written Back (85.83) (69.42)
(Gain) / Loss on Fair Value of Current Investment (0.06) 0.21
(Gain) / Loss on Fair Value of Non Current Investment (0.50) 3.63
Financial Guarantee Commission Income (28.91) (28.99)
Grant Income (51.81) (55.65)
Interest Income (414.59) (103.87)
Finance Costs 2,008.52 1,472.53
Provision for Doubtful Debts (6.63) 19.38
Share of (Profit) / Loss of Partnership Firm 24.05 22.79
Unrealised foreign exchange (Gain)/Loss 32.18 (135.37)
3,324.18 2,987.53
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 153.47 6,426.52
Changes in Working Capital:
(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories 1,923.58 (2,725.00)
(Increase) / Decrease in Trade Receivables, Financial Assets, Other assets and Loans 1,484.25 (578.63)
given
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade Payables, Financial Liabilities, Other Liabilities and 2,634.71 2,668.60
Provisions
Cash Generated from / (Used in) Operations 6,042.54 (635.03)
Income Taxes Paid (Net of Refund) 19.51 (1,034.55)
Net Cash Generated from / (Used in) Operating Activities (A) 6,215.52 4,756.94
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital Expenditure on Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Assets (1,435.22) (5,160.01)
Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment 15.22 16.37
Proceeds from Sale of Current Investment (Net) 2.08 24.07
Purchase of Non Current Investments - (12.00)
Interest Received 381.01 85.33
Net Cash Generated from / (Used in) Investing Activities (B) (1,036.91) (5,046.24)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Non Current Borrowings 2,417.50 4,169.71
Repayment of Non Current Borrowings (1,922.52) (5,597.84)
Proceeds from / (Repayment of) Current Borrowings (Net) (3,516.54) 3,915.22
Payment of Lease Liabilities (85.56) (76.22)
Interest Paid (1,889.89) (1,430.07)
Dividend Paid (Including Tax on Dividend) - (108.32)
Net Cash Generated from / (Used in) Financing Activities (C) (4,997.01) 872.48
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STATEMENT OF STANDALONE CASH FLOWS for the year ended March 31, 2021

(X in Lacs)
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31,2021 | March 31,2020
Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash and Cash equivalents (A+B+C) 181.60 583.18
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 665.13 81.95
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year (Refer Note-12) 846.73 665.13

See accompanying notes to the standalone financial statements.

Disclosure under Para 44A as set out in Ind AS 7 on cash flow statements

Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended).

under Companies (Indian Accounting

(X in Lacs)
Particulars of liabilities arising from financing activity. Note | Asat March Net cash Other | Asat March
No. 31,2020 Flows changes* 31,2021
Borrowings :
Non Current borrowings 19 6,661.74 450.18 44.80 7,156.72
Current borrowings 24 10,479.11 (3,516.54) - 6,962.57
Interest accrued on borrowings 26 220.90 (220.90) 339.53 339.53
Total 17,361.75 (3,287.26) 384.33 14,458.82
(R in Lacs)
Particulars of liabilities arising from financing activity. Note | Asat March Net cash Other | Asat March
No. 31,2019 Flows changes* 31,2020
Borrowings :
Non Current borrowings 19 8,089.87 (1,481.18) 53.05 6,661.74
Current borrowings 24 6,563.89 3,915.22 - 10,479.11
Interest accrued on borrowings 26 178.44 (178.44) 220.90 220.90
Total 14,832.20 2,255.60 273.95 17,361.75

*This relates to amount charged to the statement of Profit & Loss

1)  The above cash flow has been prepared under Indirect Method set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS 7) Statement of Cash

Flow.

2)  Previous year figures have been regrouped wherever necessary to make them comparable with current year figures.

3)  Figures in bracket represent outflow.

In terms of our report attached.

For Arpit Patel & Associates

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm registration number: 144032W

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Rajesh R Gandhi
Managing Director

Devanshu L Gandhi
Managing Director

(DIN: 00009879)

Kalpit R Gandhi

Director & Chief Financial Officer
(DIN: 02843308)

Place : Ahmedabad

Date: June 30, 2021

(DIN: 00010146)

Rashmi Bhatt
Company Secretary

Arpit K Patel

Partner

Membership No.: 034032
Place : Ahmedabad

Date: June 30, 2021
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2

COMPANY OVERVIEW:-

Vadilal Industries Limited is a Public Limited Company domiciled in India. The company has its registered office at Vadilal House, 53,
Shrimali Society, Nr. Navrangpura Railway Crossing, Navrangpura, Ahmedabad - 380009.

The Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing Ice-cream, Flavored Milk, Frozen Dessert, Processed Foods, Other Dairy
Products. It is also engaged in export of Ice-cream, Dairy Products, Processed Food Products such as Frozen Fruits, Vegetable, Pulp,
Ready-to-eat and Ready-to-serve products etc.

The Company is having two ice-cream production facilities — one in Gujarat and the other in Uttar Pradesh.
The Company is processing Frozen Fruits, Vegetables and Processed Foods at factory situated at Dharampur, Dist.Valsad, Gujarat.
The Company is exporting to various countries across globe.

The Company is having RBI license under AD.Il category and engaged in Money changing business. The Company’s shares are listed
on BSE and NSE.

The Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee and
approved by the Board of Directors at their meetings held on June 30, 2021.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:-
a) Statement of Compliance

These financial statements comprising of Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive
income, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows as at March 31, 2021 have been prepared in
accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) as prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2016.

b) Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that are
measured at fair values at the end of each financial year, as explained in the accounting policies below. Historical cost is
generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (“INR”) and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhs as per the
requirement of Schedule IlI, except when otherwise indicated.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or liability, the Company takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristic into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement

asawhole:
1) Level T — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or Liabilities.
2) Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is

directly or indirectly observable.

3) Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable.

c) Use of Estimates

The presentation of the financial statements are in conformity with the Ind AS which requires the management to make
estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, revenues and expenses
and disclosure of contingent liabilities. Such estimates and assumptions are based on management’s evaluation of relevant
facts and circumstances as on the date of financial statements. The actual outcome may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on going basis. Revisions to the accounting estimates are
recognized in the financial year in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.
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d)

e)

f)

g)

h)

Inventories
Inventories are valued as under -

Finished Goods:-At lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion
of manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity, but excluding borrowing costs. Cost is determined
on weighted average basis. Due provision for obsolescence is made. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Raw Materials, Packing Materials & Stores and Spares:-Valued at lower of cost or net realisable value and for this purpose
cost is determined on moving weighted average basis. Due provision for obsolescence is made.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value and having maturities of three months or less from the date of
purchase, to be cash equivalents.

Revenue Recognition

Sale of Goods

The Company earns revenue primarily from sale of manufactured ice-creams. It has applied the principles laid down in
Ind AS 115 and determined that there is no change required in the existing revenue recognition methodology. In case of
sale to domestic customers, most of the sale is made on ex-factory basis and revenue is recognised when the goods are
dispatched from the factory gates. In case of export sales, revenue is recognised on shipment date or goods are made
available to customer.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable net of returns and allowances, trade
discounts and volume rebates, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment excluding taxes or duties
collected on behalf of the government.

Assets and liabilities arising from rights to return
Right to return assets

A return right gives an entity a contractual right to recover the goods from a customer (return asset), if the customer
exercises its option to return the goods and obtain a refund. The asset is measured at the former carrying amount of the
inventory, less any expected costs to recover the goods, including any potential decreases in the value of the returned
goods.

Refund liabilities

A refund liability is the obligation to refund some or all of the consideration received (or receivable) from the customer. The
Company has therefore recognized refund liabilities in respect of customer’s right to return. The liability is measured at the
amount the Company ultimately expects it will have to return to the customer. The Company updates its estimate of refund
liabilities (and the corresponding change in the transaction price) at the end of each reporting period.

Interest Income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefit will flow to the Company
and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interestincome is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and the interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Government Grant

Government grants are not recognized until there is reasonable assurance that the Company will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognized in profit and loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the Company
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.

Export incentives under various schemes notified by government are accounted for in the year of exports based on
eligibility and when there is no uncertainty in receiving the same.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant & equipments are stated at actual cost (including cost of acquisition and installation) less accumulated
depreciation and net of impairment, if any.
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)

k)

All items of property, plant and equipments are derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Depreciation

Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its estimated residual
value. Depreciation on property, plant and equipment are charged based on straight line method on estimated useful
life as prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 except in respect of the following assets, for which, based on
technical evaluation, useful life is different than those prescribed in Schedule II.

Particulars Estimated Useful Life
Building

1)  Factory Building 28 Years

2)  Others - RCC Structured 58 Years

Plant & Machinery

1)  Continuous Process 18 Years

2)  Plastic Crates 5 Years

3)  Others 20 Years

The estimated useful lives and residual values of the property, plant and equipment are reviewed at the end of each
financial year, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Depreciation on items of property, plant and equipment acquired / disposed off during the year is provided on pro-rata
basis with reference to the date of addition / disposal.

Intangible Assets
Intangible Assets Acquired Separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
The estimated useful life are reviewed at the end of each financial year, with the effect of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Derecognition of Intangible Assets

An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is
derecognized.

Useful Lives of Intangible Assets
Intangible assets are amortised over their estimated useful life on a straight line basis over a period of 5 years.

Investment Property
Investment property comprise portion of office building that are held for long term yield and / or capital appreciation.

Investment property is initially recognized at cost. Subsequently investment property comprising of building is carried at
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Investment property is depreciated under the straight line method as per the rates and the useful life prescribed as per
Schedule Il of the Companies Act.Though the Company measures investment property using cost based measurement,
the fair value of investment property is disclosed in the notes. Fair values are determined based on value as per local body
on periodic basis.

Investment properties are derecognized when either they have been disposed of or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no economic benefit is expected from its disposal.

The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the
inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of
a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly
specified in an arrangement.

37TH ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21 | 81



- Vol

Company as a lessee :

(i) Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying
asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows:

Assets Estimated useful life
Right-of-use of office premises & parlour premises Over the balance peiod of lease agreement

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise
of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. The right-of-use assets
are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in relating to Impairment of non-financial assets.

(i) Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of
lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance
fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price
of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating
the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the
period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for
the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification,
a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a
change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to
purchase the underlying asset.

(iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases. (i.e. those leases that
have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also
applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption that are considered to be low value. Lease payments
on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

(iv) Leases previously classified as finance leases
The Company as a lessor

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease.
All other leases are classified as operating leases.

When the Company is an intermediate lessor, itaccounts for its interests in the head lease and the sublease separately.
The sublease is classified as a finance or operating lease by reference to the ROU asset arising from the head lease.
For operating leases, rental income is recognized on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

1) Foreign Currencies

In preparing the financial statements of the Company, the transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional
currency ) are recognized at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each financial
year, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rate prevailing at that date and differences
are recognised in statement of profit and loss account. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the rates prevailing at the date when fair value was determined. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on monetary items are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which they
arise.
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m)

n)

o)

p)

Employee Benefits
Employee benefits include provident fund, employee state insurance scheme, gratuity fund and compensated absences.

Defined Contribution Plan:

The Company'’s contribution to Provident Fund is considered as defined contribution plans and are charged as an expense
based on the amount of contribution required to be made and when services are rendered by the employees.

Defined Benefit Plans:

For defined benefit plans in the form of gratuity fund, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected
Unit Credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at each balance sheet date. Remeasurement, comprising
actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the return on plan assets (excluding net interest), is reflected
immediately in the balance sheet with a charge or credit recognized in other comprehensive income in the financial year
in which they occur. Remeasurement recognized in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained
earnings and is not reclassified to in the statement of profit and loss. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount
rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset.

The Company recognizes the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of
profit and loss:

1) Service costs comprising current service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and settlements; and
2) Net interest expense or income

The retirement benefit obligation recognized in the Balance Sheet represents the present value of the defined benefit
obligation as adjusted for unrecognized past service cost, as reduced by the fair value of scheme assets. Any asset resulting
from this calculation is limited to past service cost, plus the present value of available refunds and reductions in future
contributions to the schemes.

Short-term and Long-term Employee Benefits:

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave in
the period the related services rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for
that service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits
expected to be paid in exchange of the related service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of long-term employee benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated future
cash outflows expected to be made by the company in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date.
Borrowing Costs

Borrowing cost includes interest, amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of borrowings
and exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to
the interest cost.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which they are incurred.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The company did not have any potential dilutive
securities in any period presented.

Taxation

Tax expense represents the sum of the current tax and deferred tax.

Current Tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be
paid to the tax authorities, based on estimated tax liability computed after taking credit for allowances and exemption
in accordance with the local tax laws. The Company’s current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the financial year.
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q)

r)

s)

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilized. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognized if the temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each financial year and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability
is settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the financial year.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner
in which the Company expects, at the end of the financial year, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Current and Deferred Tax for the Year

Current and deferred tax are recognized in the statement of profit and loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognized in other comprehensive income, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognized in other
comprehensive income.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets and Commitments

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it
is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the financial year, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligations. When a provision
is measured using the cash flow estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present obligations
of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party,
a receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the
receivable can be measured reliably.

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but
probably will not, require an outflow of resources. Where there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of
which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no disclosure is made.

Contingent Assets are not recognised but disclosed in the Financial Statements when economic inflow is probable.

Investments in Subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Where an indication of impairment
exists, the carrying amount of the investment is assessed and written down immediately to its recoverable amount. On
disposal of investments in subsidiaries, the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts are
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial Instruments

Financial instrument is a contract that give rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument
of another entity.

Classification:

The Company classifies financial assets as subsequently measured atamortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income or fair value through profit and loss on the basis of its business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual cash flows characteristics of the financial asset.

All financial liabilities are classified as subsequently measured at amortised cost except for financial liabilities at fair value
through profit and loss. Such liabilities, including derivatives, are subsequently measured at fair value, with any gains or
loss arising on remeasurement recognised in profit and loss.

Initial Recognition and Measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
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to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than Financial asset and liabilities at fair value
through profit & loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of the financial assets
or financial liabilities.

Financial Assets at Amortised Cost
Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective interest rate method, if:

(a) the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows and

(b)  the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Financial Asset at Fair Value Through Profit and Loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit and loss unless it is measured at amortized cost or fair value
through other comprehensive income. Financial assets under this category are measured initially as well as at each financial
year at fair value with all changes recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition of Financial Assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when
it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. If the
Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained interest in the asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity is recognized in profit and loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognized
in profit and loss on disposal of that financial asset.

Financial Liabilities and Equity Instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Financial instruments are classified as a liability or equity according to the substance of the contractual arrangement and
not its legal form.

Equity Instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of issue costs.

Financial Liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value,
with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit and loss.

Derecognition of Financial Liabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are discharged, cancelled
or have expired. An exchange between a lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms is accounted for as
an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, a substantial
modification of the terms of an existing financial liability (whether or not attributable to the financial difficulty of the
debtor) is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial
liability. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognized and the consideration paid and
payable is recognized in profit and loss.

Derivative Contracts

The Company enters into derivative financial instruments to hedge foreign currency / price risk on unexecuted firm
commitments and highly probable forecast transactions.

Such derivatives financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value on the date on which the derivative contracts
are entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of each financial year. The resulting gain
or loss is recognized in the statement of profit and loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective as a
hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition in profit and loss depends on the nature of the hedging
relationship and the nature of the hedged item.
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t)

u)

Financial Guarantee Contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder
for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by a Company entity are initially measured at their fair values and, if not designated
as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher of:

. the amount of loss allowance determined in accordance with impairment requirements of Ind AS 109; and

. the amount initially recognized less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognized in the
statement of Profit & Loss

Impairment
Financial assets (other than at fair value)
The Company assesses at each Balance sheet whether a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired.

Non-financial Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets

At the end of each financial year, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).
When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can
be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of cash generating unit for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognized
immediately in the statement profit and loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash generating unit) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset (or cash generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

Operating Cycle
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current / non-current classification based on
operating cycle.

An asset is treated as current when it is:

1. Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

2 Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

3. Expected to be realized within twelve months after end of financial year, or

4 Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months

after end of financial year
All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

1. It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

2 It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

3. It is due to be settled within twelve months after end of financial year, or

4 There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after end of the

financial year

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
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v)

w)

X)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
The company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

Recent accounting pronouncements

Amendment to Ind AS 116 “Leases” - Insertion of practical expedient for COVID-19 related lease concessions

The amendment provides lessee with a practical expedient and an exemption to assess whether a COVID-19 related
rent concession is a lease modification to payments originally due on or before June 30, 2021. Amendment also requires
disclosure of the amount recognised in statement of profit and loss to reflect changes in lease payments that arise from
such concession. The Company has not recognised any amount as reversal of lease liability in the statement of profit and
loss.

Standards issued but not yet effective

As at the date of issue of financial statements, there are no new standards or amendments which have been notified by the
MCA but not yet adopted by the Company. Hence, the disclosure is not applicable.

Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with the Ind AS requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities
and disclosures as at date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of the revenues and expenses for the
years presented. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions and conditions. The
estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the financial year that may have a significant risk of causing as material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within next financial year.

i. Useful Lives of Property, Plant and Equipment

As described in Note 2(h), the Company reviews the estimated useful lives and residual values of property, plant and
equipment at the end of each financial year. During the current financial year, the management determined that
there were no changes to the useful lives and residual values of the property, plant and equipment.

ii. Allowances for Doubtful Debts

As described in Note 11, the Company makes allowances for doubtful debts based on an assessment of the
recoverability of trade and other receivables. The identification of doubtful debts requires use of judgement and
estimates. Where the expectation is different from the original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying
value of the trade and other receivables and doubtful debts expenses in the financial year in which such estimate
has been changed.

iii. Allowances for Inventories

Management reviews the inventory age listing on a periodic basis. This review involves comparison of the carrying
value of the aged inventory items with the respective net realizable value. The purpose is to ascertain whether an
allowance is required to be made in the financial statements for any obsolete and slow-moving items. Management
is satisfied that adequate allowance for obsolete and slow-moving inventories has been made in the financial
statements.

iv. Fair Value Measurement of Financial Instruments

When the fair values of financials assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet cannot be measured
based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques, including the
discounted cash flow model, which involve various judgements and assumptions. Information about the fair value
of various assets and liabilities are disclosed in Note 43.
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3 (b) | Capital Work In Progress (X in Lacs) 3(d) |Intangible Assets (R in Lacs)
(Software & Development Cost)
As at April 1,2019 1,319.63 Cost or Deemed Cost
Additions 3,806.71 As at April 1,2019 808.02
Deductions 4,261.11 Additions 33.80
As at March 31, 2020 865.23 Deductions -
Additions 1,192.83 As at March 31,2020 841.82
Deductions 1,528.47 Additions 22.72
As at March 31, 2021 529.59 Deductions -
3 (c) | Investment Property * (R in Lacs) As at March 31, 2021 864.54
Deemed cost Amortisation
As at April 1,2019 20.69 As at April 1,2019 614.96
Additions - Depreciation charge for the year 89.18
Deductions - Deductions -
As at March 31, 2020 20.69 As at March 31, 2020 704.14
Additions - Depreciation charge for the year 54.65
Deductions - Deductions -
As at March 31, 2021 20.69 As at March 31,2021 758.79
Accumulated Depreciation Net Carrying Amount
As at April 1,2019 1.29 As at March 31, 2021 105.75
Depreciation charge for the year 0.34 As at March 31, 2020 137.68
Deductions -
As at March 31, 2020 1.63
Depreciation charge for the year 0.34
Deductions -
As at March 31, 2021 1.97
Net Carrying Amount
As at March 31, 2021 18.72
As at March 31, 2020 19.06
Fair Value of Investment Property
As at March 31, 2021 51.09
As at March 31,2020 51.09

*The property is in process of transfer in the name of the company.

3 (e) | Right of Use Assets (% in Lacs)
Cost or Fair Value
As at April 1,2019 -

Additions on account of transition to 885.67
INDAS 116

Deductions -
As at March 31, 2020 885.67
Additions -
Changes on account of lease (25.74)
modification

Deductions -
As at March 31, 2021 859.93
Accumulated Depreciation and

Impairment

As at April 1,2019 -
Additions on account of transition to 132.30
INDAS 116

Deductions -
As at March 31, 2020 132.30
Additions 123.10
Deductions / modifications -
As at March 31, 2021 255.40
Net Carrying Amount

As at March 31, 2021 604.53
As at March 31, 2020 753.37
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NOTE-4 INVESTMENTS

Particulars Face As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Value Units (% in Lacs) Units (% in Lacs)
Non Current Investments
A) Investment in Equity Instruments of Subsidiary at
cost (Unquoted fully paid up): (Refer Note-45)
Vadilal Industries (Inc.) USA $100 2,250 136.41 2,250 136.41
Varood Industries Ltd.** 10 50,000 5.00 50,000 5.00
Vadilal Delight Ltd.** 10 50,000 5.00 50,000 5.00
Vadilal Industries Pty Ltd.* AUD 1 100 0.06 100 0.05
Investment in Partnership Firm at cost:
Vadilal Cold Storage (Refer Note-45) - - 140.00 - 140.00

*  The company had incorporated a subsidiary company in Australia in the name of VADILAL INDUSTRIES PTY LTD. dated April 16,
2018 and this subsidiary has not started operations.

*%

The company has incorporated two new subsidiaries in the name of Varood Industries Ltd.and Vadilal Delights Ltd.dated February
19,2020 and January 31, 2020 respectively.

B) OtherInvestments

Investment in Government and Trust securities at

amortized cost (Unquoted):

7 Year National Saving Certificates - - 0.28 - 0.28

(Lodged with Government Authorities)

In Equity instruments of other companies at Cost

(Unquoted fully paid up) :

Kalupur Commercial Co-operative Bank Ltd. 25 8,000 2.00 8,000 2.00

In Equity instruments of other companies at FVTPL

(Unquoted fully paid up) :

Vadilal Forex and Consultancy Services Ltd. 10 36,250 6.51 36,250 6.06

Majestic Farm House Ltd. (Refer Note-45) 10 74,100 3.99 74,100 3.95

Padm Complex Ltd. 10 280 0.03 280 0.03

Volute Construction Ltd. 10 280 0.03 280 0.03

Total 299.31 298.81
NOTE- 5 LOANS (% in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at

March 31,2021 March 31, 2020

Non Current

Loan to Subsidiary (At Amortized Cost) (Refer Note-45) - 250.00

Investments in Current Capital of a Partnership Firm (Refer Note-45) - 19.26

Loan to employees 1.05 5.36

Others - 0.02
Total 1.05 274.64
NOTE-6 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (X in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at

March 31,2021, March 31,2020

Non Current

Margin Money Deposits with banks (Refer Note-13) 18.91 48.13

Security Deposits (Refer Note-45) - 270.65

Other Deposits 196.48 122.05
Total 215.39 440.83
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NOTE-7 TAX ASSETS (% in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2021 March 31,2020
Non Current
Taxes Receivable 125.60 141.46
Total 125.60 141.46
NOTE-8 OTHER ASSETS (X in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2021| March 31,2020
Non Current
Capital Advances 89.08 233.61
Prepaid Expenses 164.39 393.36
Total 253.47 626.97
NOTE-9 INVENTORIES (% in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2021| March 31,2020
(At lower of Cost or Net Realisable Value)
Raw Materials 6,797.19 8,565.68
Packing Materials 1,537.72 1,322.78
Finished Goods* 3,654.88 4,007.45
Stores, Spares and Consumables 642.93 660.39
Total 12,632.72 14,556.30

*Includes net of right to return assets of ¥ NIL (March 31, 2020 : ¥ 199.71 lacs) pursuant to Ind AS 115 - Revenue from Contracts with

Customers.

Inventories write downs are accounted, considering the nature of inventory usage, ageing and net realisable value. Write-down of
inventories amounted to T 586.84 lacs as at March 31, 2021 (as at March 31, 20203 520.12 lacs). These write-downs are recognised as an

expense in the statement of profit & loss.

NOTE-10 INVESTMENTS

Particulars Face As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Value Units (X in Lacs) Units (% in Lacs)
Current Investments
Investments in Equity Instruments-Quoted
(Valued at fair value through Profit and Loss)
Century Enka Ltd. 10 15 0.04 15 0.02
Great Eastern Shipping Co. Ltd. 10 100 0.31 100 0.20
GOL Offshore Ltd. 10 25 - 25 -
Interface Financial Services Ltd. 1 25,000 0.05 25,000 0.04
Radhe Developers Ltd. 10 4,900 0.41 4,900 0.49
Saket Projects Ltd. 10 2,500 0.02 2,500 0.02
Sanara Media Ltd. 1 9,00,000 0.45 9,00,000 0.45
Total 1.28 1.22
NOTE-11 TRADE RECEIVABLES (R in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2021, March 31,2020
Secured, Considered Good 104.49 106.07
Unsecured, Considered Good (Refer Note-45) 2,012.47 3,214.93
Unsecured, Considered Doubtful 32.20 38.83
2,149.16 3,359.83
Less: Allowance for Doubtful Trade Receivables (expected credit loss allowance) 32.20 38.83
Total 2,116.96 3,321.00

Note: Refer Note-43 for information about credit risk and market risk of Trade receivables.
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(% in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2021 March 31,2020

Break-up of trade receivables
Trade receivables from other than related parties 686.29 374.80
Receivables from related parties (Note-45) 1,430.67 2,946.20
Total 2,116.96 3,321.00

Notes

1. The credit period ranges from 0 days to 180 days.

2.  Before accepting any new customer, the Company assesses the potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by
customer. Limits attributed to customers are reviewed annually. There are no customers who represent more than 5% of the
total balance of trade receivable except, as at March 31, 2021 : ¥ 1594.56 lacs are due from two customers (as at March 31, 2020 :

T 2,946.20 lacs are due from two customers).

3. In determining the allowances for doubtful trade receivables, the Company has used a practical expedient by computing the
expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables based on company policy and ageing of the receivables that are due.

4. Movement in Expected Credit Loss Allowance

(X in Lacs)

Particulars As at As at
March 31,2021, March 31,2020

Balance at the beginning of the year 38.83 19.45
Add: Allowance for the year 11.87 20.59
Less: Reversal of provision due to recovery 18.50 1.21
32.20 38.83

Balance at the end of the year

5. Refund liabilities of ¥ NIL (March 31, 2020 : ¥ 247.30 lacs) pursuant to Ind AS 115 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers are

shown under Other Financial Libilities. (Refer Note-26)

NOTE-12 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ( in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2021 | March 31,2020
Balances with Banks :
In Current Accounts 832.56 648.89
Cash on hand 14.17 16.24
Total 846.73 665.13
Note: There are no restrictions with regards to Cash and Cash Equivalents
NOTE-13 OTHER BALANCES WITH BANKS (R in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2021| March 31, 2020
Balances in Fixed Deposits Repayment Reserve Account 278.58 278.59
Balances in Unclaimed Dividend Accounts 18.62 21.82
Margin Money Deposit (towards guarantee and LC issued by banks as well as for loan security) 766.98 662.21
1,064.18 962.62
Less : Margin Money Deposits with maturity of more than 12 months
Amount disclosed under Non-Current Financial Assets (Note-6) 18.91 48.13
Total 1,045.27 914.49

Note: Unclaimed Dividend Account balance can only be used for payment of Unclaimed Dividend.
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NOTE-14 LOANS (R in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
Current
Loan to Subsidiary (Refer Note-45) 250.00 288.71
Loan to Employees 7.19 10.50
Total 257.19 299.21
NOTE-15 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (R in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2021 March 31,2020
Current
(Unsecured, Considered Good)
Interest accrued on loans and deposits from related parties (Refer Note-45) 74.96 40.40
Interest accrued on loans and deposits from others 2.84 3.82
Other Deposits 5.48 14.11
Others* - 199.71
Total 83.28 258.04

*Includes right to return assets of ¥ NIL (March 31,2020:% 199.71 lacs) pursuant to Ind AS 115 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers.

NOTE-16 OTHER ASSETS ( in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2021, March 31,2020
Current
Prepaid Expenses 310.62 213.06
Balances with Govt.Authorities 445.60 537.03
Export Benefits Receivable 569.22 104.64
(A) 1,325.44 854.73
Advances for Goods & Expenses
Considered Good 409.66 377.66
Considered Doubtful 35.79 35.81
Less: Allowances for Doubtful Advance 35.79 35.81
(B) 409.66 377.66
Total (A+B) 1,735.10 1,232.39
NOTE-17 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL ( in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2021, March 31,2020
Authorised Share Capital:
1,50,00,000 (as at March 31, 2020 : 1,50,00,000) Equity shares of ¥ 10/- each 1,500.00 1,500.00
1,500.00 1,500.00
Issued, Subscribed and Fully paid-up Share Capital
Issued and Subscribed Share Capital :
71,88,230 (as at March 31,2020 : 71,88,230) Equity shares of ¥ 10/- each 718.82 718.82
718.82 718.82
Paid up Share Capital:
71,87,830 (as at March 31, 2020 : 71,87,830) Equity shares of ¥ 10/- each 718.78 718.78
718.78 718.78
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a) Reconciliation of number of equity shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
No.of shares| (IinLacs) |No.ofshares| (ZinLacs)
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the period 71,87,830 718.78 71,87,830 718.78
Add / Less: Issued shares / buy back during the year - - - -
Shares outstanding at the end of the period 71,87,830 718.78 71,87,830 718.78
b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares:

The company has issued only one class of equity share having par value of ¥ 10/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled
to one vote per share and are entitled to dividend as and when declared.

All shares rank equally with regard to the company’s residual assets after distribution of all preferential amount.

c) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company (Equity shares of ¥ 10 each fully paid)

Name of the Shareholder As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
No. of shares | % of holding | No. of shares | % of holding
held held
Vadilal International Pvt. Ltd. 28,09,704 39.09% 28,09,704 39.09%

As per records of the company, including its register of shareholders / members and other declarations received from shareholders
regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents legal ownership of shares.

NOTE-18 OTHER EQUITY R in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2021 | March 31,2020
Capital Reserve
Balance at beginning of the year 8.84 8.84
Balance at the end of the year 8.84 8.84
Securities Premium
Balance at beginning of the year 487.28 487.28
Balance at the end of the year 487.28 487.28
General Reserve
Balance at beginning of the year 5,000.00 5,000.00
Balance at the end of the year 5,000.00 5,000.00
Retained Earnings
Balance at beginning of the year 9,761.48 6,655.03
Add : Profit for the year (2,409.82) 3,214.77
Less : Appropriations
Dividend for the year including tax on dividend - 108.32
(Dividend per share ¥ Nil (PY. amount per share ¥ 1.25))
Total Appropriations - 108.32
Balance at the end of the year 7,351.66 9,761.48
Revaluation Reserve
Balance at beginning of the year 7,524.17 7,524.17
Balance at the end of the year 7,524.17 7,524.17
Other Comprehensive Income
Balance at beginning of the year (114.60) (76.48)
Add : Remeasurement of Employee Benefit 2.45 (38.12)
Balance at the end of the year (112.15) (114.60)
Total Other Equity 20,259.80 22,667.17

a) During previous year, on October 09, 2019 a dividend of ¥ 1.25 per share (total dividend ¥ 108.32 lacs) was paid to holders of fully
paid equity shares. The total dividend includes dividend distribution tax at applicable rates.

b) Nature and Purpose of Reserve

Capital Reserve : The company has created capital reserve out of investment utilization reserve written back and forfeited shares.
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Securities Premium Reserve : The amount received in excess of face value of the equity shares is recognised in Securities Premium
Reserve. This reserve is available for utilization in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. In case of equity-
settled share based payment transactions, the difference between fair value on grant date and nominal value of share is accounted
as securities premium reserve.

Revaluation Reserve : The company has created revaluation reserve out of revaluation of land carried out as at April 1, 2016.

General Reserve : The general reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation
purposes. As the general reserve is created by a transfer from one component of equity to another and is not an item of other
comprehensive income, items included in the general reserve will not be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss.

Retained Earnings : Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date, less any transfers to general reserve,
dividends or other distributions paid to shareholders.

NOTE-19 BORROWING R in Lacs)

Particulars As at As at
March 31,2021| March 31,2020

Non Current
Secured-at amortised Cost

Term Loans from Banks 4,182.46 3,700.73
Less: Current maturities of long term loans (Note-26) 1,082.46 594.51
3,100.00 3,106.22
Vehicle Loans from Bank 89.68 112.29
Less: Current maturities of vehicle loans (Note-26) 24.89 23.17
64.79 89.12
Term Loans from Non Banking Financial Company 395.43 451.17
Less: Current maturities of long term loans (Note-26) 75.91 4428
319.52 406.89
3,484.31 3,602.23

Unsecured-at amortised Cost
Public Fixed Deposits 2,489.15 2,397.55
Less: Current maturities of public fixed deposits (Note-26) 436.35 1,179.50
2,052.80 1,218.05
Total 5,537.11 4,820.28

Note

1 Refer Note-43 for information about Liquidity Risk.
2 Amount stated in current maturities is disclosed under the head of “ Other Current Financial Liabilities” (Note-26).

3 The Company has availed for moratorium in respect of term loans (interest & instalments) from March 1, 2020 to August 31, 2020
and accordingly classified Current & Non-Current Portion based on the moratorium availed.

Repayment Schedule of Loans

(¥ in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at Effective Terms of repayment
March 31,2021 | March 31, 2020 | Interest Rate

Term Loans

From Banks

Bank of Baroda 27.76 221.92 14.16% 72 monthly instalments of ¥ 27.78
lacs starting from December, 2014

Bank of Baroda (COVID 19) 203.40 - 8.15% 6 monthly instalments of ¥ 5.65 lacs
starting from December, 2020 and
12 monthly instalment of ¥ 16.01
lacs startig from June, 2021

State Bank of India (COVID 19) 140.00 - 7.40% 18 monthly instalments of ¥ 10.00
lacs starting from December, 2020

Indusind Bank (partially disbursed) 3,094.29 3,478.81 11.19% 72 monthly instalments of ¥ 61.11
lacs starting from February, 2019

Indusind Bank (GECL) (partially disbursed) 717.00 - 9.25% 48 monthly instalments of ¥ 14.94
lacs starting from February, 2022
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(R in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at Effective Terms of repayment
March 31,2021 | March 31,2020 | Interest Rate
From Non Banking Financial Company
Tata Capital Financial Services Ltd. 395.44 451.17 11.89% 78 monthly instalments of ¥ 6.33
lacs starting from October, 2019
Vehicle Loans from Bank
HDFC Bank Limited 89.68 112.29 8.30% to From 12 to 79 monthly Instalments
12.76% *0f%0.17 lacs to T 0.94 lacs
Total Loan (a) 4,667.57 4,264.19
Fixed deposits (b) 2,489.15 2,397.55 8.00% to 12 months to 36 months
9.00% based
on period of
deposit
Grand Total (a)+(b) 7,156.72 6,661.74

*Includes Interest portion

Term Loans from BOB 3 27.76 Lacs (As at March 31, 20203 221.92 Lacs), Indusind Bank ¥ 3094.29 Lacs (As at March 31,20203 3478.81
Lacs), GECL Loan sanctioned by Indusind Bank for ¥ 956.00 Lacs (As at March 31, 2021 ¥ 717.00 Lacs) are secured by way of Mortgage
on immovable properties and hypothecation on movable properties of the Company situated at the following places by way of 1st

()  Land and Building together with all plant and machineries situated on land bearing Final Plot No. 292-3-A of T. P. Scheme No. 14
of Mouje Dariapur- Kazipur of city taluka of Ahmedabad. (Ice-cream Plant) (1st charge)

(i) Land and Building together with all plant and machineries situated at Village Dharampur, forming part of New Survey Nos. 3645
i.e.Old Survey Nos.970/1 (Survey No. 970 (Paiki)) Mouje Dharampur of Dharampur Taluka, Dist. Valsad (Canning Unit) (1st charge)

(iii) Land and Building together with all plant and machineries situated at New Survey No.1663 i.e. Amalgamated Survey No.637/13/1
(Old Survey No.637/14,637/16,637/13/2,637/15,643/2,643/1,637/13/1) situated Village: Pundhra, Tal.: Kalol, Dist.: Gandhinagar

(iv) Basement and 3rd Floor, Vadilal House, Navrangpura, Ahmedabad (Office Complex) (1st charge)

(v) Land and Building together with all plant and machineries being Unit - |, situated at Plot No. D-24 Parsakhera Industrial Estate,

(vi) Land and Building together with all plant and machineries situated at New Survey No. 3647 i.e Old Survey No. 970 (Paiki) Mouje
Dharampur, Dist.: Valsad (IQF unit - excluding specific plant & machineries specifically financed by IDBI) (2nd charge)

Ground and 2nd Floor, Vadilal House, Navrangpura, Ahmedabad (Office Complex) (2nd charge)

Land and Building together with all plant and machineries situated at Unit - Il, being Plot No. D-23 and D-22, F-11/14/15 at
Parsakhera Industrial Estate, Bareilly, U.P. (Ice-cream Plant) (only on movable properties as 1st charge) (excluding specific plant &

(ix) Land and Building together with all plant and machineries situated at New Survey Nos. 3642, 3643, 3644 and 3646 i.e. Old Survey
Nos. 962/1, 966, 969 and 970/2 at Mouje Dharampur, Dist.: Valsad (New land). (1st charge)

(x) Land and Building together with all plant and machineries situated at Plot No. F-12, Parsakhera Industrial Estate, Bareilly, U.P.

(xi) Movable Properties situated at Gomtipur, Ahmedabad (only on movable properties as 2nd Charge)
(xii) 4 Flats No. 801 to 804, situated at Maruti Centre, Gurukul, Drive-in-Road, Ahmedabad (Residential Flats)

The Guaranteed Emergency Credit Line of ¥ 956.00 Lacs from Indusind Bank (As at March 31, 20213 717.00 Lacs) is secured by way of
2nd pari-passu charge over all the existing primary & collateral securities including mortgage created in favour of the Bank, movable

The above Term Loans are also secured by way of Hypothecation on entire current assets of the Company on 2nd pari-passu charge

A
and 2nd charge on pari-passu basis :-
(Ice-cream Plant) (1st charge)
Bareilly, U.P. (Ice-cream Plant) (1st charge)
(vii)
(viii)
machineries specifically financed by IDBI)
(Leased Property) (2nd Charge)
B
and immovable fixed assets of the Borrower, both present and future.
C
basis.
D Vehicle loans are secured by hypothecation of vehicles.

The Term Loans are secured by Corporate Guarantee by Majestic Farm House Ltd., Vadilal Cold Storage, Padm Complex Ltd. and Volute
Constructions Ltd. The Credit Facilities of Indusind Bank are also secured by Corporate Guarantee by Vadilal Enterprises Ltd.
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The Term Loan from Tata Capital Financial Services Ltd. Capped at - ¥ 493.40 Lacs (outstanding as at March 31, 2021 ¥ 395.44 Lacs and
as at March 31,2020% 451.17 Lacs) is secured as under :

(i)  Security deposit (SD) / Fixed Deposit (FD) of ¥ 250 lacs with a Bank as acceptable to TCFSL ,duly lien marked on Principal and
Interest in favor of TCFSL. With nature of Deposit : Reinvestment of interest and Maturity Instruction of Auto renew Principal and
Interest.

(i)  Corporate Guarantee by Vadilal Enterprises Ltd.

The Corporate Loan of ¥ 2,000.00 lacs from BOB and Term Loan of ¥ 493.40 lacs from Tata capital Financial Services Itd are also secured
by Personal Guarantee of Mr. Rajesh R Gandhi and Mr. Devanshu L Gandhi, Managing Directors of the Company.

The Short Term/Demand Loan of ¥ 226.00 lacs from Bank of Baroda under Baroda Covid Emergency Credit Line is secured as under :
() Primary; Hypothecation of Stock and Book Debts on First and Pari-passu basis.

(i)  First charge and Second charge on fixed assets on Pari-passu basis. Personal and Corporate Guarantee of Promoters/Corporate
Guarantors as per Lead Bank approval.

Fund Based Working Capital (Demand Loan) of ¥ 180.00 lacs from State Bank of India under Common Covid 19 Emergency Credit Line
is secured as under:

(i)  Extension of charge on existing primary and or collateral security and Personal and Corporate Guarantee of Promoters/Corporate
Guarantors as per Lead Bank approval.

Collateral / Additional Securities by Group Companies :-

A Existing Term Loan from BOB Corporate Loan of ¥ 2,000.00 lacs, Term Loan of ¥ 6,000.00 lacs (Capped to ¥ 4,400.63 lacs) from
Indusind Bank, are also secured/to be secured by way of Mortgage on immovable properties of Majestic Farm House Ltd. as Collateral
/ Additional Securities situated at the following place by way of 1st charge on pari-passu basis :-
(i) Land and Building together with all plant and machineries situated at Unit - II, being Plot No. D-23 and D-22, F-11/14/15 at
Parsakhera Industrial Estate, Bareilly, U.P. (Ice-cream Plant) (1st charge)
NOTE-20 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (R in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at

March 31,2021 March 31, 2020

Non Current

Financial Guarantee Liabilities (Refer Note-45) 1.64 28.28
Lease Liabilities 587.69 710.19
Total 589.33 738.47
NOTE-21 PROVISIONS (X in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at

March 31,2021| March 31,2020

Non Current

Provision for Employee Benefits

Gratuity (Refer Note-46) 256.67 195.53
Total 256.67 195.53
NOTE-22 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY (NET) (% in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at

March 31,2021, March 31,2020
Deferred Tax Liabilities 2,274.01 2,289.71
Deferred Tax Assets (1,458.64) (700.09)
Total 815.37 1,589.62
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Movement in Deferred Tax Liabilities and Assets R in Lacs)
Movement during the year ended March 31, 2021 As at| Charge/(Credit) | Charge/(Credit) As at
April 1,2020 | in statement of in Other| March 31, 2021
Profit and Loss | Comprehensive
Income
Deferred Tax Liabilities / (Assets)
Property, plant and equipments 1,948.01 96.63 2,047.85
Investments 4.26 0.15 4.41
Expenditure allowed in the year of payment (170.84) (27.27) (198.11)
Provision for doubtful debts & advances (18.95) 1.67 (17.28)
Government Grant under EPCG (163.77) 12.87 (150.90)
Discounting of security deposit to present value and 72.06 (66.12) 5.94
corresponding impact on other expenses
Discounting of security deposit to present value and (90.31) 83.90 (6.41)
corresponding impact on interest income
Increase in borrowing cost pursuant to application of 37.21 (11.26) 25.95
EIR
Effect of measuring corporate guarantee liability (13.94) 7.26 (6.68)
Lease Assets (ROU) under Ind AS 116 189.61 (37.46) 152.15
Lease Liabilities under Ind AS 116 (203.72) 28.01 (175.71)
Unabsorbed Loss (865.84) (865.84)
Acturial Loss - (0.82) 0.82 -
Total 1,589.62 (778.28) 0.82 815.37
(X in Lacs)
Movement during the year ended March 31, 2020 As at| Charge/(Credit)| Charge/(Credit) As at
April 1,2019| in statement of in Other| March 31,2020
Profit and Loss | Comprehensive
Income
Deferred Tax Liabilities / (Assets)
Property, plant and equipments 2,609.73 (661.72) 1,948.01
Investments 7.26 (3.00) 4.26
Expenditure allowed in the year of payment (147.35) (23.49) (170.84)
Provision for doubtful debts & advances (19.53) 0.58 (18.95)
Government Grant under EPCG (245.47) 81.70 (163.77)
Discounting of security deposit to present value and 110.77 (38.71) 72.06
corresponding impact on other expenses
Discounting of security deposit to present value and (132.83) 42.52 (90.31)
corresponding impact on interest income
Increase in borrowing cost pursuant to application of 70.21 (33.00) 37.21
EIR
Effect of measuring corporate guarantee liability (29.49) 15.55 (13.94)
Lease Assets (ROU) under Ind AS 116 - 189.61 189.61
Lease Liabilities under Ind AS 116 - (203.72) (203.72)
Acturial Loss - (2.54) 2.54 -
Total 2,223.30 (636.22) 2.54 1,589.62
NOTE-23 OTHER LIABILITIES (R in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2021, March 31,2020
Non Current
Deferred Govt. Grant 557.43 609.25
Total 557.43 609.25
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NOTE-24 BORROWINGS ( in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
Current
Secured-at amortised Cost
Working Capital Loans from Banks 4,318.44 10,102.00
4,318.44 10,102.00
Unsecured-at amortised Cost
Public Fixed Deposits 553.80 130.20
Inter Corporate Deposits from others 2,040.00 200.00
Book Overdraft in current account with Banks 50.33 46.91
2,644.13 377.11
Total 6,962.57 10,479.11

A Working Capital facilities from Consortium Banks, namely, BOB, SBI, IDBI and Indusind Bank aggregating to I 67.92 crores are
secured by way of mortgage on immovable properties and hypothecation on movable properties of the Company situated at the
following places by way of 1st and 2nd charge on pari-passu basis :-

0]

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)
(xii)

Land and Building together with all plant and machineries situated on land bearing Final Plot No. 292-3-A of T. P. Scheme No.
14 of Mouje Dariapur- Kazipur of city taluka of Ahmedabad. (Ice-cream Plant) (2nd charge)

Land and Building together with all plant and machineries situated at Village Dharampur, forming part of New Survey Nos.
3645 i.e. Old Survey Nos. 970/1 (Survey No. 970 (Paiki)) Mouje Dharampur of Dharampur Taluka, Dist. Valsad (Canning Unit)
(2nd charge)

Land and Building together with all plant and machineries situated at New Survey No.1663 i.e. Amalgamated Survey
No0.637/13/1 (Old Survey No. 637/14, 637/16, 637/13/2, 637/15, 643/2, 643/1, 637/13/1) situated Village: Pundhra, Tal.: Kalol,
Dist.: Gandhinagar (Ice-cream Plant) (2nd charge)

Basement and 3rd Floor, Vadilal House, Navrangpura, Ahmedabad (Office Complex) (2nd charge)

Land and Building together with all plant and machineries being Unit - |, situated at Plot No. D-24 Parsakhera Industrial
Estate, Bareilly, U.P. (Ice-cream Plant) (2nd charge)

Land and Building together with all plant and machineries situated at New Survey No.3647 i.e. Old Survey No. 970 (Paiki)
Mouje Dharampur, Dist.: Valsad (IQF unit - excluding specific plant & machineries specifically financed by IDBI) (1st charge)

Ground and 2nd Floor, Vadilal House, Navrangpura, Ahmedabad (Office Complex) (1st charge)

Movable Properties situated at Unit - Il, being Plot No. D-23 and D-22, F-11/14/15 at Parsakhera Industrial Estate, Bareilly, U.P.
(Ice-cream Plant) (2nd charge) (excluding specific plant & machineries specifically financed by IDBI)

Land and Building together with all plant and machineries situated at New Survey Nos. 3642, 3643, 3644 and 3646 i.e. Old
Survey Nos. 962/1, 966, 969 and 970/2 at Mouje Dharampur, Dist.: Valsad (New land). (2nd charge)

Land and Building together with all plant and machineries situated at Plot No. F-12, Parsakhera Industrial Estate, Bareilly, U.P.
(2nd charge)

Movable Properties situated at Gomtipur, Ahmedabad (only on movable properties as 1st Charge)
4 Flats No. 801 to 804, situated at Maruti Centre, Gurukul, Drive-in-Road, Ahmedabad (Residential Flats) (1st charge)

B  The above Working Capital facilities are also secured by way of Hypothecation on entire current assets of the Company on 1st pari-
passu charge basis.

c )

(ii)

o m m Qg

The above Working Capital facilities are also secured by Personal Guarantee of Mr. Rajesh R. Gandhi, Managing Director
and Mr. Devanshu L. Gandhi, Managing Director of the Company. The Working Capital facilities of the Consortium Bank
are also secured by Corporate Guarantee by Majestic Farm House Ltd., Vadilal Cold Storage, Padm Complex Ltd. and Volute
Constructions Ltd.

Cash Credit facility from Kalupur Commercial Co-operative Bank of ¥ 3,000 Lacs is secured by pledge stocks and Personal
Guarantee of Mr. Rajesh R. Gandhi, Managing Director and Mr. Devanshu L. Gandhi, Managing Director of the Company.

The cash credit loan is repayable on demand and carries interest @ 10.00 % to 13.10 %

The Working Capital loan (Unsecured) is repayable on demand and carries interest @ 10.00 % to 11.50 %.
Inter corporate deposits are repayable between 90 days to 365 days and carry Interest @ 11.00 % to 15.00 %
Fixed deposits are repayable for 12 months to 36 months are carry interest @ 8.00 % to 9.00 %.
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Collateral / Additional Securities by Group Companies :-

Working Capital facilities from Consortium Banks, namely, BOB, SBI, IDBI and Indusind and additional Working Capital Facilities
from BOB are also secured by way of Mortgage on immovable properties of [*Majestic Farm House Ltd. by way of 2nd charge on
pari-passu basis ], [# Padm Complex Ltd. & Volute Constructions Ltd. by way of exclusive charge on pari-passu basis ] and [@Vadilal
Cold Storage by way of 2nd charge on pari-passu basis] as Collateral / Additional Securities situated at the following places :-

Unit - II, D-22 and D-23, F-11/14/15 at Parsakhera Industrial Estate, Bareilly, U.P. (Ice-cream Plant) (2nd charge) (Leased Property)
Ground Floor, Office No. 2B, “Mahalaya” Opp. President Hotel, Swastik Char Rasta, Ahmedabad. (Owned Property) (1st Charge)

A

#
@

Gomtipur, Ahmedabad (Leased Property) (1st Charge)

NOTE-25 TRADE PAYABLES

(X in Lacs)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

Due to Micro and Small Enterprises-Refer Note (A)

857.57

526.26

Due to Others (Refer Note-45)

9,350.22

7,604.78

Total

10,207.79

8,131.04

Note A) The amount outstanding to micro and small enterprise is based on the information received and

available with the

company.
Disclosure required under section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.
(X in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2021, March 31,2020
A i) Principal amount remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year 857.57 526.26
ii)  Interest due on above 25.09 0.73
B The amount of interest paid by the company in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act, Nil Nil
2006, along with amount of payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed date
during the accounting year
C  The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the financial year 25.09 0.73
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which Nil Nil
have been paid but beyond the due date during the year) but without adding interest
specified under MSMED Act, 2006
E  The amount of further interest remaining due and payable in succeeding years, until such Nil Nil

interest is actually paid
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NOTE-26 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (R in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2021, March 31,2020
Current
Current maturities of long-term debt (Note-19)
From Banks (Secured ) 1,082.46 594.51
For Vehicle Loans from Bank (Secured) 24.89 23.17
From Non Banking Financial Company (Secured) 75.91 44,28
Public Fixed Deposits 436.35 1,179.50
Interest Accrued 339.53 220.90
Unclaimed Dividends* 18.62 21.82
Unclaimed Deposits and Interest accrued thereon* 21.74 21.11
Financial Guarantee Liabilities (Refer Note-45) 24.90 27.17
Lease Liabilities 110.46 99.26
Payable for Capital Goods 480.18 642.59
Security Deposits from Customers 127.02 130.56
Payable to subsidiary co. 0.06 0.05
Mark To Market Liabilities on Derivatives = 79.38
Others** 14.46 256.98
Total 2,756.58 3,341.28

*There are no amounts due for payment to the Investors Education and Protection fund as at the year end.

**Includes refund liabilities of ¥ NIL (March 31, 2020 : ¥ 247.30 lacs) pursuant to Ind AS 115 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers.

NOTE-27 PROVISIONS (R in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
Current
Provision for Employee Benefits
Gratuity (Refer Note-46) 104.11 108.54
Compensated Absences 230.18 189.59
Total 334.29 298.13
NOTE-28 TAX LIABILITIES (NET) (% in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2021, March 31,2020
Current
Income Tax Payable (Net of Advance Tax) 17.82 -
Total 17.82 -
NOTE-29 OTHER LIABILITIES (R in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2021 March 31,2020
Current
Statutory Remittances 356.54 130.73
Advances Received from Customers 513.89 31.11
Other Liabilities 207.71 206.04
Deferred Govt. Grant 51.33 51.33
Total 1,129.47 419.21
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NOTE-30 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS (R in Lacs)
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31,2021, March 31,2020

Sale of Products

Finished goods (Refer Note-45) 35,480.32 51,148.71
Currency 31.66 394.10
Sale of Services

Income from Money Changing Business 3.99 9.50
Other Operating Revenues

Scrap Sales 138.04 110.66
Total 35,654.01 51,662.97
Reconciliation of revenue from operation with contract price

Revenue from contract with customers as per the contract price 35,815.33 52,110.48
Adjustment made to contract price on account of:

Discounts and Rebates (161.32) (447.51)
Revenue from Operations 35,654.01 51,662.97
NOTE-31 OTHER INCOME (R in Lacs)
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended

March 31,2021 | March 31,2020

Interest Income (Refer Note-45) 414.59 103.87
Export Licenses Income 338.29 376.11
Other Export Incentive Income 248.03 -
Financial Guarantee Commission Income 28.91 28.99
Gain on Fair Value of Current Investment 0.06 -
Gain on Fair Value of Non Current Investment 0.50 -
Grant Income 51.81 55.65
Net gain on Foreign Currency translations and transactions 18.17 172.88
Profit on sale of investment 2.08 24.07
Gain on disposal of Property, Plant & Equipment - 1.53
Excess Provision written back 85.83 69.42
Miscellaneous Income 7.28 9.56
Provision for Doubtful Debt written back 6.63 -
Total 1,202.18 842.08
NOTE-32 COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED (in Lacs)
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31,2021, March 31,2020

Inventory at the beginning of the year 9,888.46 7,232.81
Add : Purchases 19,799.76 31,689.50
Less: Inventory at the end of the year 8,334.91 9,888.46
Total 21,353.31 29,033.85
NOTE-33 PURCHASE OF TRADED GOODS (X in Lacs)
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31,2021, March 31,2020

Processed Food 22.04 7.20
Dairy Products 81.48 343.29
Others 280.16 119.52
Currency 30.83 390.75
Total 414.51 860.76
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NOTE-34 CHANGE IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS AND STOCK IN TRADE (R in Lacs)
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31,2021, March 31,2020

Inventories at beginning of the year
Finished Goods 4,207.16 4,005.52
4,207.16 4,005.52

Inventories at end of the year

Finished Goods 3,654.88 4,207.16
3,654.88 4,207.16
552.28 (201.64)

Note : Year end finished goods includes inventory in form of right to return assets of I NIL as at March 31, 2021 (As at March 31, 2020 :

199.71 lacs)

NOTE-35 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (R in Lacs)
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31,2021, March 31,2020
Salary, Wages, Allowances and Bonus etc. (Refer Note-45) 2,989.89 3,904.85
Contribution to Provident and Other funds (Refer Note-46) 280.35 271.79
Staff Welfare Expenses 156.54 209.07
Total 3,426.78 4,385.71
NOTE-36 FINANCE COSTS (% in Lacs)
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
Interest Expense (Refer Note-45) 1,859.96 1,326.32
Other Borrowing Costs 148.56 146.21
Total 2,008.52 1,472.53
NOTE-37 OTHER EXPENSES (% in Lacs)
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
Job Charges 2,840.83 3,356.44
Power & Fuel 2,674.38 3,423.71
Stores and Spares Consumption 716.62 788.63
Repairs & Maintenance 573.82 685.43
Rent (Refer Note-45) 300.49 310.79
Freight and forwarding charges 1,641.65 1,183.46
Sales Promotion Expense (Refer Note-45) 365.76 183.33
Corporate Social Responsibility Expense 73.51 20.36
Payment to Auditors (Refer details below) 30.48 31.79
Provision for Doubtful Debts 11.87 20.59
Less : Reversal of provision due to recovery 18.50 1.21
Less : transferred to Income side 6.63 -
Provision for Doubtful Debts - 19.38
Loss on disposal of Property, Plant & Equipment 21.22 -
Loss on fair value of Current Investment - 0.21
Loss on fair value of Non Current Investment - 3.63
Share of Loss of Partnership Firm (Refer Note-45) 24.05 22.79
Other Expenses (Including Legal & Professional, Conveyance, Telephone, Postage, Printing & 1,180.07 1,597.01
Stationery etc.)
Total 10,442.88 11,626.96
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Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31,2021| March 31,2020
Payment to Auditors
As Auditor
Audit Fees 22.50 22.50
Limited Review Fees 6.00 8.00
In Other Capacity
Certification Fees 1.50 0.90
Reimbursement of expenses 0.48 0.39
Total 30.48 31.79
NOTE-38 TAX EXPENSES R in Lacs)
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31,2021 | March 31,2020
A. Income tax recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss:
Current Tax:
In respect of the current year = 898.76
In respect of the prior years 17.39 (38.33)
Total 17.39 860.43
Deferred Tax:
In respect of the current year (778.28) (636.21)
Total (778.28) (636.21)
B. Reconciliation of the income tax expenses to the amount computed by applying the
statutory income tax rate to the profit before income taxes is summarised below :
Profit / (loss) before tax (3,170.71) 3,438.99
Income Tax Expense @ 25.168% (Last year @ 25.168%) (798.00) 865.53
Tax effect of the amounts which are not deductible / (taxable) in calculating taxable
income:
Effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit 19.72 15.06
Effect of change in tax rate (Refer below Note) - (639.19)
Others - 21.15
(778.28) 262.55
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous year 17.39 (38.33)
Total (760.89) 224.22
Tax effect on Items in Other Comprehensive Income 0.82 2.54
Tax expense as per Statement of Profit and Loss (760.07) 226.76

The company’s weighted average tax rates for the year ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 are 24.00% and 6.52% respectively.

Note:

During the previous year, the Company elected to exercise the option permitted under section 115BAA of the Income-tax Act, 1961, as
introduced by Taxation Laws (Amendment) Act, 2019. Accordingly, the Company has recognised provision for Income tax for the year
ended March 31, 2020, and re-measured its Deferred Tax basis the rates prescribed in the said section. The full impact of this change has
been recognised in the statement of profit & loss for the year ended March 31, 2020. This has resulted in reversal of Deferred tax expense
of ¥ 639.19 lacs on account of remeasurement of Deferred tax liabilities as at April 01,2019.
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NOTE - 39 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES NOT PROVIDED FOR AND COMMITMENTS :  in Lacs)
Sr. |Particulars As at As at
No. March 31,2021 March 31,2020

Contingent Liabilities
(@) | Guarantees given by the company against Borrowing given to companies in which
Directors are interested is ¥ 3,001 Lacs (March 31,2020% 2,901 Lacs)
Outstanding against this as at March 31 1,056.10 2,310.96
(b) | For Excise-related matter decided in favour of the company, against which Excise Dept. 43.00 43.00
has preferred an appeal
(c) | For Income Tax-which is disputed by the company and against which company has = 15.26
preferred appeal, based on the demand notices raised by Income Tax Dept. and received
by the company.
(d) |In respect of erstwhile Vadilal Financial Services Limited (VFSL) Income Tax Demand 1.93 1.93
(including interest) for which the company has preferred an appeal.
(e) | For Indirect Tax-Disputed by the company and against which company has preferred 211.78 144.20
appeals
(f) | For Other Matters-cases against company by the Vendor and Authorities 245.84 245.84
(9) | Differential amount of custom / excise duty in respect of machinery purchased under 793.15 796.55
EPCG Scheme*
(h) | Differential amount of custom duty in respect of Advance Licence* 209.24 64.29
(i) | Outstanding letter of credits and bank guarantees issued by banks 553.14 787.61
Total Contingent Liabilities 3,114.18 4,409.64
Commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not 570.37 607.04
provided for (net of advances) :

Future Cash Outflow in respect of (b) to (f) above depends on ultimate settlement / conclusions with the relevant authorities.

*The company has fulfilled export obligation for license availed under EPCG and Advance Authorization. As the applications for closures
are either to be made / pending disposal by department, the same are shown as contingent liabilities.

NOTE - 40

InFY 2017-18, a petition was filed against the Company and some of its promoters, before the National Company Law Tribunal, Ahmedabad
("NCLT"), under Sections 241 and 242 of the Companies Act, 2013, pertaining to the prevention of oppression and mismanagement
of the Company. In the current period, no orders have been passed by the NCLT. In the hearing held on June 8, 2021, the NCLT has
adjourned the matter for hearing to July 27, 2021.

NOTE - 41 Segment Information :

The Company is primarily engaged in one business segment namely Food segment as determined by the Chief Operating Decision
Maker in accordance with IND AS 108 - “Operating Segment”.

NOTE - 42 Disclosure as per Regulation 34 (3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 and Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013

Amount outstanding: (R in Lacs)
Name of Party Relationship Purpose As at As at
March 31,2021 March 31,2020
Investments
Vadilal Industries USA (Inc.) | Wholly owned subsidiary company Business Purpose 136.41 136.41
Vadilal Cold Storage Partnership firm where company has | Business Purpose 140.00 140.00
98% Ownership Interest
Varood Industries Ltd. Wholly owned subsidiary company Business Purpose 5.00 5.00
Vadilal Delight Ltd. Wholly owned subsidiary company Business Purpose 5.00 5.00
Vadilal Industries Pty Ltd. Wholly owned subsidiary company Business Purpose 0.06 0.05
Gurantee Given
Vadilal Enterprises Ltd. Enterprise over which Key Managerial | To avail credit facility 3,001.00 2,901.00
Personnel is able to exercise significant | and corporate loan
influence
Loans
Vadilal Industries USA (Inc.) | Wholly owned subsidiary company Business Purpose 250.00 538.71
Vadilal Cold Storage Partnership firm where company has | Business Purpose - 19.26
98% Ownership Interest
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Maximum outstanding during the year: R in Lacs)
Name of Party Relationship Purpose As at As at
March 31,2021 | March 31,2020
Investments
Vadilal Industries USA (Inc.) | Wholly owned subsidiary company Business Purpose 136.41 136.41
Vadilal Cold Storage Partnership Firm Business Purpose 140.00 140.00
Varood Industries Ltd. Wholly owned subsidiary company Business Purpose 5.00 5.00
Vadilal Delight Ltd. Wholly owned subsidiary company Business Purpose 5.00 5.00
Vadilal Industries Pty Ltd. Wholly owned subsidiary company Business Purpose 0.06 0.05
Guarantee Given
Vadilal Enterprises Ltd. Enterprise over which Key Managerial | To avail credit facility 3,001.00 3,927.00
Personnel is able to exercise significant | and corporate loan
influence
Loans
Vadilal Industries USA (Inc.) | Wholly owned subsidiary company Business Purpose 538.71 538.71
Vadilal Cold Storage Partnership Firm Business Purpose 19.26 42.05

Company has made investment in equity of overseas subsidiary company for ¥ 136.41 lacs. During the year Subsidiary Company has
made a profit of ¥ 2,978.25 lacs (X 851.64 lacs in the year 2019-20) and net accumulated profit as at March 31, 2021 is ¥ 4,430.46 lacs R
1,452.21 lacs as at March 31, 2020).

NOTE - 43 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Capital Management

The Company manages its capital so as to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to optimise returns to stakeholder.
The Capital structure of the company is based on management’s judgment of its strategic and day-to-day needs with a focus on
total equity to maintain investor, creditors and market confidence and to sustain future development and growth of its business.

The management and the Board of Directors monitors the return on capital as well as the level of dividends to shareholders. The
company may take appropriate steps in order to maintain, or if necessary adjust, its capital structure.

The capital structure of the Company consists of net debt (borrowings as detailed in notes 19 and 24 off set by cash and bank
balances) and total equity of the Company.

Gearing Ratio (% in Lacs)

Particulars As at As at

March 31,2021 | March 31,2020
Debt * 14,119.29 17,140.85
Less: Cash and cash Equivalents 846.73 665.13
Net Debt 13,272.56 16,475.72
Total Equity excluding Revaluation Reserve 13,454.41 15,861.78
Net Debt to equity ratio 98.65% 103.87%

*Debt is defined as long-term borrowings,short-term borrowings and current maturities of long term borrowings as described in

notes 19 and 24.

I  Category-wise classification of financial instruments

Financial Assets & Financial Liabilities as at March 31, 2021 (X in Lacs)
Particulars Fair value | Amortised Cost Total
Through Profit
and loss
Financial Assets
Investments 11.84 288.75 300.59
Loans - 258.24 258.24
Trade receivables - 2,116.96 2,116.96
Cash and Cash Equivalents - 846.73 846.73
Bank balances other than cash and cash Equivalents - 1,045.27 1,045.27
Other Financial Assets - 298.67 298.67
Total 11.84 4,854.62 4,866.46
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings - 12,499.68 12,499.68
Trade Payable - 10,207.79 10,207.79
Other Financial Liabilities - 3,345.91 3,345.91
Total - 26,053.38 26,053.38
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Financial Assets & Financial Liabilities as at March 31, 2020 (% in Lacs)
Particulars Fair value | Amortised Cost Total
Through Profit
and loss
Financial Assets
Investments 11.29 288.74 300.03
Loans - 573.85 573.85
Trade receivables - 3,321.00 3,321.00
Cash and Cash Equivalents - 665.13 665.13
Bank balances other than cash and cash Equivalents - 914.49 914.49
Other Financial Assets - 698.87 698.87
Total 11.29 6,462.08 6,473.37
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings - 15,299.39 15,299.39
Trade Payable - 8,131.04 8,131.04
Other Financial Liabilities - 4,079.75 4,079.75
Total - 27,510.18 27,510.18

In respect of financial instruments, measured at amortised cost, the fair value approximates the amortised cost.

(X in Lacs)
Particular Fair value Fair value hierarchy
Quoted Price in Significant Significant
active market observable unobservable
(Level 1) inputs (Level 2) | inputs (Level 3)

As at March 31, 2021

Investments at fair value through profit and loss 11.84 1.28 - 10.56

As at March 31, 2020

Investments at fair value through profit and loss 11.29 1.22 - 10.07

Financial risk management objective

The Company'’s financial liabilities comprise mainly of borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities. The Company’s
financial assets comprise mainly of investments, cash and cash equivalents, other balances with banks, loans, trade receivables and

other financial assets.

The Company’s business activities are exposed to a variety of financial risks, namely liquidity risk, market risks and credit risks.

The company'’s senior management has the overall responsibility for establishing and governing the company’s risk management

framework.

A. Management of Market Risk

The company’s size and operations result in it being exposed to the following market risks that arise from its use of financial

instruments:

. Foreign Currency risk
. Equity price risk

. Interest rate risk

The above risks may affect the company’s income and expenses, or the value of its financial instruments. The company’s

exposure to and management of these risks are explained below:

(i) Currency risk management

The Company’s activities expose it primarily to the financial risk of changes in foreign currency exchange rates. The
Company enters into a variety of derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to foreign currency risk :

The carrying amounts of the Company’s foreign currency dominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the end

of the reporting period are as follows:
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(a) Derivatives instruments (X in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2021 | March 31,2020
Forward contract to sell CAD
No. of contracts - 5
In CAD - 2,20,000
In¥ - 1,17,93,009
Forward contract to sell USD
No. of contracts - 5
In USD - 46,50,000
In¥ - 35,63,73,250
(b) Particular of foreign currency exposures as at the reporting date.
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2021 | March 31, 2020
Liabilities (Foreign currency)
In US Dollars (USD) 2,11,823.52 1,85,795.72
In Euro (EUR) 295.00 295.00
In Australian Dollars (AUD) 1,300.00 1,300.00
Assets (Foreign currency)
In US Dollars (USD) 6,27,045.20 14,20,184.72
In Canadian Dollars (CAD) 55,321.08 -
In Great Britain Pound (GBP) 27,747 44 28,801.80
(R inlacs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2021 | March 31,2020
Liabilities )
In US Dollars (USD) 155.69 140.05
In Euro (EUR) 0.25 0.24
In Australian Dollars (AUD) 0.73 0.61
Assets ()
In US Dollars (USD) 460.88 1,070.54
In Canadian Dollars (CAD) 32.24 -
In Great Britain Pound (GBP) 28.01 26.81

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The following table details, Company’s sensitivity to a 1% increase and decrease in the rupee against the relevant foreign
currencies. 1% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. This is mainly
attributable to the exposure outstanding not hedged on receivables and payables in the Company at the end of the
reporting period. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the period end for a 1% change in foreign currency rate.

A change of 1% in Foreign currency would have following Impact on profit before tax and total equity

(in Lacs)

Particulars For the year ended March 31, 2021 | For the year ended March 31, 2020

1% increase 1% decrease 1% increase 1% decrease
usD 3.05 (3.05) 9.30 (9.30)
CAD 0.32 (0.32) - -
GBP 0.28 (0.28) 0.27 (0.27)
EURO - - - -
AUD (0.01) 0.01 (0.01) 0.01
Increase / (decrease) in profit & loss 3.64 (3.64) 9.56 (9.56)
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(ii)

(iii)

Price Risk (Equity Price Risk)

The Company'’s exposure to equity securities price risk arises from investments held by the Company and classified in the
balance sheet at fair value through profit and loss. To manage its price risk arising from investments in equity securities,
the Company diversifies its portfolio. Diversification of the portfolio is done in accordance with the limits set by the
Company.

Sensitivity Analysis

The table below summarizes the impact of increases / decreases of the BSE index on the Company’s equity and Gain /

Loss for the period. The analysis is based on the assumption that the index has increased by 5 % or decreased by 5 % with
all other variables held constant, and that all the Company’s equity instruments moved in line with the index.

A change of 5% in market index would have following Impact on profit before tax (X in Lacs)
Particulars For the For the
Year Ended Year Ended
March 31,2021 | March 31,2020
BSE Index 100 - Increase by 5% 0.06 0.06
BSE Index 100 - Decrease by 5% (0.06) (0.06)

The above referred sensitivity pertains to quoted equity investments. Profit for the year would increase/decrease as a
result of gains / losses on equity securities as at Fair Value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL).

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of the financial instruments will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates. In order to optimize the Company’s position with regards to interest income and
interest expenses and to manage the interest rate risk, treasury or management performs a comprehensive corporate
interest rate risk management by balancing the proportion of fixed rate and floating rate financial instruments in its total
portfolio.

According to the Company interest rate risk exposure is only for floating rate borrowings. For floating rate liabilities,
the analysis is prepared assuming that the amount of the liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period was
outstanding for the whole year. A 100 basis point increase or decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk internally
to key management personnel and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest
rates.

Exposure to interest rate risk
Interest rate sensitivity

A change of 100 bps in interest rates would have following Impact on profit before tax (X in Lacs)
Particulars Increase / Effect on PBT
Decreasein
basic points
As at March 31, 2021 100 bps 41.25
As at March 31,2020 100 bps 82.78

B. Management of Credit Risk

Credit risk arises from the possibility that the counter party may not be able to settle their obligations as agreed. To manage
this, the Company periodically assesses financial reliability of customers, taking into account the financial condition, current
economic trends, and analysis of historical bad debts and ageing of accounts receivable. Individual risk limits are set
accordingly.

The company considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset and whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis through out each reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant increase
in credit risk, the company compares the risk of default occurring on asset as at the reporting date with the risk of default as
at the date of initial recognition. It considers reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking information such as:

Actual or expected significant adverse changes in business,
Actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of the counterparty,

Financial or economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant change to the counterparty’s ability to meet its
obligations,

Significant increase in credit risk on other financial instruments of the same counterparty,

Significant changes in the value of the collateral supporting the obligation or in the quality of the third-party guarantees
or credit enhancements.

37TH ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21 | 109



I Vadia” [

The Company measures the expected credit loss of trade receivables and loan from individual customers based on historical
trend, industry practices and the business environment in which the entity operates. Loss rates are based on actual credit loss
experience and past trends. Based on the historical data, loss on collection of receivable is not material hence no additional
provision considered.

The Ageing analysis of Account receivables has been considered from the date the invoice falls due

(R in Lacs)

Particulars As at As at
March 31,2021 March 31, 2020

0-3 months 1,481.15 3,215.43
3-6 months 542.41 9.70
6-12 months 30.11 5.93
More than 12 months 63.29 89.94
Total 2,116.96 3,321.00

The following table summarizes the changes in loss allowances measured using life time expected credit loss model

(R in Lacs)

Particulars As at As at
March 31,2021, March 31,2020

Opening Allowances 38.83 19.45
Add: Additional Allowances made 11.87 20.59
Less: Reversal of provision due to recovery 18.50 1.21
Closing Allowances 32.20 38.83

No Significant changes in estimation techniques or assumptions were made during the year.

Concentrations of Credit risk form part of Credit risk

Considering that the Company sells majority of its goods to Vadilal Enterprises Ltd. and Vadilal Industries (USA) Inc., the
Company is significantly dependent on such customers. Out of total income, the Company earns 84.14 % revenue (previous
year 90.33 %) from such customers, and with one of these customers, the Company has long term contracts. As at March 31,
2021, receivables from such customers constitute 67.58 % (previous year 88.55 %) of total trade receivables. A loss of these
customers could adversely affect the operating result or cash flow of the Company.

Management of Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will face in meeting its obligation associated with its financial liabilities. The
Company’s approach in managing liquidity is to ensure that it will have sufficient funds to meet its liabilities when they are
due without incurring unacceptable losses. In doing this management considers both normal and stressed conditions.

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the board of directors, which has established an appropriate
liquidity risk management framework for the management of the Company’s short-term, medium-term and long term funding
and liquidity management requirements. The company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking
facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the
maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

The following table shows the maturity analysis of the company’s financial liabilities based on the contractually agreed
undiscounted cash flows along with its carrying value as at the Balance sheet date.

Exposure as at March 31, 2021 (X in Lacs)
Particulars < 1year 1-5years| Beyond 5 years Total
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 6,962.57 5,537.11 - 12,499.68
Trade Payable 10,207.79 - - 10,207.79
Other Financial Liabilities 2,756.58 589.33 - 3,345.91
Total Financial Liabilities 19,926.94 6,126.44 - 26,053.38

Exposure as at March 31, 2020 (R in Lacs)
Particulars < 1year 1-5years| Beyond 5 years Total
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 10,479.11 4,793.80 26.48 15,299.39
Trade Payable 8,131.04 - - 8,131.04
Other Financial Liabilities 3,341.28 717.21 21.26 4,079.75
Total Financial Liabilities 21,951.43 5,511.01 47.74 27,510.18
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Financial Arrangements

The Company has access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting period.

(in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2021 March 31,2020
Expiring within one year (Cash Credit and other facilities) 1,115.82 3,156.60
Expiring beyond one year (Bank loans) 239.00 3,205.97

NOTE - 44 EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS) AS PER INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARD 33:
Particulars For the For the
Year Ended Year Ended
March 31,2021 March 31,2020
Profit / (Loss) for the year attributable to owners of the Company (X in Lacs) (2,409.82) 3,214.77
Weighted average number of Equity Shares (in Lacs) 71.88 71.88
Earning per Equity Share (Basic & Diluted) (33.53) 44.73

NOTE - 45 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AS PER INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARD 24:
The disclosure in pursuance to Indian Accounting Standard-24 on "Related Party Disclosures”is as under:

(@) Name of Related Parties & Relationship

No.  Name Description of Relationship
1 | Vadilal Industries (USA) Inc. Wholly owned subsidiary company
2 | Vadilal Industries PTY Ltd Wholly owned subsidiary company
3 | Vadilal Gulf (FZE) Wholly owned subsidiary company (Upto October 9, 2019)
4 | Varood Industries Limited Wholly owned subsidiary company (w.e.f. February 19, 2020)
5 |Vadilal Delights Limited Wholly owned subsidiary company (w.e.f. January 31, 2020)
6 |Vadilal Cold Storage Partnership firm where company has 98% Ownership Interest
7 |Rajesh R. Gandhi Key Managerial Personnel
8 |Devanshu L. Gandhi Key Managerial Personnel
9 | Kalpit R. Gandhi Key Managerial Personnel
10 | Rashmi Bhatt Key Managerial Personnel (w.e.f. February 12, 2019)
11 | Yogesh Bhatt Key Managerial Personnel (w.e.f. December 13, 2019 and Upto June 25,
2020)
12 | Anil Patil Key Managerial Personnel (w.e.f. December 13, 2019 and Upto June 25,
2020)
13 | Vadilal Enterprises Ltd. Enterprise over which Key Managerial Personnel are able to exercise
significant influence
14 | Vadilal International Pvt. Ltd. Enterprise over which Key Managerial Personnel are able to exercise
significant influence
15 | Veronica Construction Pvt. Ltd. Enterprise over which Key Managerial Personnel are able to exercise
significant influence
16 | Majestic Farm House Ltd. Enterprise over which Key Managerial Personnel are able to exercise
significant influence
17 | Byad Packaging Industries Pvt. Ltd. Enterprise over which Key Managerial Personnel is able to exercise
significant influence
18 |Vadilal Marketing Pvt. Ltd. Enterprise over which Key Managerial Personnel is able to exercise
significant influence
19 | Vadilal Chemicals Ltd. Enterprise over which Key Managerial Personnel are able to exercise
significant influence
20 | Mamta R. Gandhi Relative of Key Managerial Personnel
21 |Deval D. Gandhi Relative of Key Managerial Personnel
22 | Aakanksha D. Gandhi Relative of Key Managerial Personnel

37TH ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21 | 111



I Vadia” [

(b) Transactions during the year with related parties mentioned in (a) above, in ordinary course of business & balances
outstanding as at the year end:

(X in Lacs)
Transaction Total | Subsidiary| Control Key Relative Enterprise
Exists| Managerial of Key significantly
Person | Managerial | influenced by Key
Person | Managerial Person
or relatives of
Key Managerial
Personnel
(a) Sales
Vadilal Enterprises Ltd. 22,511.94 22,511.94
PY.| (42,072.30) (42,072.30)
Vadilal Industries (USA) Inc. 7,488.49 7,488.49
PY.| (4,593.93) (4,593.93)
(b) Purchases
Vadilal Chemicals Ltd. 14.05 14.05
PY. (14.14) (14.14)
(c) Hire Charges / Rent Expense
Vadilal Cold Storage 40.73 40.73
PY. (33.28) (33.28)
(d) Interest Paid
Byad Packaging Industries Pvt. Ltd. - -
PY. (0.46) (0.46)
Vadilal Marketing Pvt. Ltd. - -
PY. (2.17) (2.17)
Rajesh R Gandhi - -
PY. (0.08) (0.08)
(e) i) Managerial Remuneration
Rajesh R. Gandhi 74.44 74.44
PY. (181.49) (181.49)
Devanshu L. Gandhi 7444 7444
PY. (181.74) (181.74)
ii) Remuneration
Kalpit R. Gandhi 30.85 30.85
PY. (33.64) (33.64)
Yogesh Bhatt 1.50 1.50
PY. (8.00) (8.00)
Anil Patil 5.50 5.50
PY. (8.45) (8.45)
Rashmi Bhatt 14.18 14.18
PY. (15.38) (15.38)
Deval D. Gandhi 7.03 7.03
PY. (7.70) (7.70)
Mamta R. Gandhi 7.18 7.18
PY. (7.70) (7.70)
(f) Interest Income
Vadilal International Pvt. Ltd. 2.66 2.66
PY. (6.00) (6.00)
Vadilal Industries USA (Inc.) 32.10 32.10
PY. (35.00) (35.00)
(g) Share of Loss in partnership Firm
Vadilal Cold Storage 24.05 24.05
PY. (22.79) (22.79)
(h) Royalty Expense
Vadilal International Pvt. Ltd. 47.03 47.03
PY. (35.29) (35.29)
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(X in Lacs)
Transaction Total | Subsidiary | Control Key Relative Enterprise
Exists | Managerial of Key significantly
Person | Managerial | influenced by Key
Person | Managerial Person
or relatives of
Key Managerial
Personnel
(i) Loan or Deposits Received
Vadilal Marketing Pvt. Ltd. - -
PY. (63.00) (63.00)
Byad Packaging Industries Pvt. Ltd. - -
PY. (9.00) (9.00)
Rajesh R Gandhi - -
PY. (40.00) (40.00)
(j) Loan or Deposits Received back
Vadilal International Pvt. Ltd. 600.00 600.00
PY. - -
Vadilal Industries (USA) Inc. 281.01 281.01
PY. - -
(k) Loan or Deposits Repaid
Byad Packaging Industries Pvt. Ltd. - -
PY. (9.00) (9.00)
Vadilal Marketing Pvt. Ltd. - -
PY. (63.00) (63.00)
Rajesh R Gandhi - -
PY. (40.00) (40.00)
() Investments made
Varood Industries Ltd - -
PY. (5.00) (5.00)
Vadilal Delights Ltd - -
PY. (5.00) (5.00)
Vadilal Industries PTY Ltd - -
PY. (0.05) (0.05)
Balance outstanding at year end :
Investments
Vadilal Industries (USA) Inc. 136.41 136.41
PY. (136.41) (136.41)
Varood Industries Ltd 5.00 5.00
PY. (5.00) (5.00)
Vadilal Delights Ltd 5.00 5.00
PY. (5.00) (5.00)
Vadilal Industries PTY Ltd 0.06 0.06
PY. (0.05) (0.05)
Vadilal Cold Storage 140.00 140.00
PY. (140.00) (140.00)
Majestic Farm House Ltd. 3.99 3.99
PY. (3.95) (3.95)
Trade Receivable
Vadilal Enterprises Ltd. * 1,430.67 1,430.67
PY.| (2,071.55) (2,071.55)
Vadilal Industries (USA) Inc. - -
PY. (874.65) (874.65)
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(X in Lacs)
Transaction Total | Subsidiary | Control Key Relative Enterprise
Exists | Managerial of Key significantly
Person | Managerial | influenced by Key
Person | Managerial Person
or relatives of
Key Managerial
Personnel
Interest Receivable
Vadilal Industries (USA) Inc. 67.10 67.10
PY. (35.00) (35.00)
Vadilal International Pvt. Ltd. 7.86 7.86
PY. (5.40) (5.40)
Loans & Advances Given
Vadilal Cold Storage - -
PY. (19.26) (19.26)
Majestic Farm House Ltd. 5.31 5.31
PY. (4.78) (4.78)
Vadilal Industries (USA) Inc 250.00 250.00
PY. (538.71) (538.71)
Security Deposits Given
Vadilal International Pvt. Ltd. - -
PY. (600.00) (600.00)
Trade Payable
Vadilal International Pvt. Ltd. 9.66 9.66
PY. - -
Vadilal Cold Storage 7.86 7.86
PY. (3.55) (3.55)
Vadilal Chemicals Ltd. 1.72 1.72
PY. (3.27) (3.27)
Other Current Financial Liabilities
Vadilal Cold Storage 4.78 4.78
PY. - -
Advance from Customers
Vadilal Industries (USA) Inc 487.07 487.07
PY. - -
Corporate Guarantee Given
Vadilal Enterprises Ltd. 3,001.00 3,001.00
PY.| (2,901.00) (2,901.00)
Corporate Guarantee Taken
Majestic Farm House Ltd. 14,309.00 14,309.00
PY.| (22,392.00) (22,392.00)
Vadilal Enterprises Ltd. 270.00 270.00
PY. (270.00) (270.00)
Personal Guarantee Taken
Rajesh R Gandhi & Devanshu L 7,682.00 7,682.00
Gandhi (Jointly)
PY.| (12,776.00) (12,776.00)

Notes

1)

2)
3)
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Transaction of Sales / Purchases (where input tax credit is not available to the company) and outstanding of Trade Payables /

Receivable are inclusive of Taxes.

Previous Year figures are shown in bracket.

The Company has entered into a “Trade Mark License Agreement with Vadilal International Private Limited (“VIPL") (which is the
Proprietor and the beneficial owner of the Trade Mark “Vadilal”) for the usage of the Trade Mark “Vadilal”. The Company has also
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entered into an agreement with Vadilal Enterprises Limited, a related party, for sale of its products on a principal to principal basis.
The Company has obtained a legal opinion, as per which, the sales / supplies of goods by the Company to VEL, do not fall with
the scope of “Trade Mark License Agreement” between the Company and VIPL and accordingly, the Company is not contractually
obliged to pay any royalty on sales made by it to VEL. Accordingly, the Company has made provision for royalty only on sales made
to parties other than VEL which is consistent with the practice followed in the earlier years.

4)  Pursuant to the agreement signed with Vadilal Enterprises Ltd. and approved by the shareholders, the pricing of the products to be
sold shall be determined by the Company. As per the pricing policy, for the period from February 15, 2021 to March 31, 2021, the
Company has issued a special debit note to Vadilal Enterprises Limited, on June 28, 2021 owing to the additional discounted prices
at which the original transactions took place.

During the previous year, to temporarily tide over the business loss suffered by its primary customer due to the unprecedented
condition caused by the COVID-19 pandemic, the Company has given a special credit note to Vadilal Enterprises Limited for I 325
lacs.

Compensation to Key Managerial Personnel of the Company: (X in Lacs)

Nature of Benefits For the For the
Year Ended Year Ended

March 31,2021 March 31,2020

Short Term Employee Benefits 243.69 102.47
Post Employment Gratuity Benefits* 41.33 49.64
Total 285.02 152.11

Note: *Key Managerial Personnel and Relatives of Promoters who are under the employment of the Company are entitled to post

employment benefits and other long term employee benefits recognised as per Ind AS 19 - ‘Employee Benefits’ in the financial
statements. Post-employment gratuity benefits of Key Managerial Personnel has not been included in (e) above.

NOTE - 46 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Post Employment Benefit Plans as per Indian Accounting Standard 19:
Defined Contribution Plan:

The company makes provident fund (PF) contributions to defined contribution benefit plans for eligible employees. Under the
scheme the company is required to contribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs to fund the benefits. The contributions
specified under the law are paid to the government authorities (PF commissioner).

Amount towards Defined Contribution Plan have been recognized under “Contribution to Provident and Other funds”in Note 35%
182.57 Lacs (Previous Year: ¥ 176.47 Lacs).

Defined Benefit Plan:

The Company has defined benefit plans for gratuity to eligible employees, contributions for which are made to Life Insurance
Corporation of India, who invests the funds as per IRDA guidelines. The details of these defined benefit plans recognised in the
financial statements are as under:

Gratuity is a defined benefit plan and company is exposed to the Following Risks:

Interest rate risk: A fall in the discount rate which is linked to the G.Sec. Rate will increase the present value of the liability requiring
higher provision. A fall in the discount rate generally increases the mark to market value of the assets depending on the duration of
asset.

Salary Risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of members As
such, an increase in the salary of the members more than assumed level will increase the plan’s liability.

Investment Risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which is determined by
reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds. If the return on plan asset is below this rate, it
will create a plan deficit. Currently, for the plan in India, it has a relatively balanced mix of investments in government securities, and
other debt instruments.

Asset Liability Matching Risk: The plan faces the ALM risk as to the matching cash flow. Since the plan is invested in lines of Rule
101 of Income Tax Rules, 1962, this generally reduces ALM risk.

Mortality risk: Since the benefits under the plan is not payable for life time and payabile till retirement age only, plan does not have
any longevity risk.

Concentration Risk: Plan is having a concentration risk as all the assets are invested with the insurance company and a default will
wipe out all the assets. Although probability of this is very less as insurance companies have to follow regulatory guidelines.
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a)

b)

<)

d)

e)

Movement in present value of defined benefit obligation are as follows : (R in Lacs)
Particulars Gratuity
As at As at
March 31,2021 | March 31,2020
Obligations at the beginning of the year 649.44 566.30
Current service cost 41.57 35.83
Interest cost 44.42 44.00
Actuarial (gain) / loss-due to changes in Demographic Assumptions (4.56) -
Actuarial (gain) / loss-due to changes in Financial Assumptions (9.83) 10.88
Actuarial (gain) / loss-due to Experience Adjustments 734 22.39
Benefits paid (65.23) (29.96)
Present value of benefit obligation at the end of the year 663.15 649.44
Movement in the fair value of defined plan assets are as follows : (R in Lacs)
Particulars Gratuity
As at As at
March 31,2021 | March 31,2020
Plan assets at the beginning of the year at fair value 345.36 265.08
Interest Income 23.63 20.60
Return on plan assets excluding interest income (3.78) (2.32)
Contributions from the employer 2.39 91.97
Benefits paid (65.23) (29.96)
Plan assets at the end of the year at fair value 302.37 345.36

The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the entities obligation in respect of defined benefit plan is as

follows:
(R in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2021 | March 31,2020
Gratuity
Present value of benefit obligation at the end of the period 663.15 649.44
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the period (302.37) (345.36)
Net liability / (assets) arising from defined benefit obligation 360.78 304.07
Amount recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as Employee Benefit Expenses (R in Lacs)
Particulars For the For the
year ended year ended
March 31,2021 | March 31, 2020
Gratuity
Current service cost 41.57 35.83
Net Interest Cost 20.80 23.40
Net impact on the Profit / (Loss) before tax 62.37 59.23
(Gain) / Expense recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
Return on plan assets excluding actuarial return on plan assets 3.78 2.31
Actuarial (gains) / losses arising from changes in Demographic Assumptions (4.56) -
Actuarial (gains) / losses arising from changes in Financial Assumption (9.84) 10.88
Experience (gains) / losses arising on Experience Adjustments 7.34 22.39
Net (gain) / expense recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income before tax (3.28) 35.58
The defined benefit obligations shall mature after year end March 31, 2021 as follows: ( in Lacs)
Gratuity As at
March 31, 2021
1st Following Year 123.07
2nd Following Year 26.57
3rd Following Year 48.22
4th Following Year 24.19
5th Following Year 77.46
Sum of Years 6 to 10 258.33
Sum of Years 11 and above 701.39
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f)

g)

h)

Sensitivity Analysis

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate, expected salary
increase and mortality. The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the
respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

(X in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2021 | March 31,2020
Projected Benefit Obligation on Current Assumptions 663.15 649.44
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Discounting (45.32) (43.53)
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Discounting 52.20 50.29
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase 47.85 46.14
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase (42.29) (36.39)
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover 0.28 0.47
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover (0.32) (0.50)

The sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions
occurring at the end of the reporting period and may not be representative of the actual change. It is based on a change in
the key assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. When calculating the sensitivity analysis, the present value
of projected defined benefit obligation has been calculated using Projected Unit Credit Method at the end of the reporting
period. The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared with the
previous period.

The principal assumptions used for the purpose of actuarial valuation were as follows :

With the objective of presenting the plan assets and plan liabilities of the defined benefits plans at their fair value on the
balance sheet date, assumptions under Ind AS 19 are set by reference to market conditions at the valuation date.

The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:

Gratuity As at As at
March 31,2021, March 31,2020

Financial Assumptions

Discount rate 6.85% 6.84%

Salary Escalation Rate

For next 1 year 5.00% 0.00%

Thereafter starting from 2nd year 7.00% 7.00%

Attrition Rate

For Service (4 years & below) 15.00% 8.00%

For Service (5 years & above) 2.00% 2.00%

Mortality Tables Indian Assured Lives

Mortality (2006-08)

Investment details of plan assets:

To fund the obligations under the gratuity plan, Contributions are made to Life Insurance Corporation of India, who invests the
funds as per IRDA guidelines.

Other Long Term Employee Benefits

Compensated Absences

The liability towards compensated absences (leave encashment) for the year ended March 31, 2021 based on actuarial valuation
carried out by using Projected Unit Credit Method is ¥ 230.18 Lacs . (As at March 31, 2020 :¥ 189.59 Lacs)

Compensated Absences As at As at

March 31,2021 | March 31, 2020

Financial Assumptions

Discount rate 6.85% 6.84%
Salary Escalation Rate

For next 1 year 5.00% 0.00%
Thereafter starting from 2nd year 7.00% 7.00%
Attrition Rate

For Service (4 years & below) 15.00% 8.00%
For Service (5 years & above) 2.00% 2.00%
Mortality Tables Indian Assured Lives

Mortality (2006-08)
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NOTE - 47 SCHEDULE OF GOVERNMENT GRANT: (REFER NOTE 23 & 29) R in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2021, March 31,2020
Opening balance of Grant 660.58 716.23
Grant Received during the Year - -
Amortised to the statement of Profit & Loss (51.81) (55.65)
Closing balance of Grant 608.77 660.58
Current 51.33 51.33
Non-Current 557.44 609.25
Total 608.77 660.58

NOTE - 48 DISCLOSURE AS PERIND AS 116

The changes in the carrying value of ROU assets for the year ended March 31, 2021 are as follows : (R in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2021 March 31,2020
Opening Balance 753.37 -
Reclassified on account of adoption of Ind AS 116 885.67
Additions -
Changes on account of lease modification (25.74)
Depreciation (123.10) (132.30)
Closing Balance 604.53 753.37

The aggregate depreciation expense on ROU assets is included under depreciation and amortization expense in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

The break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities as at March 31, 2021 is as follows : (X in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2021 | March 31,2020
Current lease Liabilities 110.46 99.26
Non-current lease Liabilities 587.69 710.19
Total 698.15 809.45
The movement in lease liabilities during the year ended March 31, 2021 is as follows: (R in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2021, March 31,2020
Opening Balance 809.45 -
Reclassified on account of adoption of Ind AS 116 - 885.67
Finance cost accrued during the period 77.11 91.53
Changes on account of lease modification (25.74) -
Payment of lease liabilities (162.67) (167.75)
Closing Balance 698.15 809.45
The details of the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at March 31, 2021 on an undiscounted basis are as follows :
(X in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2021 | March 31,2020
Less than one year 110.46 99.26
One to five years 587.69 688.93
More than five years = 21.26
Total 698.15 809.45

The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets are sufficient to meet the
obligations related to lease liabilities as and when they fall due.

Rental expense recorded for short-term leases was ¥ 300.49 Lacs for the year ended March 31, 2021 and ¥ 310.79 Lacs for year ended
March 31, 2020.
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NOTE - 49 CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY EXPENDITURE:

a) CSRamount required to be spent by the Company as per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 is ¥ 73.23 Lacs for the year 2020-
21.(PY.¥ 68.43 Lacs).

b)  Expenditure related to CSRis X 73.51 Lacs (PY.% 20.36 Lacs), details of the same is as under: R in Lacs)

Particulars As at As at
March 31,2021 | March 31, 2020

i)  Construction/acquisition of any asset = -

i)  On purposes other than (i) above 73.51 20.36
Total 73.51 20.36
NOTE - 50

(@) Interim Reports by the Independent Law Firm and Chartered Accountant Firm appointed by the Committee of Independent
Directors to inquire/examine matters involving allegations and counter allegations levelled by two Promoter Directors against each
other primarily relating to the operations and management of the Company during the period 2014-15 to 2018-19, is received by
the Company. The Interim Reports received have not found any adverse observations/findings, in terms of reference made to them,
which can be considered to be prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

(b) However, the Company is yet to receive the report/finding for the following, primarily due to the second wave of the COVID-19:

Allegations relating to potential personal expenses claimed as official business expenditure amounting to ¥ 25.33 lacs (for financial
year 2017-18 and financial year 2018-19), and ¥ 25.00 lacs (for financial year 2014-15 and financial year 2018-19) by two Promoter
Directors respectively.

(c) The Board of Directors in its meeting held on June 28, 2021 have accepted the recommendation of the Committee of Independent
Directors to close all the matters not requiring any further course of action, except matter as referred to in para (b) above, and
believes that the items in para (b) above shall not have any material financial impact on the financial statements of the Company
for the year.

NOTE - 51

The business has been significantly impacted during the year on account of COVID-19. The Company has witnessed lower revenues
due to lockdown imposed during the beginning of the year, being the peak period of the ice-cream business. With the unlocking of
restrictions, the business improved gradually in the last two months of the year. Whilst there has been a second wave of the COVID-19
pandemic in April and May, 2021, the domestic ice-cream business of the Company once again got impacted, being the peak period.

The Company has also assessed the possible impact of COVID-19 in preparation of the standalone financial statements, including
recoverable value of its financial and non-financial assets and impact on revenues and cost. The Company has considered internal and
external sources of information and based on current estimates, expects to recover the carrying amount of these assets. The impact of
COVID-19 may be different from that estimated at the date of the approval of these standalone financial statements and the Company
will continue to closely monitor any material changes to the future economic conditions.

The Company, has availed moratorium in respect of term loans (interest and instalments) and interest on cash credit account up to
August 31, 2020, and is generally regular in payment of interest and principal to its various lenders.

As at the year end, the Company has noticed that there has been a breach in maintaining/complying certain financial ratios as stipulated
in the long-term loan agreements by the lenders. Considering the impact of COVID-19 as exceptional, and there being no default in
the payments to the lenders, the Company considers such breach in compliance of certain stipulated ratios as a minor breach of a debt
covenant, not warranting any action at this stage.

The Company believes, with the support of the lenders, in its ability to continue as a going concern and meeting its liabilities as and when
they fall due in the foreseeable future.
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NOTE - 52

The Code on Social Security, 2020 (‘Code’) has been notified in the Official Gazette of India on September 29, 2020, which could impact
the contributions of the Company towards certain employment benefits. The effective date from which changes are applicable is yet to
be notified and the rules are yet to be framed. Impact, if any, of the change will be assessed and accounted in the period of notification
of the relevant provisions.

NOTE-53

Previous years’figures have been regrouped and rearranged wherever necessary to comply with requirement of Ind AS.

In terms of our report attached.

For Arpit Patel & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm registration number: 144032W Rajesh R Gandhi Devanshu L Gandhi
Managing Director Managing Director
(DIN: 00009879) (DIN: 00010146)

Arpit K Patel Kalpit R Gandhi Rashmi Bhatt

Partner Director & Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Membership No.: 034032 (DIN: 02843308)

Place : Ahmedabad Place : Ahmedabad

Date: June 30, 2021 Date: June 30, 2021
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the members of Vadilal Industries Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Qualified Opinion

We have audited accompanying consolidated financial statements of Vadilal Industries Limited (“the Holding Company”), and its
subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as the “Group”) comprising of the consolidated Balance
Sheet as at March 31, 2021, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the consolidated
Statement of Cash Flows and the consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of
reports of other auditors on separate financial statements and on the other financial information of the subsidiaries, except for the effects
/ possible effects of the matters described in the ‘Basis for Qualified Opinion’ section of our report, the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India including Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) specified under
section 133 of the Act, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2021, their consolidated profit (including other
comprehensive income), their consolidated cash flows and the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year ended on that
date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

We are unable to comment upon the possible effects of the following matters, on the consolidated financial statements of the Company
for the year ended March 31, 2021. The matter more fully discussed in Note 47 of the consolidated financial statements pertaining to the
pending receipt of conclusive reports/findings for the item described therein:

1. Matter involving counter allegations levelled by two Promoter Directors of the Holding Company against each other in respect
of potential personal expenses claimed as official business expenditure amounting to ¥ 25.33 lakh (for financial year 2017-18
and financial year 2018-19), and ¥ 25.00 lakh (for financial year 2014-15 and financial year 2018-19) respectively, by the Promoter
Directors.

Pending receipt of the reports/findings, as referred above, we are unable to conclude the possible effects on the consolidated financial
statements of any undetected misstatements, if any, and whether it could be material.

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (“SAs”) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated financial statements” section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI") together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

Emphasis of Matter
We draw attention to

1. Note 48 of the consolidated financial statements, which describes the management’s assessment of the impact of the outbreak of
COVID-19 on the business operations of the Group.

2. Note 40 of the consolidated financial statements, which refers to the status of on-going litigations filed against the Holding
Company and some of its promoters under Section 241 and 242 of the Companies Act, 2013, pertaining to prevention of
oppression and mismanagement of the Company before the National Company Law Tribunal, Ahmedabad.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2021. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

In addition to the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section, we have determined the matters described below to be
the key audit matters to be communicated in our report. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter
is provided in that context.
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Key audit matters | How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
Inventory Existence and Carrying Value

Refer to Note 2(f) (accounting policy), Note 9 | Our procedures included:
to these consolidated financial statements.

—  Attendinginventory counts at plants on sample basis, which were selected based

Inventory is held by Group’s plants, and hired on financial significance and risk. Where locations were not attended, we tested
locations. certain controls over inventory existence across the Group.

The Group has significant levels of inventories | —  Observing sample of management’s inventory count procedures, to assess
and significant management judgments compliance with the Group process.

are taken with regard to categorization of
inventories into obsolete and/or slow moving
and which should be therefore be considered

—  Performing roll forward procedures for the year-end balance from the date of
inventory count attended.

for provision. Estimates are then involved in|—  Obtaining inventory confirmations from the hired locations as on balance sheet
arriving at provisions against cost in respect date and comparing the same with the inventory as per books and obtaining the
of slow moving and obsolete inventories to reconciliations for the variations (if any).

arrive at valuation based on lower of cost and

net realizable value. —  Challenging the management with regard to the calculation methodology, the

basis for provision and the process with respect to inventory provision;
Given the level of significant management
judgments and estimates involved this is
considered to be a key audit matter.

—  Testing the design, implementation and operating effectiveness of the key
controls management has established for provision computations and to ensure
the accuracy of the inventory provision.

—  Assessing the adequacy of, and movements in, inventory provisions held,
by recalculating a sample of items included within the provision to ensure
appropriate basis of valuation.

—  Evaluating, on a sample basis, whether inventories were stated at the lower of
cost or net realizable value at the reporting date by comparing the sales prices of
inventories subsequent to the reporting date.

—  Evaluating the appropriateness of the assumptions used based on our knowledge
and information of the client and the industry.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Corporate
Governance and Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditors’report thereon.
The other information is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditors’ report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained
during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we are required
to communicate the matter to those charged with governance as required under SA 720 'The Auditors’ responsibilities relating to other
Information’

Responsibilities of the Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position, consolidated financial performance including other comprehensive income, consolidated cash flows and consolidated
statement of changes in equity of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act, for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
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presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Board of Directors
of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group
are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting
process of the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the
audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by management.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditors'report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group of which we are the independent auditors, to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the
consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated
financial statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities included in the consolidated
financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2021, and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditors’report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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Other Matter

The accompanying consolidated financial statements includes the audited financial statements and other financial information in
respect of:

(@) 3 (three) subsidiaries, whose financial statements reflects total assets (before consolidation adjustments) of INR 7,930.97 lakh
as at March 31, 2021, total revenue (before consolidation adjustments) of INR 18,741.54 lakh, total net profit after tax (before
consolidation adjustments) of INR 2,953.26 lakh and net cash inflows of INR 1381.10 lakh for the year ended on that date. These
financial statements and other financial information have been audited by other auditors, which financial statements, other
financial information and auditor’s reports have been furnished to us by the management. Our opinion on the consolidated
financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries, and our report
in terms of sub-sections (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries, is based solely on the
reports of such other auditors.

The financial statements of an overseas subsidiary have not been prepared in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India as applicable to the Holding Company. The Management of the Holding Company has converted the financial
statements of this subsidiary from those accounting principles to the accounting principles generally accepted in India, as
applicable to the Holding Company.

(b)  1(One) subsidiary, whose financial statements reflects total assets (before consolidation adjustments) of INR 0.06 lakh as at March
31,2021, total revenue (before consolidation adjustments) of INR Nil, total net profit after tax (before consolidation adjustments) of
INR Nil and net cash inflows of INR Nil for the year ended on that date. These unaudited financial statements have been approved
and furnished to us by the Management of the Holding Company and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in
so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these entities, is based solely on such unaudited financial
statements. In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us by the Management of the Holding
Company, these financial statements are not material to the Group.

Our opinion above on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements below, is not
modified in respect of the above matter with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the
financial statements and other financial information certified by the Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report of the other auditors on separate
financial statements and the other financial information of subsidiaries, as noted in the ‘other matter’ paragraph we report, to the extent
applicable, that:

(@)  We/ the other auditors whose reports we have relied upon have sought and except for the matter described in the Basis for
Qualified Opinion paragraph, obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements;

(b) Except for the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, in our opinion, proper books of account as required
by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books and reports of the other auditors;

() The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements;

(d) Except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above, in our opinion, the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

(e)  The matter described in the “Basis for Qualified Opinion” paragraph in our opinion, may have an adverse effect on the functioning
of the Group.

(f) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on March 31, 2021 taken on
record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company, and the reports of the statutory auditors who are appointed under
Section 139 of the Act of its subsidiary companies, none of the directors of the Group’s companies, incorporated in India, is
disqualified as on March 31, 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

()  The qualification relating to maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are as stated in the “Basis for
Qualified Opinion” paragraph above and para 2(b)

(h)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company with reference to these
consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A” to this report;

124 |



_ N! ( ®-
e

(i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to

us and based on the consideration of the report of the other auditors on separate financial statements as also the other financial
information of the subsidiaries, as noted in the ‘Other matter’ paragraph:

Il The consolidated financial statements have disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its consolidated financial
position of the Group in its consolidated financial statements — Refer Note 39 to the consolidated financial statements;

Il. The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material
foreseeable losses;

M. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the
Holding Company and its subsidiaries incorporated in India during the year ended March 31, 2021.

For Arpit Patel & Associates.
Chartered Accountants
[Firm Registration No: 144032W]

Arpit K. Patel

Partner

Place: Ahmedabad [Membership No.: 034032]
Date: June 30, 2021 UDIN: 21034032AAAACG5425
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report

(Referred to in paragraph 3(h) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report to the members of
Vadilal Industries Limited of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company as of March 31, 2021, in conjunction with our
audit of the Consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management and Board of Directors’ Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Management and the Board of Directors of the Company are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit conducted in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Control over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and both issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting
with reference to these consolidated financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in
all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these consolidated financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to these consolidated financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of their reports referred
to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified audit opinion on the Holding
Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Consolidated financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company'’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of Consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company;
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company’s assets that could have a material effect on the Consolidated financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with Reference to these Consolidated Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
with reference to these consolidated financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over
financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Basis for Qualified Opinion

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit and the reports issued by other auditors on internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial statements, the following material weakness has
been identified in the Holding Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting as at 31 March 2021:

We draw attention to Note 47 of the consolidated financial statements relating to the counter allegations levelled by two Promoter
Directors of the Holding Company against each other in respect of potential personal expenses claimed as official business expenditure
amounting to ¥ 25.33 lakh (for financial year 2017-18 and financial year 2018-19), and % 25.00 lakh (for financial year 2014-15 and financial
year 2018-19) respectively, by the Promoter Directors. without following the process of the Holding Company. Pending receipt of the
reports/findings, as referred above, we are unable to conclude whether the Holding Company’s financial reporting process did have
controls to identify the nature of the expenses and the procedures to be followed for the payments made for certain travelling expenses.

A’material weakness'is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal financial control over financial reporting, such that there
is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the company’s annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or
detected on a timely basis.

Qualified Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for the possible effect of the material
weakness described in Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above on the achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, the
Company has maintained, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31,
2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.

We have considered the material weakness identified and reported above in determining the nature, timing, and extent of audit tests
applied in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2021, and this material
weakness has affected our opinion on the said consolidated financial statements of the Company and we have issued a qualified opinion
on the consolidated financial statements of the Company.

Other Matters

Our aforesaid report under section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company, in so far as it relates to
subsidiary companies incorporated in India, is based solely on the corresponding reports furnished to us by the auditors of such company
incorporated in India.

For Arpit Patel & Associates.
Chartered Accountants
[Firm Registration No: 144032W]

Arpit K. Patel

Partner

Place: Ahmedabad [Membership No.: 034032]
Date: June 30, 2021 UDIN: 21034032AAAACG5425
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET as at March 31, 2021

(X in Lacs)
Particulars Note As At As At
No. March 31,2021 | March 31,2020
I. ASSETS
(1) Non-Current Assets
(@) Property, Plant and Equipment 3(a) 29,798.28 29,756.46
(b) Capital Work-in-Progress 3 (b) 529.59 865.23
(¢) Investment Property 3(q) 18.72 19.06
(d) Intangible Assets 3(d) 110.38 144.11
(e) Right of Use Assets 3(e) 1,250.48 1,849.93
(f)  Financial Assets
(i) Investments 4 56.46 55.97
(i) Loans 5 1.05 5.38
(iii) Other Financial Assets 6 311.34 531.95
(g) Non Current Tax Assets (Net) 7 131.23 146.40
(h) Other Non-Current Assets 8 327.51 629.76
Total Non-Current Assets 32,535.04 34,004.25
(2) Current Assets
(@) Inventories 9 14,113.12 15,452.89
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Investments 10 1.28 1.22
(ii) Trade Receivables 11 4,529.81 4,415.03
(iii) Cash & Cash Equivalents 12 2,522.01 959.95
(iv) Other Balances with Banks 13 1,045.27 955.36
(v) Loans 14 9.42 12.97
(vi) Other Financial Assets 15 30.39 238.27
(c)  Other Current Assets 16 1,962.43 1,357.04
Total Current Assets 24,213.73 23,392.73
Total Assets 56,748.77 57,396.98
II.  EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Equity
(a) Equity Share capital 17 718.78 718.78
(b) Other Equity 18 24,388.48 23,986.13
Total Equity 25,107.26 24,704.91
Non Controlling Interest 31.16 31.65
(2) Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
(@) Financial Liabilities
(i)  Borrowings 19 5,718.20 4,921.50
(ii)  Other Financial Liabilities 20 1,030.78 1,497.12
(b) Provisions 21 256.67 195.53
(c) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 22 806.57 1,588.72
(d) Other Non Current Liabilities 23 557.43 609.25
Total Non-current Liabilities 8,369.65 8,812.12
Current Liabilities
(@) Financial Liabilities
(i)  Borrowings 24 6,962.57 10,554.49
(ii) Trade Payables
- Dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 25 857.57 526.26
- Dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 25 10,217.02 7,970.03
enterprises
(ili) Other Financial Liabilities 26 3,094.57 3,815.02
(b)  Provisions 27 334.29 298.13
(c)  Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 28 1,106.13 254.48
(d) Other Current Liabilities 29 668.55 429.89
Total Current Liabilities 23,240.70 23,848.30
Total Liabilities 31,610.35 32,660.42
Total Equity & Liabilities 56,748.77 57,396.98
See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
In terms of our report attached.
For Arpit Patel & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm registration number: 144032W Rajesh R Gandhi Devanshu L Gandhi
Managing Director Managing Director
(DIN: 00009879) (DIN: 00010146)
Arpit K Patel Kalpit R Gandhi Rashmi Bhatt
Partner Director & Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Membership No.: 034032 (DIN: 02843308)
Place : Ahmedabad Place : Ahmedabad
Date: June 30, 2021 Date: June 30, 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS for the year ended March 31, 2021

(X in Lacs)
Particulars Note Year Ended Year Ended
No. March 31,2021 | March 31,2020
| Revenue From Operations 30 46,379.23 59,926.72
I OtherIncome 31 1,653.41 962.05
Il Total Income (I+Il) 48,032.64 60,888.77
IV Expenses:
Cost of Materials Consumed 32 21,407.51 29,033.85
Purchase of Stock-in-trade 33 3,038.58 2,754.64
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods and Stock-in-trade 34 17.72 (225.46)
Employee Benefits Expense 35 5,472.03 6,240.60
Finance Costs 36 2,144.00 1,671.62
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 3 2,284.89 2,369.33
Other Expenses 37 12,899.43 14,250.43
Total Expense (IV) 47,264.16 56,095.01
V  Profit Before Tax (llI-1V) 768.48 4,793.76
VI Tax Expenses
(@) Current Tax 38 1,128.71 1,260.92
(b) Deferred Tax 38 (822.99) (605.04)
Total Tax Expenses 305.72 655.88
VIl Profit for the year (V-VI) 462.76 4,137.88
VIl Profit/ (Loss) Applicable to Non Controlling Interest (0.49) (0.47)
IX Profit/ (Loss) Attributable to Owner of Group (VII-VIII) 463.25 4,138.35
X  Other Comprehensive Income
(i)  Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans 3.27 (35.58)
(i) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (0.82) (2.54)
Items that will be reclassified to statement of Profit or Loss
Exchange difference on translation on foreign operations (63.35) (22.48)
Other Comprehensive Income for the Year (60.90) (60.60)
Attributable to:
a) Non Controlling Interest = -
b) Owners of the company (60.90) (60.60)
Xl Total Comprehensive Income for the Year (VII+X) 401.86 4,077.28
Attributable to:
a) Non Controlling Interest (0.49) (0.47)
b) Owners of the company 402.35 4,077.75
Earning Per Share (Face Value of X 10 each)
-Basic & Diluted 42 6.44 57.57
See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
In terms of our report attached.
For Arpit Patel & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm registration number: 144032W Rajesh R Gandhi Devanshu L Gandhi
Managing Director Managing Director
(DIN: 00009879) (DIN: 00010146)
Arpit K Patel Kalpit R Gandhi Rashmi Bhatt
Partner Director & Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Membership No.: 034032 (DIN: 02843308)
Place : Ahmedabad Place : Ahmedabad
Date: June 30, 2021 Date: June 30, 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS for the year ended March 31, 2021

(X in Lacs)
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31,2021 | March 31,2020
A CASHFLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit Before Tax 768.48 4,793.76
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 2,284.89 2,369.33
(Profit) / Loss on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment (Net) 21.22 (1.53)
Profit on Sale of Investments (2.08) (24.07)
Excess Provision Written Back (85.83) (69.44)
(Gain) / Loss on Fair Value of Current Investment (0.06) 0.21
(Gain) / Loss on Fair Value of Non Current Investment (0.50) 3.63
Financial Guarantee Commission Income (28.91) (28.99)
Grant Income (51.81) (55.65)
Interest Income (384.66) (72.84)
Finance Costs 2,144.00 1,671.62
Provision for Doubtful Debts - 45.01
Provision for Doubtful Advances - 16.00
Bad Debts Written Off 5.26 30.38
Exchange Rate Difference on Consolidation (63.35) (22.48)
3,838.17 3,861.18
Operating Profit before Working Capital changes 4,606.65 8,654.94
Changes in Working Capital:
(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories 1,339.77 (2,748.82)
(Increase) / Decrease in Trade Receivables, Financial Assets, Other assets and Loans (147.56) (2,084.82)
given
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade Payable, Financial Liabilities, Other Liabilities and 2,627.51 4,166.79
Provisions
Cash Generated from / (Used in) Operations 3,819.72 (666.85)
Income Taxes Paid (Net of Refund) (221.05) (1,325.50)
Net Cash Generated from / (Used in) Operating Activities (A) 8,205.32 6,662.59
B CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital Expenditure on Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Assets (1,484.74) (6,831.66)
Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment 15.22 16.37
Proceeds from Sale of Current Investment 2.08 24.07
Purchase of Non Current Investment 0.01 (2.00)
Interest Received 383.84 68.64
Net Cash Generated from / (Used in) Investing Activities (B) (1,083.59) (6,724.58)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS for the year ended March 31, 2021

(X in Lacs)

Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31,2021 | March 31,2020

C CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Non Current Borrowings 2,535.03 4,309.16
Repayment of Non Current Borrowings (1,957.73) (5,715.06)
Proceeds from / (Repayment of) Current Borrowings (Net) (3,591.92) 3,990.60
Repayment of Lease Liabilities (518.80) (433.90)
Interest Paid (2,026.25) (1,629.16)
Dividend Paid (Including Tax on Dividend) - (108.32)
Net Cash Generated from / (Used in) Financing Activities (C) (5,559.67) 413.32
Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash and Cash equivalents (A+B+C) 1,562.06 351.33
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year (Refer Note-12) 959.95 608.62
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year (Refer Note-12) 2,522.01 959.95

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Disclosure under Para 44A as set out in Ind AS 7 on cash flow statements under Companies (Indian Accounting

Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended).

R in Lacs)
Particulars of liabilities arising from financing activity. Note | Asat March Net cash Other| Asat March
No. 31,2020 Flows changes* 31,2021
Borrowings :
Non Current borrowings 19 6,795.64 532.50 44.80 7,372.94
Current borrowings 24 10,554.49 (3,591.92) - 6,962.57
Interest accrued on borrowings 26 220.90 (220.90) 338.65 338.65
Total 17,571.03 (3,280.32) 383.45 14,674.16
R in Lacs)
Particulars of liabilities arising from financing activity. Note | Asat March Net cash Other| Asat March
No. 31,2019 Flows changes* 31,2020
Borrowings :
Non Current borrowings 19 8,201.54 (1,458.95) 53.05 6,795.64
Current borrowings 24 6,563.89 3,990.60 - 10,554.49
Interest accrued on borrowings 26 178.44 (178.44) 220.90 220.90
Total 14,943.87 2,353.21 273.95 17,571.03

*This relates to amount charged to the statement of Profit & Loss

1) The above cash flow has been prepared under Indirect Method set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS 7) Statement of Cash

Flow.

2)  Previous year figures have been regrouped wherever necessary to make them comparable with current year figures.

3)  Figures in bracket represent outflow.

In terms of our report attached.

For Arpit Patel & Associates

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm registration number: 144032W

Arpit K Patel

Partner

Membership No.: 034032
Place : Ahmedabad

Date: June 30, 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Rajesh R Gandhi
Managing Director
(DIN: 00009879)

Kalpit R Gandhi

Director & Chief Financial Officer

(DIN: 02843308)
Place : Ahmedabad
Date: June 30, 2021

Devanshu L Gandhi
Managing Director
(DIN: 00010146)

Rashmi Bhatt
Company Secretary
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 GROUP INFORMATION:-

Vadilal Industries Limited is a Public Limited Company domiciled in India. Group has its registered office at Vadilal House, 53,
Shrimali Society, Nr. Navrangpura Railway Crossing, Navrangpura, Ahmedabad - 380009.

Group is engaged in the business of manufacturing Ice-cream, Flavored Milk, Frozen Dessert, Processed Foods, Other Dairy
Products. It is also engaged in export of Ice-cream, Dairy Products, Processed Food Products such as Frozen Fruits, Vegetable,
Pulp, Ready-to-eat and Ready-to-serve products etc.

Group is having two ice-cream production facilities — one in Gujarat and the other in Uttar Pradesh.

Group is processing Frozen Fruits, Vegetables and Processed Foods at factory situated at Dharampur, Dist.Valsad, Gujarat. Group
is exporting to various Countries.

Group is exporting to various countries across globe.

Group is having RBI license under AD.Il category and engaged in Money changing business. Group’s shares are listed on BSE and
NSE.

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Holding Company Vadilal Industries Limited (VIL)
and the following subsidiaries / partnership entity (together referred to as “Group”):

Entity Country of Incorporation
Subsidiaries [having 100% proportion of ownership interest]

Vadilal Industries (USA) Inc. U.S.A.

Vadilal Industries Pty Ltd. Australia

Vadilal Gulf (FZE)* U.AE.

Varood Industries Ltd.** India

Vadilal Delight Ltd.** India
Partnership Firm [having 98% proportion of ownership interest]

Vadilal Cold Storage India

*The holding company had incorporated a subsidiary company in United Arab Emirates in the name of VADILAL GULF (FZE) dated
February 20, 2018 which is liquidated / closed down on October 9, 2019.

**The holding company has incorporated two new subsidiaries in the name of Varood Industries Ltd.and Vadilal Delights Ltd.
dated February 19, 2020 and January 31, 2020 respectively.

The Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee and
approved by the Board of Directors at their meetings held on June 30, 2021.

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:-

a) Statement of Compliance

These financial statements comprising of Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive
income, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows as at March 31, 2021 have been prepared in
accordance with Ind AS as prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016.

b) Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each financial year, as explained in the accounting policies below.
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or liability, Group takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristic into account when pricing the asset or liability
at the measurement date.
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c)

d)

e)

f)

g)

h)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
asawhole:

1) Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or Liabilities.

2) Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly observable.

3) Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable.

Functional and Presentation Currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is the functional currency of the Holding
Company. All the amounts are stated in the nearest rupee lacs.

Use of Estimates

The presentation of the financial statements are in conformity with the Ind AS which requires the management to make
estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, revenues and expenses
and disclosure of contingent liabilities. Such estimates and assumptions are based on management's evaluation of relevant
facts and circumstances as on the date of financial statements. The actual outcome may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on going basis. Revisions to the accounting estimates are
recognized in the financial year in which the estimates are revised and in any future financial years affected.

Basis of Consolidation

Group consolidates all entities which it controls. Control is established when Group has power over the entity, is exposed,
or has rights to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has ability to affect the entity’s returns by using its
power over the entity.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date control commences and until the date control ceases.

Profit and loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of Group and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of Group and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members
of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation. The consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform
accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances.

Inventories
Inventories are valued as under -

Finished Goods:-At lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion
of manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity, but excluding borrowing costs. Cost is determined
on weighted average basis. Due provision for obsolescence is made.Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Raw Materials, Packing Materials & Stores and Spares:-Valued at lower of cost or net realisable value and for this purpose
cost is determined on moving weighted average basis. Due provision for obsolescence is made.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Group considers all highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash that are
subject to an insignificant risk of change in value and having maturities of three months or less from the date of purchase,
to be cash equivalents.

Revenue Recognition
Sale of Goods

The Group earns revenue primarily from sale of manufactured ice-creams. It has applied the principles laid down in Ind
AS 115 and determined that there is no change required in the existing revenue recognition methodology. In case of
sale to domestic customers, most of the sale is made on ex-factory basis and revenue is recognised when the goods are
dispatched from the factory gates. In case of export sales, revenue is recognised on shipment date or goods are made
available to customer.
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Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable net of returns and allowances, trade
discounts and volume rebates, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment excluding taxes or duties
collected on behalf of the government.

Assets and liabilities arising from rights to return
Right to return assets

A return right gives an entity a contractual right to recover the goods from a customer (return asset), if the customer
exercises its option to return the goods and obtain a refund. The asset is measured at the former carrying amount of the
inventory, less any expected costs to recover the goods, including any potential decreases in the value of the returned
goods.

Refund liabilities

A refund liability is the obligation to refund some or all of the consideration received (or receivable) from the customer.
The Group has therefore recognized refund liabilities in respect of customer’s right to return. The liability is measured at
the amount the Group ultimately expects it will have to return to the customer. The Group updates its estimate of refund
liabilities (and the corresponding change in the transaction price) at the end of each reporting period.

Interest Income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefit will flow to Group and
the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and the interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Government Grant

Government grants are not recognized until there is reasonable assurance that Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognized in profit and loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which Group recognises as
expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.

Export incentives under various schemes notified by government are accounted for in the year of exports based on
eligibility and when there is no uncertainty in receiving the same.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant & equipments are stated at actual cost (including cost of acquisition and installation) less accumulated
depreciation and net of impairment, if any.

All items of property, plant and equipments are derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Depreciation

Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its estimated residual
value. Depreciation on property, plant and equipment are charged based on straight line method on estimated useful
life as prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 except in respect of the following assets, for which, based on
technical evaluation, useful life is different than those prescribed in Schedule I1.

Particulars Estimated Useful Life
Building

1)  Factory Building 28 Years

2)  Others - RCC Structured 58 Years

Plant & Machinery

1) Continuous Process 18 Years

2)  Plastic Crates 5 Years

3) Others 20 Years

The estimated useful lives and residual values of the property, plant and equipment are reviewed at the end of each
reporting financial year, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Depreciation on items of property, plant and equipment acquired / disposed off during the year is provided on pro-rata
basis with reference to the date of addition / disposal.
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m)

Intangible Assets
Intangible Assets Acquired Separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment losses. Amortization is recognized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Derecognition of Intangible Assets

An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is
derecognized.

Useful Lives of Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are amortized over their estimated useful life on a straight line basis over a period of 5 years.
Investment Property

Investment property comprise portion of office building that are held for long term yield and / or capital appreciation.

Investment property is initially recognized at cost. Subsequently investment property comprising of building is carried at
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Investment property is depreciated under the straight line method as per the rates and the useful life prescribed as per
Schedule Il of the Companies Act.Though Group measures investment property using cost based measurement, the fair
value of investment property is disclosed in the notes. Fair values are determined based on value as per local body on
periodic basis.

Investment properties are derecognized when either they have been disposed of or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no economic benefit is expected from its disposal.

The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the
inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of
a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly
specified in an arrangement.

Group as a lessee:
(i) Right-of-use assets

Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset
is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of
lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter
of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows:

Assets Estimated useful life
Right-of-use of office premises,parlour premises,warehouses Over the balance peiod of lease agreement

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of
a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. The right-of-use assets are
also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in relating to Impairment of non-financial assets.

(i) Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, group recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance
fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price
of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the group and payments of penalties for terminating the
lease, if the lease term reflects the group exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not
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depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the
period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for
the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification,
a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a
change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to
purchase the underlying asset.

(iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases. (i.e.,those leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the
lease of low-value assets recognition exemption that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

Leases for which group is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease.
All other leases are classified as operating leases.

When group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the sublease separately. The
sublease is classified as a finance or operating lease by reference to the ROU asset arising from the head lease. For
operating leases, rental income is recognized on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Foreign Currencies

In preparing the financial statements of Group, the transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional currency
(INR) are recognized at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting
financial year, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rate prevailing at that date and
differences are recognised in statement of profit and loss account. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates prevailing at the date when fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on monetary items are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the financial year in
which they arise.

Employee Benefits
Employee benefits include provident fund, employee state insurance scheme, gratuity fund and compensated absences.
Defined Contribution Plan:

Group's contribution to Provident Fund is considered as defined contribution plans and are charged as an expense based
on the amount of contribution required to be made and when services are rendered by the employees.

Defined Benefit Plans:

For defined benefit plans in the form of gratuity fund, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected
Unit Credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at each balance sheet date. Remeasurement, comprising
actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the return on plan assets (excluding net interest), is reflected
immediately in the balance sheet with a charge or credit recognized in other comprehensive income in the financial year
in which they occur. Remeasurement recognized in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained
earnings and is not reclassified to in the statement of profit and loss. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount
rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset.

Group recognizes the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and
loss:

1) Service costs comprising current service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and settlements; and
2) Net interest expense or income

The retirement benefit obligation recognized in the Balance Sheet represents the present value of the defined benefit
obligation as adjusted for unrecognized past service cost, as reduced by the fair value of scheme assets. Any asset resulting
from this calculation is limited to past service cost, plus the present value of available refunds and reductions in future
contributions to the schemes.
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Short-term and Long-term Employee Benefits:

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave in
the period the related services rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for
that service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits
expected to be paid in exchange of the related service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of long-term employee benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated future
cash outflows expected to be made by Group in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing cost includes interest, amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of borrowings
and exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to
the interest cost.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the financial year in which they are incurred.
Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) for the year attributable to equity shareholders by
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Group did not have any potential dilutive
securities in any period presented.

Taxation
Tax expense represents the sum of the current tax and deferred tax.
Current Tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be
paid to the tax authorities, based on estimated tax liability computed after taking credit for allowances and exemption in
accordance with the local tax laws. Group's current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting financial year.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilized. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognized if the temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting financial year and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability
is settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which Group expects, at the end of the reporting financial year, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Current and Deferred Tax for the Year

Current and deferred tax are recognized in the statement of profit and loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognized in other comprehensive income, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognized in other
comprehensive income.
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t)

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets and Commitments

Provisions are recognized when Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that Group will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting financial year, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligations. When
a provision is measured using the cash flow estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
obligations of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party,
a receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the
receivable can be measured reliably.

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but
probably will not, require an outflow of resources. Where there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of
which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no disclosure is made.

Contingent Assets are not recognised but disclosed in the Financial Statements when economic inflow is probable.
Financial Instruments

Financial instrument is a contract that give rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument
of another entity.

Classification:

Group classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income or fair value through profit and loss on the basis of its business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual cash flows characteristics of the financial asset.

All financial liabilities are classified as subsequently measured at amortised cost except for financial liabilities at fair value
through profit and loss. Such liabilities, including derivatives, are subsequently measured at fair value, with any gains or
loss arising on re-measurement recognised in profit and loss.

Initial Recognition and Measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than Financial asset and liabilities at fair value
through profit & loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of the financial assets or
financial liabilities.

Financial Assets at Amortised Cost
Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective interest rate method, if:

(@) the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows and

(b)  the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.
Financial Asset at Fair Value Through profit and loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit and loss unless it is measured at amortized cost or fair value
through other comprehensive income. Financial assets under this category are measured initially as well as at each
reporting financial year at fair value with all changes recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition of Financial Assets

Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers
the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. If Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset,
Group recognises its retained interest in the asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity is recognized in profit and loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognized
in profit and loss on disposal of that financial asset.
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Financial Liabilities and Equity Instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Financial instruments are classified as a liability or equity according to the substance of the contractual arrangement and
not its legal form.

Equity Instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a Group are recognised at the proceeds received, net of issue costs.

Financial Liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value,
with any gains or losses arising on re-measurement recognised in profit and loss.

Derecognition of Financial Liabilities

Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
An exchange between a lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment
of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, a substantial modification of the
terms of an existing financial liability (whether or not attributable to the financial difficulty of the debtor) is accounted
for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognized and the consideration paid and payable is recognized
in profit and loss.

Derivative Contracts

Group enters into derivative financial instruments to hedge foreign currency / price risk on unexecuted firm commitments
and highly probable forecast transactions.

Such derivatives financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value on the date on which the derivative contracts are
entered into and are subsequently re-measured to their fair value at the end of each reporting financial year. The resulting
gain or loss is recognized in the statement of profit and loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective
as a hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition in profit and loss depends on the nature of the
hedging relationship and the nature of the hedged item.

Financial Guarantee Contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder
for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by a Group entity are initially measured at their fair values and, if not designated as at
FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher of:

. the amount of loss allowance determined in accordance with impairment requirements of Ind AS 109; and

. the amount initially recognized less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognized in the
statement of Profit & Loss

Impairment

Financial assets (other than at fair value)

Group assesses at each Balance sheet whether a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired.
Non-financial Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets

At the end of each reporting financial year, Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it
is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash generating unit for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
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v)

w)

x)

y)

assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognized
immediately in the statement profit and loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash generating unit) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset (or cash generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

Operating Cycle

Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current / non-current classification based on operating
cycle.

An asset is treated as current when it is:

1. Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

2 Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

3. Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting financial year, or

4 Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months

after the reporting financial year
All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

1. It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

2 It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

3. It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting financial year, or

4 There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting

financial year
All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
Group has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.
Recent accounting pronouncements
Amendment to Ind AS 116 “Leases” — Insertion of practical expedient for COVID-19 related lease concessions

The amendment provides lessee with a practical expedient and an exemption to assess whether a COVID-19 related
rent concession is a lease modification to payments originally due on or before June 30, 2021. Amendment also requires
disclosure of the amount recognised in statement of profit and loss to reflect changes in lease payments that arise from
such concession. Group has not recognised any amount as reversal of lease liability in the statement of profit and loss.

Standards issued but not yet effective

As at the date of issue of financial statements, there are no new standards or amendments which have been notified by the
MCA but not yet adopted by the Group.Hence, the disclosure is not applicable.

Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with the Ind AS requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities
and disclosures as at date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of the revenues and expenses for the
years presented. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions and conditions. The
estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.
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Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the financial year that may have a significant risk of causing as material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within next financial year.

Useful Lives of Property, Plant and Equipment

As described in Note 2(j), Group reviews the estimated useful lives and residual values of property, plant and
equipment at the end of each financial year. During the current financial year, the management determined that
there were no changes to the useful lives and residual values of the property, plant and equipment.

Allowances for Doubtful Debts

As described in Note 11, Group makes allowances for doubtful debts based on an assessment of the recoverability
of trade and other receivables. The identification of doubtful debts requires use of judgement and estimates. Where
the expectation is different from the original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value of the trade
and other receivables and doubtful debts expenses in the financial year in which such estimate has been changed.

Allowances for Inventories

Management reviews the inventory age listing on a periodic basis. This review involves comparison of the carrying
value of the aged inventory items with the respective net realizable value. The purpose is to ascertain whether an
allowance is required to be made in the financial statements for any obsolete and slow-moving items. Management
is satisfied that adequate allowance for obsolete and slow-moving inventories has been made in the financial
statements.

Fair Value Measurement of Financial Instruments

When the fair values of financials assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet cannot be measured
based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques, including the
discounted cash flow model, which involve various judgements and assumptions. Information about the fair value
of various assets and liabilities are disclosed in Note 41.
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3 (b) | Capital Work In Progress (% in Lacs) 3 (d) |Intangible Assets (R in Lacs)
(Software & Development Cost)
As at April 1,2019 1,319.63 Cost or Deemed Cost
Additions 3,806.71 As at April 1, 2019 817.00
Deductions 4,261.11 Additions 35.27
As at March 31, 2020 865.23 Deductions -
Additions 1,192.83 As at March 31, 2020 852.27
Deductions 1,528.47 Additions 23.02
As at March 31, 2021 529.59 Deductions -
3 (c) | Investment Property * (% in Lacs) As at March 31, 2021 875.29
Deemed cost Amortisation
As at April 1,2019 20.69 As at April 1,2019 616.62
Additions - Depreciation charge for the year 91.54
Deductions - Deductions -
As at March 31, 2020 20.69 As at March 31, 2020 708.16
Additions - Depreciation charge for the year 56.75
Deductions - Deductions -
As at March 31, 2021 20.69 As at March 31, 2021 764.91
Accumulated Depreciation Net Carrying Amount
As at April 1,2019 1.29 As at March 31, 2021 110.38
Depreciation charge for the year 0.34 As at March 31, 2020 144.11
Deductions -
As at March 31, 2020 1.63
Depreciation charge for the year 0.34
Deductions -
As at March 31, 2021 1.97
Net Carrying Amount
As at March 31, 2021 18.72
As at March 31, 2020 19.06
Fair Value of Investment Property
As at March 31, 2021 51.09
As at March 31, 2020 51.09

*The property is in process of transfer in the n

ame of the Group.

3(e)

Right of Use Assets (R in Lacs)
Cost or Fair Value

As at April 1,2019 -
Additions on account of transition to 2,416.32
INDAS 116

Deductions -
As at March 31, 2020 2,416.32
Additions -
Translation Difference (38.17)
Changes on account of lease (25.74)
modification

Deductions -
As at March 31, 2021 2,352.41
Accumulated Depreciation and

Impairment

As at April 1,2019 -
Additions on account of transition to 566.39
INDAS 116

Deductions -
As at March 31, 2020 566.39
Additions 535.54
Deductions -
As at March 31, 2021 1,101.93
Net Carrying Amount

At 31st March, 2021 1,250.48
At 31st March, 2020 1,849.93
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NOTE-4 INVESTMENTS

Particulars Face As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Value Units (% in Lacs) Units (% in Lacs)
Non Current
Investment in Partnership Firm at cost :
Vadilal Cold Storage 43.62 43.62
Investment in Government and Trust securities at
amortized cost (Unquoted) :
7 Year National Saving Certificates 0.28 0.28
(Lodged with Government Authorities)
In Equity instruments of other companies at Cost
(Unquoted fully paid up) :
Kalupur Commercial Co-operative Bank Ltd. 25 8,000 2.00 8,000 2.00
In Equity instruments of other companies at FVTPL
(Unquoted fully paid up) :
Vadilal Forex and Consultancy Services Ltd. 10 36,250 6.51 36,250 6.06
Majestic Farm House Ltd. (Refer Note-43) 10 74,100 3.99 74,100 3.95
Padm Complex Ltd. 10 280 0.03 280 0.03
Volute Construction Ltd. 10 280 0.03 280 0.03
Total 56.46 55.97
NOTE- 5 LOANS (% in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2021 | March 31,2020
Non Current
Loan to employees 1.05 5.36
Others - 0.02
Total 1.05 5.38
NOTE-6 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (R in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2021, March 31,2020
Non Current
Margin Money Deposits with banks (Refer Note-13) 18.91 48.13
Security Deposits (Refer Note-43) 20.13 290.95
Other Deposits 272.30 192.87
Total 311.34 531.95
NOTE-7 TAX ASSETS (R in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2021 | March 31,2020
Non Current
Taxes Receivable 131.23 146.40
Total 131.23 146.40
NOTE-8 OTHER ASSETS (R in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2021, March 31,2020
Non Current
Capital Advances 161.95 233.61
Prepaid Expenses 165.56 396.15
Total 327.51 629.76

37TH ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21 | 145



I Vadia” [

NOTE-9 INVENTORIES (% in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2021| March 31, 2020

(At lower of Cost or Net Realisable Value)
Raw Materials 6,823.10 8,565.68
Packing Materials 1,561.06 1,322.78
Finished Goods* 5,086.03 4,904.04
Stores, Spares and Consumables 642.93 660.39
Total 14,113.12 15,452.89

*Includes net of right to return assets of ¥ NIL (March 31, 2020 : ¥ 199.71 Lacs) pursuant to Ind AS 115 - Revenue from Contracts with

Customers.

Inventories write downs are accounted, considering the nature of inventory usage, ageing and net realisable value. Write-down of
inventories amounted to I 586.84 Lacs as at March 31,2021 (as at March 31, 20203 520.12 Lacs). These write-downs are recognised as an

expense in the statement of profit & loss.

NOTE-10 INVESTMENTS

Particulars Face As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Value Units (X in Lacs) Units (% in Lacs)
Current
(Valued at fair value through Profit and Loss)
Investments in Equity Instruments-Quoted
Century Enka Ltd. 10 15 0.04 15 0.02
Great Eastern Shipping Co. Ltd. 10 100 0.31 100 0.20
GOL Offshore Ltd. 10 25 - 25 -
Interface Financial Services Ltd. 1 25,000 0.05 25,000 0.04
Radhe Developers Ltd. 10 4,900 0.41 4,900 0.49
Saket Projects Ltd. 10 2,500 0.02 2,500 0.02
Sanara Media Ltd. 1 9,00,000 0.45 9,00,000 0.45
Total 1.28 1.22
NOTE-11 TRADE RECEIVABLES ( in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2021| March 31,2020
Secured, Considered Good 104.49 106.07
Unsecured, Considered Good (Refer Note-43) 4,425.32 4,308.96
Unsecured, Considered Doubtful 179.20 182.05
4,709.01 4,597.08
Less: Allowance for Doubtful Trade Receivables (expected credit loss allowance) 179.20 182.05
Total 4,529.81 4,415.03
Note: Refer Note-41 for information about credit risk and market risk of Trade receivables.
(X in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2021 | March 31,2020
Break-up of trade receivables
Trade receivables from other than related parties 3,099.14 2,343.48
Receivables from related parties (Refer Note-43) 1,430.67 2,071.55
Total 4,529.81 4,415.03
Notes

1. The credit period ranges from 0 days to 180 days.

2. Before accepting any new customer, Group assesses the potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by customer.
Limits attributed to customers are reviewed annually. There are no customers who represent more than 5% of the total balance of
trade receivable except, as at March 31,2021 :3 1,430.67 lacs are due from one customer (as at March 31,2020 :% 2,071.55 lacs are

due from one customer).

3. In determining the allowances for doubtful trade receivables, Group has used a practical expedient by computing the expected
credit loss allowance for trade receivables based on Group policy and ageing of the receivables that are due.
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4.  Movement in Expected Credit Loss Allowance

R in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2021 | March 31,2020
Balance at the beginning of the year 182.05 137.04
Add: Allowance for the year 15.65 46.22
Less: Reversal of provision due to recovery 18.50 1.21
Balance at the end of the year 179.20 182.05

5. Refund liabilities of ¥ NIL (March 31, 2020 : ¥ 247.30 lacs) pursuant to Ind AS 115 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers are

shown under Other Financial Libilities. (Refer Note-26)

NOTE-12 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2021 | March 31,2020
Balances with Banks :
In Current Accounts 2,494.78 925.35
Cheques, Drafts on hand 8.73 10.00
Cash on hand 18.50 24.60
Total 2,522.01 959.95
Note: There are no restrictions with regards to Cash and Cash Equivalents
NOTE-13 OTHER BALANCES WITH BANKS R in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2021 | March 31,2020
Balances in Fixed Deposits Repayment Reserve Account 278.58 278.59
Balances in Unclaimed Dividend Accounts 18.62 21.82
Deposits with maturity for more than 3 months but less than 12 months - 40.87
Margin Money Deposit (towards guarantee and LC issued by banks as well as for loan security) 766.98 662.21
1,064.18 1,003.49
Less : Deposits with maturity of more than 12 months
Amount disclosed under Non-Current Financial Assets (Refer Note-6) 18.91 48.13
Total 1,045.27 955.36
Note: Unclaimed Dividend Account balance can only be used for payment of Unclaimed Dividend.
NOTE-14 LOANS R in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2021, March 31,2020
Current
Loan to Employees 9.42 12.97
Total 9.42 12.97
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NOTE-15 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS R in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2021, March 31,2020

Current

(Unsecured, Considered Good)
Interest accrued on loans and deposits from related parties (Refer Note-43) 7.86 5.40
Interest accrued on loans and deposits from others 2.84 448
Other Deposits 19.69 28.68
Others* - 199.71

Total 30.39 238.27

*Includes right to return assets of ¥ NIL (March 31,2020:% 199.71 lacs) pursuant to Ind AS 115 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers.

NOTE-16 OTHER ASSETS R in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
Current
Prepaid Expenses 312.23 214.48
Balances with Govt.Authorities 445.70 537.15
Export Benefits Receivable 569.22 104.64
(A) 1,327.15 856.27
Advances for Goods & Expenses
Considered Good 635.28 500.77
Considered Doubtful 22242 222.44
Less: Allowances for Doubtful Advance 222.42 222.44
(B) 635.28 500.77
Total (A +B) 1,962.43 1,357.04
NOTE-17 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL R in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
Authorised Share Capital:
1,50,00,000 (as at March 31, 2020 :1,50,00,000) Equity shares of ¥ 10/- each 1,500.00 1,500.00
1,500.00 1,500.00
Issued, Subscribed and Fully paid-up Share Capital
Issued and Subscribed Share Capital :
71,88,230 (as at March 31, 2020 :71,88,230) Equity shares of ¥ 10/- each 718.82 718.82
718.82 718.82
Paid up Share Capital:
71,87,830 (as at March 31, 2020 :71,87,830) Equity shares of ¥ 10/- each 718.78 718.78
718.78 718.78

a) Reconciliation of number of equity shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
No. of shares | (JinLacs) | No.ofshares| (ZinLacs)
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the period 71,87,830 718.78 71,87,830 718.78
Add / Less: Issued shares / buy back during the year - - - -
Shares outstanding at the end of the period 71,87,830 718.78 71,87,830 718.78

b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares:

Group has issued only one class of equity share having par value of ¥ 10/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one

vote per share and are entitled to dividend as and when declared.

All shares rank equally with regard to the Group’s residual assets after distribution of all preferential amount.
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c) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the group (Equity shares of ¥ 10 each fully paid)
Name of the Shareholder As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
No. of shares | % of holding | No. of shares | % of holding
held held
Vadilal International Pvt. Ltd. 28,09,704 39.09% 28,09,704 39.09%
As per records of the group, including its register of shareholders / members and other declarations received from shareholders
regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents legal ownership of shares.
NOTE-18 OTHER EQUITY R in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at

March 31,2021| March 31,2020

Capital Reserve

Balance at beginning of the year 8.84 8.84
Balance at the end of the year 8.84 8.84
Securities Premium
Balance at beginning of the year 487.28 487.28
Balance at the end of the year 487.28 487.28
Revaluation Reserve
Balance at beginning of the year 7,524.17 7,524.17
Balance at the end of the year 7,524.17 7,524.17
General Reserve
Balance at beginning of the year 5,000.00 5,000.00
Balance at the end of the year 5,000.00 5,000.00
Foreign Currency Translation Reserve
Balance as per last Financial Statements (66.00) (43.52)
Add : Transfer for the current year (63.35) (22.48)
Closing Balance (129.35) (66.00)
Retained Earnings
Balance at beginning of the year 11,146.44 7,116.41
Add : Profit for the year 463.25 4,138.35
Less : Appropriations
Dividend for the year including tax on dividend (Refer Note (a) below) - 108.32
(Dividend per share X NIL (P.Y. amount per share ¥ 1.25))
Total Appropriations - 108.32
Balance at the end of the year 11,609.69 11,146.44
Other Comprehensive Income
Balance at beginning of the year (114.60) (76.48)
Add : Remeasurement of Employee Benefit 2.45 (38.12)
Balance at the end of the year (112.15) (114.60)
Total Other Equity 24,388.48 23,986.13
a) OnOctober 9, 2019 a dividend of T 1.25 per share (total dividend ¥ 108.32 lacs) was paid to holders of fully paid equity shares. The
total dividend includes dividend distribution tax at applicable rates.
c¢) Nature and Purpose of Reserve

Capital Reserve Group has created capital reserve out of investment utilization reserve written back and forfeited shares.
Securities Premium Reserve: The amount received in excess of face value of the equity shares is recognised in Securities Premium
Reserve. This reserve is available for utilization in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. In case of equity-
settled share based payment transactions, the difference between fair value on grant date and nominal value of share is accounted
as securities premium reserve.

Revaluation Reserve: Group has created revaluation reserve out of revaluation of land carried out as at April 1, 2016.

General Reserve : General reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes.
As the general reserve is created by a transfer from one component of equity to another and is not an item of other comprehensive
income, items included in the general reserve will not be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss.

Retained Earnings: Retained earnings are the profits that Group has earned till date, less any transfers to general reserve, dividends
or other distributions paid to shareholders.
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NOTE-19 BORROWING R in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
Non Current
Secured-at amortised Cost
Term Loans from Banks 4,398.68 3,834.63
Less: Current maturities of long term loans (Refer Note-26) 1,117.59 627.19
3,281.09 3,207.44
Vehicle Loans from Bank 89.68 112.29
Less: Current maturities of vehicle loans (Refer Note-26) 24.89 23.17
64.79 89.12
Term Loans from Non Banking Financial Company 395.43 451.17
Less: Current maturities of long term loans (Refer Note-26) 75.91 4428
319.52 406.89
3,665.40 3,703.45
Unsecured-at amortised Cost
Public Fixed Deposits 2,489.15 2,397.55
Less: Current maturities of public fixed deposits (Refer Note-26) 436.35 1,179.50
2,052.80 1,218.05
Total 5,718.20 4,921.50
Note

1 Refer Note-41 for information about Liquidity Risk.

2 Amount stated in current maturities is disclosed under the head of “ Other Current Financial Liabilities” (Refer Note-26).

3 TheHolding Company has availed for moratorium in respect of term loans (interest & instalments) from March 1, 2020 to August 31,
2020 and accordingly classified Current & Non-Current Portion based on the moratorium availed.

Repayment Schedule of Loans

R in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at| Effective Interest | Terms of repayment
March 31,2021 | March 31,2020 Rate
Term Loans
From Banks
Bank of Baroda 27.76 221.92 14.16% 72 monthly instalments of ¥ 27.78
lacs starting from December, 2014
Bank of Baroda (COVID 19) 203.40 - 8.15% 6 monthly instalments of T 5.65 lacs
starting from December, 2020 and
12 monthly instalment of ¥ 16.01
lacs startig from June, 2021
State Bank of India (COVID 19) 140.00 - 7.40% 18 monthly instalments of ¥ 10.00
lacs starting from December, 2020
Indusind Bank (partially disbursed) 3,094.29 3478.81 11.19% 72 monthly instalments of ¥ 61.11
lacs starting from February, 2019
Indusind Bank (GECL) 717.00 - 9.25% 48 monthly instalments of ¥ 14.94
(partially disbursed) lacs starting from February, 2022
Bank of America 98.70 133.90 4.70% 48 monthly instalments*  of
$ 4240.88 starting from Feb, 2020
US Small Business Administration 117.52 - 3.75% 333 monthly instalments* of
$ 731.00 starting from July 17, 2021
From Financial Institutions
Tata Capital Financial Services Ltd. 395.44 451.17 11.89% 78 monthly instalments of ¥ 6.33
lacs starting from October, 2019
Vehicle Loans from Bank
HDFC Bank Limited 89.68 112.29| 8.30%to 12.76% | From 13 to 68 monthly Instalments*
of%0.07 lacs to ¥ 1.21 lacs
Total Loan (a) 4883.79 4398.09
Fixed deposits (b) 2,489.15 2397.55| 8.00% to 9.00% 12 months to 36 months
based on period of
deposit
Grand Total (a)+(b) 7372.94 6795.64

*Includes Interest portion
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A

Term Loans from BOB X 27.76 Lacs (As at March 31, 20203 221.92 Lacs), Indusind Bank ¥ 3094.29 Lacs (As at March 31, 20203 3478.81
Lacs), GECL Loan sanctioned by Indusind Bank for ¥ 956.00 Lacs (As at March 31, 2021 ¥ 717.00 Lacs) are secured by way of Mortgage
on immovable properties and hypothecation on movable properties of the Holding Company situated at the following places by way
of 1st and 2nd charge on pari-passu basis :-

()  Land and Building together with all plant and machineries situated on land bearing Final Plot No. 292-3-A of T. P. Scheme No. 14
of Mouje Dariapur- Kazipur of city taluka of Ahmedabad. (Ice-cream Plant) (1st charge)

(i)  Land and Building together with all plant and machineries situated at Village Dharampur, forming part of New Survey Nos.
3645 i.e. Old Survey Nos. 970/1 (Survey No. 970 (Paiki)) Mouje Dharampur of Dharampur Taluka, Dist. Valsad (Canning Unit) (1st
charge)

(iii) Land and Building together with all plant and machineries situated at New Survey No.1663 i.e. Amalgamated Survey No.637/13/1
(Old Survey No.637/14,637/16,637/13/2,637/15,643/2,643/1,637/13/1) situated Village: Pundhra, Tal.: Kalol, Dist.: Gandhinagar
(Ice-cream Plant) (1st charge)

(iv) Basement and 3rd Floor, Vadilal House, Navrangpura, Ahmedabad (Office Complex) (1st charge)

(v) Land and Building together with all plant and machineries being Unit - |, situated at Plot No. D-24 Parsakhera Industrial Estate,
Bareilly, U.P. (Ice-cream Plant) (1st charge)

(vi) Land and Building together with all plant and machineries situated at New Survey No. 3647 i.e Old Survey No. 970 (Paiki) Mouje
Dharampur, Dist.: Valsad (IQF unit - excluding specific plant & machineries specifically financed by IDBI) (2nd charge)

(vii) Ground and 2nd Floor, Vadilal House, Navrangpura, Ahmedabad (Office Complex) (2nd charge)

(viii) Land and Building together with all plant and machineries situated at Unit — II, being Plot No. D-23 and D-22, F-11/14/15 at
Parsakhera Industrial Estate, Bareilly, U.P. (Ice-cream Plant) (only on movable properties as 1st charge) (excluding specific plant &
machineries specifically financed by IDBI)

(ix) Land and Building together with all plant and machineries situated at New Survey Nos. 3642, 3643, 3644 and 3646 i.e. Old Survey
Nos. 962/1, 966, 969 and 970/2 at Mouje Dharampur, Dist.: Valsad (New land). (1st charge)

(x) Land and Building together with all plant and machineries situated at Plot No. F-12, Parsakhera Industrial Estate, Bareilly, U.P.
(Leased Property) (2nd Charge)

(xi) Movable Properties situated at Gomtipur, Ahmedabad (only on movable properties as 2nd Charge)
(xii) 4 Flats No. 801 to 804, situated at Maruti Centre, Gurukul, Drive-in-Road, Ahmedabad (Residential Flats)

The Guaranteed Emergency Credit Line of ¥ 956.00 Lacs from Indusind Bank (As at March 31, 20213 717.00 Lacs) is secured by way of
2nd pari-passu charge over all the existing primary & collateral securities including mortgage created in favour of the Bank, movable
and immovable fixed assets of the Borrower, both present and future.

The above Term Loans are also secured by way of Hypothecation on entire current assets of the Company on 2nd pari-passu charge
basis.

Vehicle loans are secured by hypothecation of vehicles.

The Term Loans are secured by Corporate Guarantee by Majestic Farm House Ltd., Vadilal Cold Storage, Padm Complex Ltd. and Volute
Constructions Ltd. The Credit Facilities of Indusind Bank are also secured by Corporate Guarantee by Vadilal Enterprises Ltd.

The Term Loan from Tata Capital Financial Services Ltd. Capped at - ¥ 493.40 Lacs (outstanding as at March 31, 20213 395.44 Lacs and
as March 31,20203% 451.17 Lacs) is secured as under :

(i)  Security deposit (SD) / Fixed Deposit (FD) of ¥ 250 lacs with a Bank as acceptable to TCFSL ,duly lien marked on Principal and
Interest in favor of TCFSL. With nature of Deposit : Reinvestment of interest and Maturity Instruction of Auto renew Principal and
Interest.

(ii)  Corporate Guarantee by Vadilal Enterprises Ltd.

The Corporate Loan of ¥ 2,000.00 lacs from BOB and Term Loan of ¥ 493.40 lacs from Tata capital Financial Services Itd are also secured
by Personal Guarantee of Mr. Rajesh R Gandhi and Mr. Devanshu L Gandhi, Managing Directors of the Company.

The Short Term/Demand Loan of ¥ 226.00 lacs from Bank of Baroda under Baroda Covid Emergency Credit Line is secured as under :
(i)  Primary; Hypothecation of Stock and Book Debts on First and Pari-passu basis.

(i)  First charge and Second charge on fixed assets on Pari-passu basis. Personal and Corporate Guarantee of Promoters/Corporate
Guarantors as per Lead Bank approval.
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Fund Based Working Capital (Demand Loan) of ¥ 180.00 lacs from State Bank of India under Common Covid 19 Emergency Credit Line
is secured as under:

()  Extensionof charge on existing primary and or collateral security and Personal and Corporate Guarantee of Promoters/Corporate
Guarantors as per Lead Bank approval.

Term loan in subsidiary company from Bank of America and US Small Business Administration is secured against tangible and
intangible assets of the subsidiary company.

Collateral / Additional Securities by Group Companies :-

A

Existing Term Loan from BOB Corporate Loan of ¥ 2,000.00 lacs, Term Loan of ¥ 6,000.00 lacs (Capped to ¥ 4,400.63 lacs) from
Indusind Bank, are also secured/to be secured by way of Mortgage onimmovable properties of Majestic Farm House Ltd. as Collateral
/ Additional Securities situated at the following place by way of 1st charge on pari-passu basis :-

()  Land and Building together with all plant and machineries situated at Unit - Il, being Plot No. D-23 and D-22, F-11/14/15 at
Parsakhera Industrial Estate, Bareilly, U.P. (Ice-cream Plant) (1st charge)

NOTE-20 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES R in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2021 | March 31,2020
Non Current
Financial Guarantee Liabilities (Refer Note-43) 1.64 28.28
Lease Liabilities 1,029.14 1,468.84
Total 1,030.78 1,497.12
NOTE-21 PROVISIONS R in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2021| March 31, 2020
Non Current
Provision for Employee Benefits
Gratuity (Refer Note-44) 256.67 195.53
Total 256.67 195.53
NOTE-22 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY (NET) R in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2021 March 31,2020
Deferred Tax Liabilities 1,579.86 2,317.30
Deferred Tax Assets (773.29) (728.58)
Total 806.57 1,588.72
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Movement in Deferred Tax Liabilities and Assets R in Lacs)
Movement during the year ended March 31, 2021 Asat| Charge/(Credit)| Charge/(Credit) As at
April 1,2020| in statement of in Other| March 31,2021
Profitand Loss | Comprehensive
Income
Deferred Tax Liabilities / (Assets)
Property, plant and equipment 1,948.01 96.63 2,047.85
Investments 4.26 0.15 4.41
Expenditure allowed in the year of payment (170.84) (27.27) (198.11)
Provision for doubtful debts & advances (18.95) 1.67 (17.28)
Government Grant under EPCG (163.77) 12.87 (150.90)
Discounting of security deposit to present value and 72.06 (66.12) 5.94
corresponding impact on other expenses
Discounting of security deposit to present value and (90.31) 83.90 (6.41)
corresponding impact on interest income
Increase in borrowing cost pursuant to application of 37.21 (11.26) 25.95
EIR
Effect of measuring corporate guarantee liability (13.94) 7.26 (6.68)
Acturial Loss - (0.82) 0.82 -
Leased Assets under Ind AS 116 189.61 (37.46) 152.15
Leased Liability under Ind AS 116 (203.72) 28.01 (175.71)
Unabsorbed Loss (865.84) (865.84)
Impact on Unrealised Profit of Inventory (28.49) (44.71) (73.20)
Impact of USA Tax 27.59 36.81 64.40
Total 1,588.72 (786.18) 0.82 806.57
R in Lacs)
Movement during the year ended March 31, 2020 As at| Charge/(Credit)| Charge/(Credit) As at
April 1,2019 | in statement of in Other| March 31,2020
Profit and Loss| Comprehensive
Income
Deferred Tax Liabilities / (Assets)
Property, plant and equipment 2,609.73 (661.72) 1,948.01
Investments 7.26 (3.00) 4.26
Expenditure allowed in the year of payment (147.35) (23.49) (170.84)
Provision for doubtful debts & advances (19.53) 0.58 (18.95)
Government Grant under EPCG (245.47) 81.70 (163.77)
Discounting of security deposit to present value and 110.77 (38.71) 72.06
corresponding impact on other expenses
Discounting of security deposit to present value and (132.83) 42.52 (90.31)
corresponding impact on interest income
Increase in borrowing cost pursuant to application of 70.21 (33.00) 37.21
EIR
Effect of measuring corporate guarantee liability (29.49) 15.55 (13.94)
Acturial Loss - (2.54) 2.54 -
Lease Assets (ROU) under Ind AS 116 - 189.61 189.61
Lease Liabilities under Ind AS 116 - (203.72) (203.72)
Impact on Unrealised Profit of Inventory (59.66) 31.17 (28.49)
Impact of USA Tax 25.31 2.28 27.59
Total 2,188.95 (602.77) 2.54 1,588.72
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NOTE-23 OTHER LIABILITIES Rin Lacs)

Particulars As at As at

March 31,2021| March 31,2020

Non Current

Deferred Govt. Grant 557.43 609.25
Total 557.43 609.25
NOTE-24 BORROWINGS R in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
Current
Secured-at amortised Cost
Working Capital Loans from Banks 4,318.44 10,177.38
4,318.44 10,177.38
Unsecured-at amortised Cost
Public Fixed Deposits 553.80 130.20
Inter Corporate Deposits from others 2,040.00 200.00
Book Overdraft in current account with Banks 50.33 46.91
2,644.13 377.11
Total 6,962.57 10,554.49

A Working Capital facilities from Consortium Banks, namely, BOB, SBI, IDBI and Indusind Bank aggregating to I 67.92 crores are
secured by way of Mortgage onimmovable properties and hypothecation on movable properties of the Holding Company situated
at the following places by way of 1st and 2nd charge on pari-passu basis :-

0]

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

Land and Building together with all plant and machineries situated on land bearing Final Plot No. 292-3-A of T. P. Scheme No.
14 of Mouje Dariapur- Kazipur of city taluka of Ahmedabad. (Ice-cream Plant) (2nd charge)

Land and Building together with all plant and machineries situated at Village Dharampur, forming part of New Survey Nos.
3645 i.e. Old Survey Nos. 970/1 (Survey No. 970 (Paiki)) Mouje Dharampur of Dharampur Taluka, Dist. Valsad (Canning Unit)
(2nd charge)

Land and Building together with all plant and machineries situated at New Survey No.1663 i.e. Amalgamated Survey
No.637/13/1 (Old Survey No. 637/14, 637/16, 637/13/2, 637/15, 643/2, 643/1, 637/13/1) situated Village: Pundhra, Tal.: Kalol,
Dist.: Gandhinagar (Ice-cream Plant) (2nd charge)

Basement and 3rd Floor, Vadilal House, Navrangpura, Ahmedabad (Office Complex) (2nd charge)

Land and Building together with all plant and machineries being Unit - |, situated at Plot No. D-24 Parsakhera Industrial Estate,
Bareilly, U.P. (Ice-cream Plant) (2nd charge)

Land and Building together with all plant and machineries situated at New Survey No.3647 i.e. Old Survey No. 970 (Paiki)
Mouje Dharampur, Dist.: Valsad (IQF unit - excluding specific plant & machineries specifically financed by IDBI) (1st charge)

Ground and 2nd Floor, Vadilal House, Navrangpura, Ahmedabad (Office Complex) (1st charge)

Movable Properties situated at Unit - II, being Plot No. D-23 and D-22, F-11/14/15 at Parsakhera Industrial Estate, Bareilly, U.P.
(Ice-cream Plant) (2nd charge) (excluding specific plant & machineries specifically financed by IDBI)

Land and Building together with all plant and machineries situated at New Survey Nos. 3642, 3643, 3644 and 3646 i.e. Old
Survey Nos. 962/1, 966, 969 and 970/2 at Mouje Dharampur, Dist.: Valsad (New land). (2nd charge)

Land and Building together with all plant and machineries situated at Plot No. F-12, Parsakhera Industrial Estate, Bareilly, U.P.
(2nd charge)

Movable Properties situated at Gomtipur, Ahmedabad (only on movable properties as 1st charge)

4 Flats No. 801 to 804, situated at Maruti Centre, Gurukul, Drive-in-Road, Ahmedabad (Residential Flats) (1st charge)

B  The above Working Capital facilities are also secured by way of Hypothecation on entire current assets of the Company on 1st pari-
passu charge basis.
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c i

The above Working Capital facilities are also secured by Personal Guarantee of Mr. Rajesh R. Gandhi, Managing Director

and Mr. Devanshu L. Gandhi, Managing Director of the Company. The Working Capital facilities of the Consortium Bank
are also secured by Corporate Guarantee by Majestic Farm House Ltd., Vadilal Cold Storage, Padm Complex Ltd. and Volute

Constructions Ltd.

ii)  CCfacility from Kalupur Commercial Co-operative Bank of ¥ 3,000 lacs is secured by pledge stocks and Personal Guarantee of

Mr. Rajesh R. Gandhi, Managing Director and Mr. Devanshu L. Gandhi, Managing Director of the Company.

D  The cash credit loan is repayable on demand and carries interest @ 10.00 % to 13.10 %

E  The Working Capital loan (Unsecured) is repayable on demand and carries interest @ 10.00 % to 11.50 %.

F  Inter corporate deposits are repayable between 90 days to 365 days and carry Interest @ 11.00 % to 15.00 %

G  Fixed deposits are repayable for 12 months to 36 months are carry interest @ 8.00 % to 9.00 %.

Collateral / Additional Securities by Group Companies

A Working Capital facilities from Consortium Banks, namely, BOB, SBI, IDBI and Indusind and additional Working Capital Facilities from
BOB are also secured by way of Mortgage on immovable properties of [* Majestic Farm House Ltd. by way of 2nd charge on pari-
passu basis ], [# Padm Complex Ltd. & Volute Constructions Ltd. by way of exclusive charge on pari-passu basis ] and [@ Vadilal Cold
Storage by way of 2nd charge on pari-passu basis ] as Collateral / Additional Securities situated at the following places :-

* Unit - Il, D-22 and D-23, F-11/14/15 at Parsakhera Industrial Estate, Bareilly, U.P. (Ice-cream Plant) (2nd charge) (Leased

Property)

#  Ground Floor, Office No. 2B, “Mahalaya” Opp. President Hotel, Swastik Char Rasta, Ahmedabad. (1st charge) (Owned Property)

@  Gomtipur, Ahmedabad (1st charge) (Leased Property)

NOTE-25 TRADE PAYABLES R in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at

March 31,2021, March 31,2020

Due to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises-Refer Note (A) 857.57 526.26

Due to Others 10,217.02 7,970.03

Total 11,074.59 8,496.29

Note A) The amount outstanding to micro and small enterprise is based on the information received and available with Group.

Disclosure required under section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

R in Lacs)

Particulars As at As at

March 31,2021 | March 31,2020

A i)  Principal amount remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year 857.57 526.26
ii)  Interest due on above 25.09 0.73

B The amount of interest paid by the group in terms of section 16 of the Micro Small and Nil Nil
Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 along with the amount of the payment made
to the supplier beyond the appointed date during the accounting year.

C  The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the financial year 25.09 0.73
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which Nil Nil
have been paid but beyond the due date during the year) but without adding the interest
specified under Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006.

E  The amount of further interest remaining due and payable in succeeding years, until such Nil Nil

interest is actually paid.
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NOTE-26 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES ®in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2021, March 31,2020
Current
Current maturities of long-term debt (Refer Note-19)
From Banks (Secured ) 1,117.59 627.19
For Vehicle Loans from Bank (Secured) 24.89 23.17
From Non Banking Financial Company (Secured) 75.91 44,28
Public Fixed Deposits 436.35 1,179.50
Interest Accrued 338.65 220.90
Unclaimed Dividends* 18.62 21.82
Unclaimed Deposits and Interest accrued thereon* 21.74 21.11
Financial Guarantee Liabilities (Refer Note-43) 24.90 27.17
Lease Liabilities 408.74 513.58
Payable for Capital Goods 480.18 642.59
Security Deposits from Customers 137.32 157.35
Mark To Market Liabilities on Derivatives - 79.38
Others** 9.68 256.98
Total 3,094.57 3,815.02

*Note: There are no amounts due for payment to the Investors Education and Protection fund as at the year end.

**Includes refund liabilities of ¥ NIL (March 31, 2020 : ¥ 247.30 lacs) pursuant to Ind AS 115 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers.

NOTE-27 PROVISIONS R in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2021 | March 31,2020
Current
Provision for Employee Benefits
Gratuity (Refer Note-44) 104.11 108.54
Compensated Absences 230.18 189.59
Total 334.29 298.13
NOTE-28 TAX LIABILITIES (NET) R in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2021, March 31,2020
Current
Income Tax Payable (Net of Advance Tax) 1,106.13 254.48
Total 1,106.13 254.48
NOTE-29 OTHER LIABILITIES R in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2021, March 31,2020
Current
Statutory Remittances 357.77 131.63
Advances Received from Customers 51.74 40.89
Other Liabilities 207.71 206.04
Deferred Govt. Grant 51.33 51.33
Total 668.55 429.89
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NOTE-30 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS R in Lacs)
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31,2021, March 31,2020

Sale of Products

Finished goods (Refer Note-43) 46,157.64 59,350.22
Currency 31.66 394.10
Sale of Services

Income from Money Changing Business 3.99 9.50
Other Operating Revenues

Scrap Sales 138.04 110.66
Cold Storage Rent Income 47.90 62.24
Total 46,379.23 59,926.72
Reconciliation of revenue from operation with contract price

Revenue from contract with customers as per the contract price 47,047.07 60,861.96
Adjustment made to contract price on account of:

Discounts and Rebates (667.84) (935.24)
Revenue from Operations 46,379.23 59,926.72
NOTE-31 OTHER INCOME R in Lacs)
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended

March 31,2021 | March 31,2020
Interest Income 384.66 72.84
Export Licenses Income 338.29 376.11
Other Export Incentive Income 248.03 -
Financial Guarantee Commission Income 2891 28.99
Gain on Fair Value of Current Investment 0.06 -
Gain on Fair Value of Non Current Investment 0.50 -
Grant Income 51.81 55.65
Net gain on Foreign Currency translations and transactions 18.17 212.09
Profit on sale of investment 2.08 24.07
Gain / (Loss) on disposal of Property, Plant & Equipment - 1.53
Excess Provision written back 85.83 69.44
Miscellaneous Income 118.51 121.33
Loans & Advances written back 373.71 -
Provision for Doubtful Debt written back 2.85 -
Total 1,653.41 962.05
NOTE-32 COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED in Lacs)
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended

March 31,2021, March 31,2020
Inventory at the beginning of the year 9,888.46 7,232.81
Add : Purchases 19,903.21 31,689.50
Less: Inventory at the end of the year 8,384.16 9,888.46
Total 21,407.51 29,033.85
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NOTE-33 PURCHASE OF TRADED GOODS R in Lacs)
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31,2021, March 31,2020
Processed Food 2,646.11 1,901.08
Dairy Products 81.48 343.29
Others 280.16 119.52
Currency 30.83 390.75
Total 3,038.58 2,754.64
NOTE-34 CHANGE IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS AND STOCK IN TRADE R in Lacs)
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31,2021, March 31,2020

Inventories at beginning of the year
Finished Goods 5,103.75 4,878.29
5,103.75 4,878.29

Inventories at end of the year

Finished Goods 5,086.03 5,103.75
5,086.03 5,103.75
Total 17.72 (225.46)

Note : Year end finished goods includes inventory in form of right to return assets of I NIL as at March 31, 2021 (As at March 31, 2020 :

¥199.71 Lacs)

NOTE-35 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES R in Lacs)
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31,2021 | March 31,2020

Salary, Wages, Allowances and Bonus etc. (Refer Note-43) 5,032.93 5,757.46
Contribution to Provident and Other funds (Refer Note-44) 282.53 274.04
Staff Welfare Expenses 156.57 209.10
Total 5,472.03 6,240.60
NOTE-36 FINANCE COSTS R in Lacs)
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31,2021, March 31,2020

Interest Expense (Refer Note-43) 1,995.37 1,525.34
Other Borrowing Costs 148.63 146.28
Total 2,144.00 1,671.62
NOTE-37 OTHER EXPENSES R in Lacs)
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31,2021, March 31,2020

Job Charges 2,840.83 3,356.44
Power & Fuel 2,749.81 3,533.04
Stores and Spares Consumption 716.62 788.63
Repairs & Maintenance 733.13 849.70
Rent 495.45 515.95
Freight and forwarding charges 2,637.29 2,079.39
Sales Promotion Expense (Refer Note-43) 411.18 320.06
Corporate Social Responsibility Expense 73.51 20.36
Payment to Auditors 48.65 52.24
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Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
Provision for Doubtful Debts 15.65 46.22
Less : Reversal of provision due to recovery 18.50 1.21
Less : transferred to income side 2.85 -
Provision for Doubtful Debts - 45.01
Bad Debt written off 5.26 30.38
Less : Provided in earlier years - -
5.26 30.38
Foreign Exchange Loss (Net) 6.26 -
Provision for Doubtful Advances - 16.00
Loss on Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment (Net) 21.22 -
Loss on fair value of Current Investment - 0.21
Loss on fair value of Non Current Investment = 3.63
Other Expenses 2,160.22 2,639.39
(Including Legal & Professional, Conveyance, Telephone, Postage, Printing & Stationery etc.)
Total 12,899.43 14,250.43
Payment to Auditors
As Auditor
Audit Fees 40.67 37.89
Limited Review 6.00 8.00
In Other Capacity
Certification Fees 1.50 5.50
Reimbursement of expenses 0.48 0.85
Total 48.65 52.24
NOTE-38 TAX EXPENSES R in Lacs)
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31,2021, March 31,2020
A. Income tax recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss:
Current Tax:
In respect of the current year 1,111.32 1,299.12
In respect of the prior years 17.39 (38.20)
Total 1,128.71 1,260.92
Deferred Tax:
In respect of the current year (822.99) (605.04)
Total (822.99) (605.04)
B. Reconciliation of the income tax expenses to the amount computed by applying the
statutory income tax rate to the profit before income taxes is summarised below :
Profit / (loss) before tax 768.48 4,793.76
Income Tax Expense@ 25.168% (Previous Year @ 25.168%) 193.41 1,206.49
Tax effect of the amounts which are not deductible / (taxable) in calculating taxable
income:
Effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit 19.72 15.06
Effect of change in tax rate (Refer below Note) - (639.19)
Effect of income that are not taxable (94.06) -
Others 0.35 46.19
Effect of different tax rate in India & foreign jurisdictions 168.91 65.53
288.33 694.08
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous year 17.39 (38.20)
Total 305.72 655.88
Tax effect on Items in Other Comprehensive Income 0.82 2.54
Tax expense as per Statement of Profit and Loss 306.54 658.42

Group's weighted average tax rates for the year ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 are 39.78 % and 13.68 % respectively.

Note:

During the previous year, the holding company elected to exercise the option permitted under section 115BAA of the Income-tax Act,
1961, as introduced by Taxation Laws (Amendment) Act, 2019. Accordingly, the holding company has recognised provision for Income
tax for the year ended March 31, 2020, and re-measured its Deferred Tax basis the rates prescribed in the said section. The full impact
of this change has been recognised in the statement of profit & loss for the year ended March 31, 2020. This has resulted in reversal of
Deferred tax expense of ¥ 639.19 lacs on account of remeasurement of Deferred tax liabilities as at April 01,2019.
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NOTE - 39 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES NOT PROVIDED FOR AND COMMITMENTS : R in Lacs)
Sr. | Particulars As at As at
No. March 31,2021, March 31,2020

Contingent Liabilities
(@) | Guarantees given by the Holding Company against Borrowing given to companies in
which Directors are interested is ¥ 3,001 Lacs (March 31,2020% 2,901 Lacs)
Outstanding against this as at March 31 1,056.10 2,310.96
(b) | For Excise-related matter decided in favour of Group, against which Excise Dept. has 43.00 43.00
preferred an appeal
(c) | ForIncome Tax-which is disputed by Group and against which group has preferred appeal, - 15.26
based on the demand notices raised by Income Tax Dept. and received by Group.
(d) |In respect of erstwhile Vadilal Financial Services Limited (VFSL) Income Tax Demand 1.93 1.93
(including interest) for which Group has preferred an appeal.
(e) | For Indirect Tax-Disputed by Group and against which group has preferred appeals 211.78 144.20
(f) | For Other Matters-cases against group by the Vendor and Authorities 245.84 245.84
(9) | Differential amount of custom / excise duty in respect of machinery purchased under 793.15 796.55
EPCG Scheme*
(h) | Differential amount of custom duty in respect of Advance Licence* 209.24 64.29
(i) | Outstanding letter of credits and bank guarantees issued by banks 553.14 787.61
Total Contingent Liabilities 3,114.18 4,409.64
Commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not 570.37 607.04
provided for (Net of Advances)

Future Cash Outflow in respect of (b) to (f) above depends on ultimate settlement / conclusions with the relevant authorities/parties.

*The Holding Company has fulfilled export obligation for license availed under EPCG and Advance Authorization. As the applications for
closures are either to be made / pending disposal by department, the same are shown as contingent liabilities.

NOTE - 40

In FY 2017-18, a petition was filed against the Holding Company and some of its promoters, before the National Company Law Tribunal,
Ahmedabad (“NCLT”), under Sections 241 and 242 of the Companies Act, 2013, pertaining to the prevention of oppression and
mismanagement of the Holding Company. In the current period, no orders have been passed by the NCLT. In the hearing held on June 8,
2021, the NCLT has adjourned the matter for hearing to July 27, 2021.

NOTE - 41 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
| Capital Management

Group manages its capital so as to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to optimise returns to stakeholders. The
Capital structure of Group is based on management’s judgment of its strategic and day-to-day needs with a focus on total equity to
maintain investor, creditors and market confidence and to sustain future development and growth of its business.

The management and the Board of Directors monitors the return on capital as well as the level of dividends to shareholders. Group
may take appropriate steps in order to maintain, or if necessary adjust, its capital structure.

The capital structure of Group consists of net debt (borrowings as detailed in notes 19 and 24 off set by cash and bank balances)
and total equity of Group.

Gearing Ratio R in Lacs)

Particulars As at As at

March 31,2021 March 31,2020
Debt * 14,335.51 17,350.13
Less: Cash and cash Equivalents 2,522.01 959.95
Net Debt 11,813.50 16,390.18
Total Equity excluding Revaluation Reserve 17,583.09 17,180.74
Net Debt to equity ratio 67.19% 95.40%

* Debt is defined as long-term borrowings, short-term borrowings and current maturities of long term borrowings as described in
notes 19 and 24.
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Category-wise classification of financial instruments

Financial Assets & Financial Liabilities as at March 31, 2021 R in Lacs)
Particulars Fair value| Amortised Cost Total
Through Profit
and loss
Financial Assets
Investments 11.84 45.90 57.74
Loans - 10.47 10.47
Trade receivables - 4,529.81 4,529.81
Cash and Cash Equivalents - 2,522.01 2,522.01
Bank balances other than cash and cash Equivalents - 1,045.27 1,045.27
Other Financial Assets - 341.73 341.73
Total 11.84 8495.19 8,507.03
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings - 12,680.77 12,680.77
Trade Payable - 11,074.59 11,074.59
Other Financial Liabilities - 4,125.35 4,125.35
Total - 27880.71 27,880.71
Financial Assets & Financial Liabilities as at March 31, 2020 ®in Lacs)
Particulars Fair value| Amortised Cost Total
Through Profit
and loss
Financial Assets
Investments 11.29 45.90 57.19
Loans - 18.35 18.35
Trade receivables - 4,415.03 4,415.03
Cash and Cash Equivalents - 959.95 959.95
Bank balances other than cash and cash Equivalents - 955.36 955.36
Other Financial Assets - 770.22 770.22
Total 11.29 7164.81 7,176.10
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings - 15,475.99 15,475.99
Trade Payable - 8,496.29 8,496.29
Other Financial Liabilities - 5,312.14 5,312.14
Total - 29284.42 29,284.42

In respect of financial instruments, measured at amortised cost, the fair value approximates the amortised cost.

R in Lacs)
Particular Fair value Fair value hierarchy
Quoted Price in Significant Significant
active market observable unobservable
(Level 1) inputs (Level 2) | inputs (Level 3)

As at March 31, 2021

Investments at fair value through profit and loss 11.84 1.28 - 10.56

As at March 31, 2020

Investments at fair value through profit and loss 11.29 1.22 - 10.07

Financial risk management objective

Group’s financial liabilities comprise mainly of borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities. Group’s financial assets
comprise mainly of investments, cash and cash equivalents, other balances with banks, loans, trade receivables and other financial

assets.

Group's business activities are exposed to a variety of financial risks, namely liquidity risk, market risks and credit risks.

Group's senior management has the overall responsibility for establishing and governing Group’s risk management framework.
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A.

Management of Market Risk

Group’s size and operations result in it being exposed to the following market risks that arise from its use of financial
instruments:

Foreign Currency risk
Equity price risk
Interest rate risk

The above risks may affect Group’s income and expenses, or the value of its financial instruments. Group’s exposure to and
management of these risks are explained below:

(M

(a)

(b)

Currency risk management

Group's activities expose it primarily to the financial risk of changes in foreign currency exchange rates. Group enters into
a variety of derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to foreign currency risk :

The carrying amounts of Group's foreign currency dominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the end of the

reporting period are as follows:

Derivatives instruments ®in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2021 | March 31,2020
Forward contract to sell CAD
No. of contracts - 5
In CAD - 2,20,000
In INR - 1,17,93,009
Forward contract to sell USD
No. of contracts - 5
In USD - 46,50,000
In INR - 35,63,73,250
Particular of foreign currency exposures as at the reporting date.
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2021 | March 31, 2020
Liabilities (Foreign currency)
In US Dollars (USD) 2,11,823.52 1,85,795.72
In Euro (EUR) 295.00 295.00
In Australian Dollars (AUD) 1,300.00 1,300.00
In Dirham (AED)
Assets (Foreign currency)
In US Dollars (USD) 6,27,045.20 2,59,867.66
In Canadian Dollars (CAD) 55,321.08 -
In Great Britain Pound (GBP) 27,747 44 28,801.80
R inlacs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
Liabilities (INR)
In US Dollars (USD) 155.69 140.05
In Euro (EUR) 0.25 0.24
In Australian Dollars (AUD) 0.73 0.61
Assets (INR)
In US Dollars (USD) 460.88 195.89
In Canadian Dollars (CAD) 32.24 -
In Great Britain Pound (GBP) 28.01 26.81

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The following table details, Group's sensitivity to a 1% increase and decrease in the rupee against the relevant foreign
currencies. 1% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. This is mainly
attributable to the exposure outstanding not hedged on receivables and payables in Group at the end of the reporting
period. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts

their translation at the period end for a 1% change in foreign currency rate.
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(ii)

A change of 1% in Foreign currency would have following Impact on profit before tax and total equity

R in Lacs)

Particulars For the year ended March 31, 2021 | For the year ended March 31, 2020

1% increase 1% decrease 1% increase 1% decrease
usD 3.05 (3.05) 0.56 (0.56)
CAD 0.32 (0.32) - -
GBP 0.28 (0.28) 0.27 (0.27)
EURO - - - -
AUD (0.01) 0.01 (0.01) 0.01
Increase / (decrease) in profit & loss 3.64 (3.64) 0.82 (0.82)

Price Risk (Equity Price Risk)

Group's exposure to equity securities price risk arises from investments held by Group and classified in the balance
sheet at fair value through profit and loss. To manage its price risk arising from investments in equity securities, Group
diversifies its portfolio. Diversification of the portfolio is done in accordance with the limits set by Group.

Sensitivity Analysis
The table below summarizes the impact of increases / decreases of the BSE index on Group's equity and Gain/Loss for the

period. The analysis is based on the assumption that the index has increased by 5 % or decreased by 5 % with all other
variables held constant, and that all Group’s equity instruments moved in line with the index.

(iii)

A change of 5% in market index would have following Impact on profit before tax R in Lacs)
Particulars For the For the
Year Ended Year Ended
March 31,2021 | March 31,2020
BSE Index 100 - Increase by 5% 0.06 0.06
BSE Index 100 - Decrease by 5% (0.06) (0.06)

The above referred sensitivity pertains to quoted equity investments. Profit for the year would increase / decrease as a
result of gains / losses on equity securities as at Fair Value through profit and loss (FVTPL).

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of the financial instruments will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. In order to optimize Group’s position with regards to interestincome and interest expenses
and to manage the interest rate risk, treasury or management performs a comprehensive corporate interest rate risk
management by balancing the proportion of fixed rate and floating rate financial instruments in its total portfolio.

According to Group interest rate risk exposure is only for floating rate borrowings. For floating rate liabilities, the analysis
is prepared assuming that the amount of the liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period was outstanding
for the whole year. A 100 basis point increase or decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

Exposure to interest rate risk
Interest rate sensitivity

A change of 100 bps in interest rates would have following Impact on profit before tax R in Lacs)
Particulars Increase / Effect on PBT
Decreasein
basic points
As at March 31, 2021 100 bps 41.25
As at March 31, 2020 100 bps 82.78

B. Management of Credit Risk

Credit risk arises from the possibility that the counter party may not be able to settle their obligations as agreed. To manage
this, Group periodically assesses financial reliability of customers, taking into account the financial condition, current economic
trends, and analysis of historical bad debts and ageing of accounts receivable. Individual risk limits are set accordingly.

Group considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset and whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk on an ongoing basis through out each reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit
risk, Group compares the risk of default occurring on asset as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of
initial recognition. It considers reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking information such as:

i)

Actual or expected significant adverse changes in business,
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ii)  Actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of the counterparty,

iii)  Financial or economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant change to the counterparty’s ability to meet its
obligations,

iv)  Significant increase in credit risk on other financial instruments of the same counterparty,

v)  Significant changes in the value of the collateral supporting the obligation or in the quality of the third-party guarantees
or credit enhancements.

Group measures the expected credit loss of trade receivables and loan from individual customers based on historical trend,

industry practices and the business environment in which the entity operates. Loss rates are based on actual credit loss

experience and past trends. Based on the historical data, loss on collection of receivable is not material hence no additional

provision considered.

The Ageing analysis of Account receivables has been considered from the date the invoice falls due

R in Lacs)

Particulars As at As at
March 31,2021 March 31,2020

0-3 months 3,820.11 4,188.20
3-6 months 607.29 123.20
6-12 months 31.50 6.09
More than 12 months 70.91 97.54
Total 4,529.81 4,415.03

The following table summarizes the changes in loss allowances measured using life time expected credit loss model

R in Lacs)

Particulars As at As at
March 31,2021, March 31,2020

Opening Allowances 182.05 137.04
Add: Additional Allowances made 15.65 46.22
Less : Reversal of provision due to recovery 18.50 1.21
Closing Allowances 179.20 182.05

No Significant changes in estimation techniques or assumptions were made during the year.

Concentrations of Credit risk form part of Credit risk

Considering that the Group sells majority of its goods to Vadilal Enterprises Ltd., the Group is significantly dependent this
customer. Out of total income, the Group earns 48.54 % revenue (previous year 70.21 %) from this customer, and with this
customer, the Group has long term contract. As at March 31, 2021, receivables from this customer constitute 31.58 % (previous
year 46.92 %) of total trade receivables. A loss of this customer could adversely affect the operating result or cash flow of the
Group.

Management of Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that Group will face in meeting its obligation associated with its financial liabilities. Group’s approach
in managing liquidity is to ensure that it will have sufficient funds to meet its liabilities when they are due without incurring
unacceptable losses. In doing this management considers both normal and stressed conditions.

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the board of directors, which has established an appropriate
liquidity risk management framework for the management of the Group’s short-term, medium-term and long term funding
and liquidity management requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking
facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the
maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

The following table shows the maturity analysis of Group’s financial liabilities based on the contractually agreed undiscounted
cash flows along with its carrying value as at the Balance sheet date.

Exposure as at March 31, 2021 R in Lacs)
Particulars < 1year 1-5years| Beyond 5 years Total
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 6,962.57 5,622.42 95.78 12,680.77
Trade Payable 11,074.59 - - 11,074.59
Other Financial Liabilities 3,094.57 1,030.78 - 4,125.35
Total Financial Liabilities 21,131.73 6,653.20 95.78 27,880.71
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Exposure as at March 31,2020 R in Lacs)
Particulars < 1year 1-5years| Beyond 5 years Total
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 10,554.49 4,895.02 26.48 15,475.99
Trade Payable 8,496.29 - - 8,496.29
Other Financial Liabilities 3,815.02 1,497.12 - 5312.14
Total Financial Liabilities 22,865.80 6,392.14 26.48 29,284.42

Financial Arrangements
Group has access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting period.

R in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2021, March 31,2020
Expiring within one year (Bank overdraft and other facilities) 1,115.82 3,232.12
Expiring beyond one year (Bank loans) 239.00 3,205.97
NOTE - 42 EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS) AS PER INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARD 33:
Particulars For the For the
Year Ended Year Ended
March 31,2021 March 31,2020
Profit for the year attributable to owners of Group & in Lacs) 463.25 4,138.35
Weighted average number of Equity Shares (in Lacs) 71.88 71.88
Earning per Equity Share (Basic & Diluted) 6.44 57.57
NOTE - 43 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AS PER INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARD 24:
The disclosure in pursuance to Indian Accounting Standard-24 on "Related Party Disclosures”is as under:
(@) Name of Related Parties & Relationship
No.  Name Description of Relationship
1 | Rajesh R. Gandhi Key Managerial Personnel
2 |Devanshu L. Gandhi Key Managerial Personnel
3 | Kalpit R. Gandhi Key Managerial Personnel
4 | Rashmi Bhatt Key Managerial Personnel (w.e.f. February 12, 2019)
5 | Yogesh Bhatt Key Managerial Personnel ((w.e.f. December 13, 2019 and Upto June 25,
2020)
6 | Anil Patil Key Managerial Personnel ((w.e.f. December 13, 2019 and Upto June 25,
2020)
7 | Vadilal Enterprises Ltd. Enterprise over which Key Managerial Personnel are able to exercise
significant influence
8 |Vadilal International Pvt. Ltd. Enterprise over which Key Managerial Personnel are able to exercise
significant influence
9 | Veronica Construction Pvt. Ltd. Enterprise over which Key Managerial Personnel are able to exercise
significant influence
10 | Majestic Farm House Ltd. Enterprise over which Key Managerial Personnel are able to exercise
significant influence
11 | Byad Packaging Industries Pvt. Ltd. Enterprise over which Key Managerial Personnel are able to exercise
significant influence
12 | Vadilal Marketing Pvt. Ltd. Enterprise over which Key Managerial Personnel is able to exercise
significant influence
13 | Vadilal Chemicals Ltd. Enterprise over which Key Managerial Personnel is able to exercise
significant influence
14 | Mamta R. Gandhi Relative of Key Managerial Personnel
15 | Deval D. Gandhi Relative of Key Managerial Personnel
16 | Aakanksha D. Gandhi Relative of Key Managerial Personnel
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(b) Transactions during the year with related parties mentioned in (a) above, in ordinary course of business & balances
outstanding as at the year end:

R in Lacs)
Transaction Total Key Relative | Enterprise significantly
Managerial of Key influenced by Key
Person | Managerial Managerial Person
Person or relatives of Key
Managerial Personnel
(a) Sales
Vadilal Enterprises Ltd. 22,511.94 22,511.94
PY.| (42,072.30) (42,072.30)
(b) Purchases
Vadilal Chemicals Ltd. 14.05 14.05
PY. (14.14) (14.14)
(c) Interest Paid
Byad Packaging Industries Pvt. Ltd. - -
PY. (0.46) (0.46)
Vadilal Marketing Pvt. Ltd. - -
PY. (2.17) (2.17)
Rajesh R Gandhi - -
PY. (0.08) (0.08)
(d) i) Managerial Remuneration
Rajesh R. Gandhi 74.44 74.44
PY. (181.49) (181.49)
Devanshu L. Gandhi 7444 7444
PY. (181.74) (181.74)
ii) Remuneration
Kalpit R. Gandhi 30.85 30.85
PY. (33.64) (33.64)
Yogesh Bhatt 1.50 1.50
PY. (8.00) (8.00)
Anil Patil 5.50 5.50
PY. (8.45) (8.45)
Rashmi Bhatt 14.18 14.18
PY. (15.38) (15.38)
Deval D. Gandhi 7.03 7.03
PY. (7.70) (7.70)
Mamta R. Gandhi 7.18 7.18
PY. (7.70) (7.70)
(e) InterestIncome
Vadilal International Pvt. Ltd. 2.66 2.66
PY. (6.00) (6.00)
(f) Royalty Expense
Vadilal International Pvt. Ltd. 47.03 47.03
PY. (35.29) (35.29)
(g) Loan or Deposits Received
Vadilal Marketing Pvt. Ltd. - -
PY. (63.00) (63.00)
Byad Packaging Industries Pvt. Ltd. - -
PY. (9.00) (9.00)
Rajesh R Gandhi - -
PY. (40.00) (40.00)
(h) Loan or Deposits Received back
Vadilal International Pvt. Ltd. 600.00 600.00
PY. - -
(i) Loan or Deposits Repaid
Byad Packaging Industries Pvt. Ltd. - -
PY. (9.00) (9.00)
Vadilal Marketing Pvt. Ltd. - -
PY. (63.00) (63.00)
Rajesh R Gandhi - -
PY. (40.00) (40.00)
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in Lacs)
Transaction Total Key Relative | Enterprise significantly
Managerial of Key influenced by Key
Person | Managerial Managerial Person
Person or relatives of Key
Managerial Personnel
Balance outstanding at year end :
Investments
Majestic Farm House Ltd. 3.99 3.99
PY. (3.95) (3.95)
Trade Receivable
Vadilal Enterprises Ltd. * 1,430.67 1,430.67
PY.| (2,071.55) (2,071.55)
Interest Receivable
Vadilal International Pvt. Ltd. 7.86 7.86
PY. (5.40) (5.40)
Loans & Advances Given
Majestic Farm House Ltd. 5.31 5.31
PY. (4.78) (4.78)
Security Deposits Given
Vadilal International Pvt. Ltd. - -
PY. (600.00) (600.00)
Trade Payable
Vadilal International Pvt. Ltd. 9.66 9.66
PY. - -
Vadilal Chemicals Ltd. 1.72 1.72
PY. (3.27) (3.27)
Corporate Guarantee Given
Vadilal Enterprises Ltd. 3,001.00 3,001.00
PY.| (2,901.00) (2,901.00)
Corporate Guarantee Taken
Majestic Farm House Ltd. 14,309.00 14,309.00
PY.| (22,392.00) (22,392.00)
Vadilal Enterprises Ltd. 270.00 270.00
PY. (270.00) (270.00)
Personal Guarantee Taken
Rajesh R Gandhi and Devanshu L Gandhi (Jointly) 7,682.00 7,682.00
PY.| (12,776.00) | (12,776.00)

Notes

1)

Transaction of Sales / Purchase (where input tax credit is not available to the group) and outstanding of Trade Payables / Receivable
are inclusive of Taxes.

Previous Year figures are shown in bracket.

The Holding Company has entered into a“Trade Mark License Agreement with Vadilal International Private Limited (“VIPL") (which is
the Proprietor and the beneficial owner of the Trade Mark “Vadilal”) for the usage of the Trade Mark “Vadilal”. The Holding Company
has also entered into an agreement with Vadilal Enterprises Limited, a related party, for sale of its products on a principal to principal
basis. The Holding Company has obtained a legal opinion, as per which, the sales / supplies of goods by the Holding Company to
VEL, do not fall with the scope of “Trade Mark License Agreement” between the Holding Company and VIPL and accordingly, the
Holding Company is not contractually obliged to pay any royalty on sales made by it to VEL. Accordingly, the Holding Company has
made provision for royalty only on sales made to parties other than VEL which is consistent with the practice followed in the earlier
years.

Pursuant to the agreement signed with Vadilal Enterprises Ltd. and approved by the shareholders, the pricing of the products to
be sold shall be determined by the Holding Company. As per the pricing policy, for the period from February 15,2021 to March 31,
2021, the Holding Company has issued a special debit note to Vadilal Enterprises Limited, on June 28, 2021 owing to the additional
discounted prices at which the original transactions took place.
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During the previous year, to temporarily tide over the business loss suffered by its primary customer of the Holding Company due
to the unprecedented condition caused by the COVID-19 pandemic, the Holding Company has given a special credit note to Vadilal
Enterprises Limited for ¥ 325 lacs.

Compensation to Key Managerial Personnel of the Group: R in Lacs)
Nature of Benefits For the For the
Year Ended Year Ended

March 31,2021, March 31,2020

Short Term Employee Benefits 243.69 102.47
Post Employment Gratuity Benefits* 41.33 49.64
Total 285.02 152.11

Note: * Key Managerial Personnel and Relatives of Promoters who are under the employment of Group are entitled to post employment
benefits and other long term employee benefits recognised as per Ind AS 19 -‘Employee Benefits'in the financial statements. Post-
employment gratuity benefits of Key Managerial Personnel has not been included in (d) above.

Disclosure as per Regulation 34 (3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Section
186 of the Companies Act, 2013

Amount outstanding:

Name of Party Relationship Purpose As at As at
March 31,2021, March 31,2020

Gurantee Given
Vadilal Enterprises Ltd. Enterprise over which Key To avail credit facility and 3,001.00 2,901.00
Managerial Personnel is ableto | corporate loan
exercise significant influence

Maximum outstanding during the year:

Name of Party Relationship Purpose As at As at
March 31,2021, March 31,2020

Gurantee Given
Vadilal Enterprises Ltd. Enterprise over which Key To avail credit facility and 3,001.00 3,927.00
Managerial Personnel is ableto | corporate loan
exercise significant influence

NOTE - 44 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

I Post Employment Benefit Plans as per Indian Accounting Standard 19:

Defined Contribution Plan:

Group makes provident fund (PF) contributions to defined contribution benefit plans for eligible employees. Under the scheme
Group is required to contribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs to fund the benefits. The contributions specified under
the law are paid to the government authorities (PF commissioner).

Amount towards Defined Contribution Plan have been recognized under “Contribution to Provident and Other funds”in Note 36 ¥
182.57 Lacs (Previous Year: 176.47 Lacs).

Defined Benefit Plan:

Group has defined benefit plans for gratuity to eligible employees, contributions for which are made to Life Insurance Corporation of
India, who invests the funds as per IRDA guidelines. The details of these defined benefit plans recognised in the financial statements
are as under:

Gratuity is a defined benefit plan and group is exposed to the Following Risks:

Interest rate risk: A fall in the discount rate which is linked to the G.Sec. Rate will increase the present value of the liability requiring
higher provision. A fall in the discount rate generally increases the mark to market value of the assets depending on the duration of
asset.

Salary Risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of members. As
such, an increase in the salary of the members more than assumed level will increase the plan’s liability.

Investment Risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which is determined by
reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds. If the return on plan asset is below this rate, it
will create a plan deficit. Currently, for the plan in India, it has a relatively balanced mix of investments in government securities, and
other debt instruments.
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Asset Liability Matching Risk: The plan faces the ALM risk as to the matching cash flow. Since the plan is invested in lines of Rule

101 of Income Tax Rules, 1962, this generally reduces ALM risk.

Mortality risk: Since the benefits under the plan is not payable for life time and payable till retirement age only, plan does not have

any longevity risk.

Concentration Risk: Plan is having a concentration risk as all the assets are invested with the insurance company and a default will
wipe out all the assets. Although probability of this is very less as insurance companies have to follow regulatory guidelines.

a) Movement in present value of defined benefit obligation are as follows : R in Lacs)
Particulars Gratuity
As at As at
March 31,2021 March 31,2020
Obligations at the beginning of the year 649.44 566.30
Current service cost 41.57 35.83
Past service cost - -
Interest cost 44.42 44.00
Actuarial (gain) / loss-due to changes in Demographic Assumptions (4.56) -
Actuarial (gain) / loss-due to changes in Financial Assumptions (9.83) 10.88
Actuarial (gain) / loss-due to Experience Adjustments 7.34 22.39
Benefits paid (65.23) (29.96)
Present value of benefit obligation at the end of the year 663.15 649.44
b) Movement in the fair value of defined plan assets are as follows : R in Lacs)
Particulars Gratuity
As at As at
March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
Plan assets at the beginning of the year at fair value 345.36 265.08
Interest Income 23.63 20.60
Return on plan assets excluding interest income (3.78) (2.32)
Contributions from the employer 2.39 91.97
Benefits paid (65.23) (29.96)
Plan assets at the end of the year at fair value 302.37 345.36

c¢) The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the entities obligation in respect of defined benefit plan is as

follows:
® in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2021, March 31,2020
Present value of benefit obligation at the end of the period 663.15 649.44
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the period (302.37) (345.36)
Net liability / (assets) arising from defined benefit obligation 360.78 304.07
d) Amountrecognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as Employee Benefit Expenses R in Lacs)

Gratuity For the For the
year ended year ended
March 31,2021 March 31,2020
Current service cost 41.57 35.83
Net Interest Cost 20.80 23.40
Past Service Cost - -
Net impact on the Profit / (Loss) before tax 62.37 59.23

Gain / (Expense) recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
Return on plan assets excluding actuarial return on plan assets 3.78 2.31
Actuarial (gains) / losses arising from changes in Demographic Assumptions (4.56) -
Actuarial (gains) / losses arising from changes in Financial Assumption (9.84) 10.88
Experience (gains) / losses arising on Experience Adjustments 7.34 22.39
Net expense recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income before tax (3.28) 35.58
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e) The defined benefit obligations shall mature after year end March 31, 2021 as follows: in Lacs)
Gratuity As at
March 31, 2021

1st Following Year 123.07

2nd Following Year 26.57

3rd Following Year 48.22

4th Following Year 24.19

5th Following Year 77.46

Sum of Years 6 to 10 258.33
701.39

Sum of Years 11 and above

f)  Sensitivity Analysis

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate, expected salary
increase and mortality. The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the
respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

R in Lacs)

Particulars As at As at
March 31,2021 March 31,2020

Projected Benefit Obligation on Current Assumptions 663.15 649.44
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Discounting (45.32) (43.53)
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Discounting 52.20 50.29
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase 47.85 46.14
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase (42.29) (36.39)
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover 0.28 0.47
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover (0.32) (0.50)

The sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions
occurring at the end of the reporting period and may not be representative of the actual change. It is based on a change in
the key assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. When calculating the sensitivity analysis, the present value
of projected defined benefit obligation has been calculated using Projected Unit Credit Method at the end of the reporting
period. The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared with the

previous period.

g) The principal assumptions used for the purpose of actuarial valuation were as follows :

With the objective of presenting the plan assets and plan liabilities of the defined benefits plans at their fair value on the
balance sheet date, assumptions under Ind AS 19 are set by reference to market conditions at the valuation date.

The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:

Gratuity As at As at
March 31,2021 March 31,2020
Financial Assumptions
Discount rate 6.85% 6.84%
Salary Escalation Rate
For next 1 year 5.00% 0.00%
Thereafter starting from 2nd year 7.00% 7.00%
Attrition Rate
For Service (4 years & below) 15.00% 8.00%
2.00% 2.00%

For Service (5 years & above)

Mortality Tables

Indian Assured Lives
Mortality (2006-08)

h) Investment details of plan assets:

To fund the obligations under the gratuity plan, Contributions are made to Life Insurance Corporation of India, who invests the

funds as per IRDA guidelines.
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Il. Other Long Term Employee Benefits
Compensated Absences

The liability towards compensated absences (leave encashment) for the year ended March 31, 2021 based on actuarial valuation
carried out by using Projected Unit Credit Method is ¥ 230.18 Lacs . (As at March 31,2020 : ¥ 189.59 Lacs)

Compensated Absences As at As at
March 31,2021, March 31,2020

Financial Assumptions

Discount rate 6.85% 6.84%

Salary Escalation Rate

For next 1 year 5.00% 0.00%

Thereafter starting from 2nd year 7.00% 7.00%

Attrition Rate

For Service (4 years & below) 15.00% 8.00%

For Service (5 years & above) 2.00% 2.00%

Mortality Tables

Indian Assured Lives Mortality

(2006-08)
NOTE - 45 SCHEDULE OF GOVERNMENT GRANT: (REFER NOTE 23 & 29) R in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2021 | March 31,2020
Opening balance of Grant 660.58 716.23
Grant Received during the Year - -
Amortised to the statement of Profit & Loss (51.81) (55.65)
Closing balance of Grant 608.77 660.58
Current 51.33 51.33
Non Current 557.44 609.25
Total 608.77 660.58
NOTE- 46 A DISCLOSURE AS PERIND AS 116
The changes in the carrying value of ROU assets for the year ended March 31, 2021 are as follows : (R in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2021 March 31,2020
Opening Balance 1,849.93 -
Reclassified on account of adoption of Ind AS 116 - 2,416.32
Additions - -
Translation Difference (38.17) -
Changes on account of lease modification (25.74) -
Depreciation (535.54) (566.39)
Closing Balance 1,250.48 1,849.93

The aggregate depreciation expense on ROU assets is included under depreciation and amortization expense in the Statement of Profit

and Loss.
The break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities as at March 31, 2021 is as follows : (R in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2021, March 31,2020
Current lease Liabilities 408.74 513.58
Non-current lease Liabilities 1,029.14 1,468.84
Total 1,437.88 1,982.42
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The movement in lease liabilities during the year ended March 31, 2021 is as follows: R in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2021 March 31, 2020

Opening Balance 1,982.42 -
Reclassified on account of adoption of Ind AS 116 - 2416.32
Finance cost accrued during the period 190.43 -
Changes on account of lease modification (25.74) -
Payment of lease liabilities (682.81) (433.90)
Translation difference (26.42) -
Closing Balance 1,437.88 1,982.42

The details of the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at March 31, 2021 on an undiscounted basis are as follows :

(X in Lacs)

Particulars As at As at
March 31,2021 March 31, 2020

Less than one year 408.74 513.58
One to five years 1,029.14 1468.84
Total 1,437.88 1,982.42

The Group does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets are sufficient to meet the
obligations related to lease liabilities as and when they fall due.

Rental expense recorded for short-term leases was I 495.45 Lacs for the year ended March 31,2021 and % 515.95 Lacs for the year ended
March 31, 2020.

NOTE - 46 B CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY EXPENDITURE:

a)  CSRamount required to be spent by the Holding Company as per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 is ¥ 73.23 Lacs for the
year 2020-21. (PY.% 68.43 Lacs).

b)  Expenditure related to CSRis¥ 73.51 Lacs (P.Y.% 20.36 Lacs), details of the same is as under: in Lacs)

Particulars As at As at
March 31,2021 | March 31, 2020

i) Construction/acquisition of any asset = -

ii)  On purposes other than (i) above 73.51 20.36
Total 73.51 20.36
NOTE - 47

(@) Interim Reports by the Independent Law Firm and Chartered Accountant Firm appointed by the Committee of Independent
Directors to inquire/examine matters involving allegations and counter allegations levelled by two Promoter Directors against
each other primarily relating to the operations and management of the Holding Company during the period 2014-15 to 2018-19,
is received by the Holding Company. The Interim Reports received have not found any adverse observations/findings, in terms of
reference made to them, which can be considered to be prejudicial to the interest of the Holding Company.

(b) However, the Holding Company is yet to receive the report/finding for the following, primarily due to the second wave of the
COVID-19:

Allegations relating to potential personal expenses claimed as official business expenditure amounting to ¥ 25.33 lacs (for financial
year 2017-18 and financial year 2018-19), and ¥ 25.00 lacs (for financial year 2014-15 and financial year 2018-19) by two Promoter
Directors respectively.

(c) The Board of Directors of the Holding Company in its meeting held on June 28, 2021 have accepted the recommendation of the
Committee of Independent Directors to close all the matters not requiring any further course of action, except matter as referred
to in para (b) above, and believes that the items in para (b) above shall not have any material financial impact on the financial
statements of the Group for the year.

NOTE - 48

The business has been significantly impacted during the year on account of COVID-19. The Holding Company has witnessed lower
revenues due to lockdown imposed during the beginning of the year, being the peak period of the ice-cream business. With the
unlocking of restrictions, the business improved gradually in the last two months of the year. Whilst there has been a second wave of the
COVID-19 pandemic in April and May, 2021, the domestic ice-cream business of the Holding Company once again got impacted, being
the peak period.
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The Group has also assessed the possible impact of COVID-19 in preparation of the standalone financial statements, including recoverable

value of its financial and non-financial assets and impact on revenues and cost. The Group has considered internal and external sources

of information and based on current estimates, expects to recover the carrying amount of these assets. The impact of COVID-19 may be

different from that estimated at the date of the approval of these standalone financial statements and the Group will continue to closely
monitor any material changes to the future economic conditions.

The Holding Company, has availed moratorium in respect of term loans (interest and instalments) and interest on cash credit account up
to August 31, 2020, and is generally regular in payment of interest and principal to its various lenders.

As at the year end, the Holding Company has noticed that there has been a breach in maintaining/complying certain financial ratios as
stipulated in the long-term loan agreements by the lenders. Considering the impact of COVID-19 as exceptional, and there being no
default in the payments to the lenders, the Holding Company considers such breach in compliance of certain stipulated ratios as a minor
breach of a debt covenant, not warranting any action at this stage.

The Group believes, with the support of the lenders, in its ability to continue as a going concern and meeting its liabilities as and when
they fall due in the foreseeable future.

NOTE - 49

The Code on Social Security, 2020 (‘Code’) has been notified in the Official Gazette of India on September 29, 2020, which could impact
the contributions of the Holding Company towards certain employment benefits. The effective date from which changes are applicable
is yet to be notified and the rules are yet to be framed. Impact, if any, of the change will be assessed and accounted in the period of
notification of the relevant provisions.

NOTE - 50 Segment Information:

The Group is primarily engaged in one business segment namely Food segment as determined by the Chief Operating Decision Maker
in accordance with IND AS 108 - “Operating Segment”.

NOTE - 51

Previous years’figures have been regrouped and rearranged wherever necessary to comply with requirement of Ind AS.

In terms of our report attached.

For Arpit Patel & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm registration number: 144032W Rajesh R Gandhi Devanshu L Gandhi
Managing Director Managing Director
(DIN: 00009879) (DIN: 00010146)

Arpit K Patel Kalpit R Gandhi Rashmi Bhatt

Partner Director & Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Membership No.: 034032 (DIN: 02843308)

Place : Ahmedabad Place : Ahmedabad

Date: June 30, 2021 Date: June 30, 2021
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VADILAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Vadilal House, Shrimali Society, Nr. Navrangpura Rly. Crossing, Navrangpura, Ahmedabad - 380 009.
CIN:L91110GJ1982PLC0O05169 Email : shareslogs@vadilalgroup.com Website : www.vadilalgroup.com, Tel: +91 079 4808 1200.

E-COMMUNICATION REGISTRATION FORM

Dear Shareholders,

You are aware that the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 have been made effective. Pursuant to Section 101 and Section 136 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant Rules issued thereunder,Companies can serve Annual Reports and other communi-cations
through electronic mode to those shareholders who have registered their email address either with the Company or with the Depository
or with Share Transfer Agent.

Itis a welcome move for the society at large, as this will reduce paper consumption to a great extentand allow shareholders to contribute
towards a greener environment. This is a golden opportunity forevery shareholder of Vadilal Industries Limited to contribute to the cause
of Green Initiative.

We therefore invite all our shareholders to contribute to the cause by filling up the form given below to receive communication from the
Company in electronic mode.

Please note that as a Member of the Company, you will be entitled to receive all such communication in physical form, upon
request.

Best Regards,

Rashmi Bhatt
Company Secretary

E-COMMUNICATION REGISTRATION FORM

Folio No./ DP ID and Client ID :

Name of the 1 Registered Holder :

Name of the Joint Holder([s] :

Registered Address :

E-mail ID (to be registered) :

I / We Shareholder(s) of Vadilal Industries Limited agree to receive communication from the Company in electronic mode. Please
register my/our above e-mail ID in your records for sending communication in electronic form.

Date: Signature

Note: Shareholder(s) are requested to keep the Company informed as and when there is anychange in the e-mail address.
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VADILAL INDUSTRIES LTD.

Vadilal House, 53, Shrimali Society, Nr. Navrangpura Railway Crossing, Navrangpura,
Ahmedabad - 380009. Ph. No.: 079-26564019-24.Email id :info@vadilalgroup.com.
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